NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF
THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA”) will hold
its Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on Friday,
August 28, 2020 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to the
public via teleconference.

If you would like to join the meeting, please contact Audrey Aguon at
475-1378 by Wednesday, August 26, 2020 for more information.

For special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano at 475-1322 or TTY
472-3701.




o\}““”#
= e, BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
s REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING

E 12:00 P.M., August 28, 2020
& GHURA's Main Office (via Zoom)
§ 1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana

AGENDA

©
=
%]
C
A
4.

&

I. ROLL CALL

il. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
1tPrinting - Friday, August 21, 2020
2ndPrinting - Wednesday, August 26, 2020

Ill. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - August 14, 2020
PAGE(S)

IV. NEW BUSINESS
1. Resolution No. FY2020-020 .. e R (o
Resolution approving the Above Step Recrmtment Request for
Alicia P. Aguon as a Planner IV in RPE

Z. Intentof AWard ......iiisiss 5 Vel 3-9
IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001, PH On Slte Certiflcatmn Trammg

3. Resolution No.FY2020-021... simasionrom: A0
Resolution adopting the Procurement Pohcy for the Guam Housmg and Urban
Renewal Authority

4. Resolution No. FY2020-022 .........ceeveeme srsiseineny 3435
Resolution approving the Annual PHA Plan [FY202 1) and Capltal Fund
Program (CFP) Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024)

5. Request for Tenant Account Receivables... eoimsxssassrreny.  (30=46
Write-Offs through June 30, 2020 for AMPs 1, 2 3 and 4

6. Resolution No.FY2020-023... sy 7«52
Resolution approving the FlSCElI Year 202 1 Operatmg Budgets for
Public Housing Asset Management Projects (AMPs) GQ001000001,
GQ001000002, GQ001000003, and GQO01000004

V. GENERAL DISCUSSION /| ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting: Friday, September 11t @ 12:00 p.m.

Vi. ADJOURNMENT



GUAM DAILY POST = FRIDAY, AUGUST 21, 2020

T Ty

T . i

O Y P R

R o

L

awrea g i s v

ey v

CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES
On Aug. 20, $1 was worth: |

Guam group joins
national coalition
for press freedom,
public information

The Vigilance Committee Inc. 2 nonprofit
organization in the U.S. Territory of Guam, is
the newest member of the National Freedom
of Information Coalition, the comrmttee stated
in a press release.

NFQOIC is a national nonpar-
tisan, nonprofit organiza-
tion made up of organiza-
tions that advocate far open
government and freedom of
information.

Its members represent 39
U.S. states, commonwealths,
territories and the District of Columbia that
promote legislative and policy reforms and
press freedom to ensure open, transparent and
accessible state and local governments and
public institutions,

Incorporated in 2019, the Vigilance Commit-
tee is dedicated to requiring compliance
with Guam's Open Government Law and the
Sunshine Reform Act and promotes ways to
improve the dissemination and disclosure of
information to the public, and strengthening the
laws of disclosure on all fronts, the committee
stated in the release.

According to the release, Lee P, Webber is
president of the Vigilance Committee, A 2000
recipientofthe Sunshine Awardfromthe Society
of Professional Journalists, Webber is a former
president and publisher of media organizations
on Guam and Hawaii. Before retiring after 40
years with Gannett Co., where he served for five
years as Director of Operations for USA TODAY
International for all of Asia, Webber was presi-
dent and publisher of The Honolulu Advertiser
and President of Gannett Pacific Corp.

“Qur Vigilance Committee members are

op)
op)

Lee. P Webber

.excited to have found national allies in our

advocacy for more openness and transparency
in our local government,” Webber stated,

"My entire career has been spent advo-
cating for this very purpose. As president of
Guam'’s Vigilance Committee and the newest
member of NFOIC, | will continue this advo-
cacy to ensure that Guam's Open Government
Laws are enforced. This is especially important
during these times when our local government
has increased its usage of internal electronic
communications and when our civil liberties
have been curtailed and our normal systems of
checks and balances breached," he added.

(Daily Post Staff)

48,689 PHPP |

105.98 JPY¥ | 1,186.94 KRWY¥|

~ Keepposted and getmore data and details online. Logontc seereal hmemarketdma ith our stock markettaol atpostguam, com!smck market.
1 3924 AUD AS

20.394 TWONTS|  6.9136 CNY¥[ 1

0.843 EUR € |

ad

DFS to continue legal
challenge of airport contract

DFS will continue its legal chal-
lenge to the Guam airport's $154
million, 10-year specialty retail
contract with Lotte Duty Free,
despite a recent Supreme Court of
Guam ruling against it, DFS stated
in a recent release. On Aug. 11,
the high court overturned a 2018
Superior Court of Guam ruling
that voided the contract. The trial
court allowed Lotte to continue to
operate the concession until the
Supreme Court decided the appeal.

With the unanimous, 78-page
decision, the case is now returned
to the Superior Court for further
proceedings. “DFS alleged over
35 issues of wrongdeoing and the
court's decision was based on
procedural technicalities relating
to only a small number of them,”
DFS stated.

“DFS's position remains
unchanged since it lodged its initial
lawsuit against (the A.B. Won Pat
International Airport Authority)
for its misconduct in connection
with the 'specialty airport conces-
sion contract. DFS welcomes the
opportunity now to take forward
its claims to a trial that will fully
expose GIAA's improper collusion
with Lotte at the expense of the
people of Guam and its visitors.”

The Lotte contract remains in
place with the recent decision.

The initial dispute between GIAA

GEDA marks
55th anniversary

By Lannie Walker
lannie@postguam.com

The Guam Economic Develop-
ment Authority turns 55 this week.

GEDA board of directors Vice
Chairman Jun Espaldon acknowl-
edged the milestone during the
board’s monthly meeting on
Thursday.

In 1965, Frank Perez and a group
of his colleagues introduced a bill

Galleria by DFS in
Tumon is shown in
this file photo, DFS ¥
Guam recently &
said it will continue §
its six-year legal §
challenge to the
specialty retail
contract at the
A.B. Won Pat
International
Airport despite an |
Aug. 11 Supreme
Court of Guam
ruling against DFS.,
Post file photo  §

and DFS arose after the Guam Visi-
tors Bureau organized a delegation
to participate in promotional activ-
ities in Seoul regarding leju Air's
inaugural flight to Guam in Septem-
ber 2012.

DFS contended that during the
promotional activities in Korea,
certainmembersofthe GVBdelega-
tion, including two former members
of the GIAA board of directors, had
improper contacts with or received
improper gifts from Lotte that
affected the procurement process.

At the time, the retailers were
bidding onthe contract for the retail
space at the airport which DFS had
operated for decades. The airport
awarded the contract to Lotte,
which began retail operationsinthe
air terminal in July 2013.

to create an economic develop-
ment authority on Guam but it
was vetoed by then-Gov. Manuel
Guerrera.

On Aug. 21, 1965, the 8th Guam
Legislature passed Bill 167 which
became Public Law 8-80, repealing
the Guam Finance and Develop-
ment Administration and creating
the Guam Economic Development
Authority as a public corporation,
Perez said during the board meet-
ing held Thursday on Zoom.

The 8th Guam Legislature also
established Guam's qualifying

Separately from its suit against
the airport, DFS stated, it is suing
Lotte Duty Free Guam LLC for
conspiring, through fraudulent and
illegal means, to install itself in
the duty-free space at the airport.
The Guam Supreme Court's recent
decision does not affect that claim
and DFS is highly confident it will be
successful, DFS added.

“DFS will continue its fight for
integrity, fairness, and justice,
which are values that DFS believes
the people of Guam expect to see
upheld,” the DFS release stated.

Although DFS is disappointed in
the Guam Supreme Court's recent
decision, DFS stated, it remains
confident that the rule of law will
ultimately prevail.

(Daily Post Staff)

certificate to entice investments
on Guam that would create jobs
and stimulate revenues, Perez
added.

GEDA Administrator Melanie
Mendiola noted that the 50th anni-
versary was celebrated with much
fanfare, including a golf tourna-
ment and a gala.

This year, during a global
pandemic, GEDA's anniversary will
be marked in a much more low-key
way than it was in 2015.

“It's alittle quieter now, but that's
OK," said Mendiola.

or pick up your files from the Clinic.

DR. HEE S00 KO, DMD, P.C.
PEDIATRIC DENTISTRY

NOTICE
To All Patients and Clients of Dr. HEE SO0 KO, Pediatric Dental Clinic.
The Clinic will close on Monday, August 31, 2020.

Please call the Clinic 637-8334, or Joy Dela Cruz 864-9012, or email
hskopeds@gmail.com or dentjoy812@gmail.com, to make arrangements to retrieve

NOTICE

BOARD MEETING OF

THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
he Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA”) will hold ils
Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on Friday, August 28,
2020 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to the public via
teleconference.

If you would like to join the meeting, please contact Audrey Aguon at
475-1378 by Wednesday, August 26, 2020 for more information.

For special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano at 475-1322 or TTY




GUAM DAILY POST = WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2020

Trump sets dark tne in| NC kickoff

By Eli Stokols
and Noah Bierman
Los Angeles Times

WASHINGTON - President Donald
Trump unofficially accepted his
party’s nomination for reelection
Monday by delivering an unscripted,
tradition-busting and falsehood-rid-
dled speech, making abundantly clear
that his hostile takeover of a party
that tried four years ago to thwart him
is now utterly complete.

Hours after the four-day Repub-
lican National Convention kicked
off in Charlotte, North Carolina, the
president strode to the podium and
interrupted the state roll call vote,
unleashing a rambling address that
lasted more than an hour and was
vintage Trump - full of boasts, threats
and insults.

Despite his campaign's prom-
ise that Trump and the GOP would
strike an optimistic tone, to contrast
with supposed dourness at the
Democratic convention last week,
the president warned darkly that
"your American dream will be dead”
if former Vice President Joe Biden,

*12 MORE YEARS": President Donald Trump addresses the Republican National Convention

at the Charlotte Convention Center in Charlotte, N.C., on Monday.
David T. Foster lll/The Charlotte Observer

the Democratic nominee, wins in
November.

"They want no guns. They want no
oil and gas and they want no God,"” he
said of Democrats. He also suggested,
as he has before, that he might stay
in office beyond the constitutional
two-term limit.

"If you want to really drive 'em
crazy, you say 12 more years," Trump
said to cheers from the 336 Republi-

NOTICE OF

R BOARD M F

THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
he Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA) will hold ils
Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on Friday, August 28,
2020 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to the public via

feleconference.

It you would fike to join the meeting, please contact Audrey Aguon at
475-1378 by Wednesday, August 26, 2020 for more information.

Fer special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano at 475-1322 or TTY

472-3701.

GUAM WOMEN'S CLUB
Income & Expense Statement 2019-2020

Membership Dues
Fundraising Events
Membership Luncheon
Monthly Luncheon Raffle

Donations for GCC Scholars
Transfer from Scholarship Fund

Interest Income
Total Income

Fundraising Expenditures

Transfer to Scholarship Fund

Grants/Donations
UOG Scholar Tuition
GCC Scholars Tuition

Hilton Monthly Meeting Luncheon
Administrative/Operations Expenses

Bank Charges

Total Expense

$ 2,300.00
$ 69,630.00
6,838.00
$ 1,020.00
$ 4,000.00
$ 3,528.50
$ 19.10

L5

$ 87,335.60

$ 32,986.65
$ 19,601.85
4,750.00
3,528.50
4,000.00
8,099.50
3,005.35

694.22

[ e e ]

$ 76,666.07

R T T T,

can delegates at the heavily scaled-
down party gathering in the Charlotte
Convention Center.

He accused Democrats of trying
to "steal the election” by urging
Americans to vote absentee to limit
exposure to the coronavirus at poll-
ing places. Trump has long sought to
sow doubt in the electoral process
in case he loses, but doing so at a
presidential nominating convention,
which normally celebrates the virtues
of voting, marked another unprece-
dented turn.

"Be very careful and watch it very
carefully because we have to win," he
added, falsely claiming that mail-in
voting systems were being used to
perpetuate fraud. “It's not fair and
it's not right and it's not going to be
possible to tabulate, in my opinion.”

Polls show widespread disapproval
of Trump's management of the
pandemic, but on Monday he accused
Democrats of taking advantage of
COVID-19, which has killed more than
177,000 Americans since February
and forced millions out of work.

"They're using COVID to steal an
election,” he said. "They're using
COVID to defraud the American
people.”

Traditionally, presidential nomi-
nees do not speak extensively until
the final night of a political conven-
tion. Trump plans to speak every day,
and then give his formal acceptance
speech before an invited crowd on
the South Lawn of the White House
on Thursday.

Trump's dominance of the conven-
tion appeared all but total. He faced
no challengers for the nomination,
and the GOP said Sunday that it would
not update its official platform from
2016, explaining that "the Republi-
can Party has and will continue to
support” Trump’s earlier agenda.

But in a sign of how toxic Trump
remains in much of the country, only
1 of the 6 most vulnerable Republican
senators seeking reelection in swing
states this fall, lowa Sen. Joni Ernst,
is scheduled to take the convention

White House staging
and Trump aides' roles
at convention may
violate ethics laws

By Melissa Gomez
Los Angeles Times

The  Republican National
Convention, with its planned use
of the White House as backdrop
and speeches from administration
officials, is breaking norms and
bringing admonitions from ethics
experts, with some suggesting
President Donald Trump himself
could potentially violate provisions
of federal laws meant to ensure
official authority is used for public
good.

Trump administration officials
have been repeatedly cited over
the years for violating federal laws
concerning government ethics. On
Sunday, the watchdog group Citi-
zens for Responsibility and Ethics
in Washington accused Trump's
chief of staff, Mark Meadows, of
violating the Hatch Act when he
criticized Democratic nominee Joe
Biden during an interview on Fox
News in his official capacity.

But some experts say plans
for the convention, which began
Monday in Charlotte, North Caro-
lina, are unlike any past breaches.

"Obviously this administration
has bent and broken the law on
repeated occasions to boost the
president’s reelection prospects,”
said Donald Sherman, deputy
director of CREW. "I think these are
new, unprecedented steps.”

CREW has filed numerous
complaints against Trump offi-
cials and says transgressions have
gone unpunished. White House
counselor Kellyanne Conway is
a "repeat offender," the Office of
Special Counsel wrote in a June
2019 letter. The Trump-appointed
special counsel, who investigates
complaints of ethics violations,
recommended Conway be fired,
but the White House declined.

Conway, White House senior
adviser Ivanka Trump, social
media director Dan Scavino and
other administration officials are
scheduled to speak at the four-
day convention, raising questions
about federal employees partici-
pating in partisan politicking.

Michael R. Pompeo plans to
speak to the RNC while he is in
Israel on an official mission, break-
ing the long-held tradition of secre-
taries of state avoiding partisan
politics. Sherman said Pompeo's
appearance was "perhaps worse
because it's obvious he's on official

amrarnmant hucinace "



RBAN
,9@“ %1@ BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
& ‘%_ REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
‘,:3' % 12:00 P.M. August 28, 2020
S 5 GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom Video Conference)
¢_3- cbe 1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana
29, 19678 BOC MEETING MINUTES

I. ROLL CALL

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the
Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners' regularly scheduled board
meeting was called to order at 12:11 P.M.,, Friday, August 28, 2020 at the GHURA
Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Flores. He indicated that
4 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and
that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. He also stated that Vice Chairwoman
Guzman would be attending the meeting shortly.

PRESENT: (VIA ZOOM VIDEO
CONFERENCE)
Sabino Flores, Chairman

George Pereda, Commissioner
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner
Anisia Delia, Commissioner

ABSENT:
Joseph Leon Guerrero,
Resident Commissioner

LEGAL COUNSEL:
Anthony Perez, Esq.

Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman

MANAGEMENT & STAFF:
Ray Topasna, Executive Director
Elizabeth Napoli, Deputy Director
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant
Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller
Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator
Katherine Taitano,

CPD/RP&E Manager
Sonny Perez, A/E Manager
Greta Balmeo, Buyer Supervisor

PUBLIC: (VIA ZOOM VIDEO
CONFERENCE)
Mr. Dave Sablan
Ms. Haidee Gilbert,
The Guam Daily Post

1. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS

1stPrinting - Friday, August 21, 2020
2nd Printing -Wednesday, August 26, 2020
ACKNOWLEDGED. The Chairman also

indicated that the agenda and

announcement were posted on the Attorney General's website.

Ill. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES
[069/20] Chairman Flores made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of
August 14, 2020 as corrected. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Ishizaki. With no objections by the other board members, the motion was

approved.

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020

PAGE 1 of 8




V.

NEW BUSINESS
1. [070/20] Resolution No. FY2020-020

Resolution approving the Above Step Recruitment Request for Alicia P. Aguon
as a Planner IV in RPE

Mr, Topasna indicated that an announcement was made to fill the Planner 1V vacancy.
Four applicants were interviewed and of the four candidates, the interview panel
selected Ms. Alicia P. Aguon. Upon her selection, Ms. Alicia P. Aguon, petitioned the
board for an above minimum step recruitment based on her exceptional qualifications,
which included: eight years as the Executive Director of the Habitat for Humanity and
years of experience in the private sector and with non-profit organizations. Based on
Ms. Aguon'’s extensive knowledge and experience, Mr. Topasna requested that the
board approve the above step recruitment to the level of 0G3-5F for approximately
$55,526 per annum.

Chairman Flores opened the meeting to discussions.

Commissioner Ishizaki stated that because he is known to the applicant, Ms. Alicia P.
Aguon, he would recuse himself from the voting process.

Mr. Tony Perez stated that if Commissioner Ishizaki abstained from voting, the board
would not have a quorum.

Chairman Flores stated that the agenda item #1, Resolution approving the Above Step
Recruitment Request for Alicia P. Aguon as a Planner IV in RPE, would be tabled until
Vice Chairwoman Guzman is in attendance.

. [071/20] Intent of Award

IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001, PH On-Site Certification Training

Miss Greta Balmeo indicated that the IFB was for training for on-site certification for
Public Housing staff, She added that the last award from GHURA was in 2017.

Recently, GHURA had solicited training to ensure that staff and management are in
compliance with HUD Standards. The awarded vendor would provide training that
would consist of two components: 1. The first component would be on the Uniformed
Physical Condition Standards, also known as UPCS and would encompass training in
REAC Inspections. 2. The second component would be on Project-Based Maintenance
Management, which would provide SITE/AMP managers training in understanding
their roles and responsibilities at their respective sites.

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 2 of 8



Nan Mckay and Associates was the only bidder that submitted their bid by the bid
deadline. Based on the evaluation conducted, it was determined that Nan McKay met
the minimum specifications and procurement requirements per the IFB. A letter was
submitted to HUD for Sole Source approval. On March 13, 2020, approval was granted
by HUD.

Ms. Balmeo requested that the Board approve the award to Nan Mckay & Associates,
Inc. for PH On-Site Certification Training in the amount of $68,958.00.

Chairman Flores asked Ms. Balmeo for clarification on Table 2, the Bid Price form on
item#4, the Training Venue. He suggested that the quantity number 1 indicated on the
Bid Price form, referred to a lump sum when it should refer to the number of days. As
stated on Table 2, the unit cost indicated the amount of $1250 x 8 days subtotaling
$10,000. He inquired if it was actually a venue rental cost for 8 days. Miss Balmeo
indicated that the $10,000 is the total cost of the venue and included the 5 day training
and any other extra costs of going over the training dates, which is a total of 8 days.

Commissioner Ishizaki asked if the training would be held on Guam. Miss Balmeo stated
that training will be held on Guam with possible venues being a hotel ballroom or the
UOG Fieldhouse and actual AMP sites. Mock units will also be set up by the trainers at
the training venue. Commissioner Ishizaki raised concerns about costs being greater
than what was indicated because of the quarantine requirements. Miss Balmeo stated
that in light of that, the tentative schedule for training would most likely be for next
year.

Chairman Flores inquired about whether an adjustment of the trainers’ costs was
presented based on the delay of training dates. Ms. Balmeo stated that Nan McKay was
informed of the projected training schedule and they have confirmed their costs.

Mr. Topasna added that GHURA has done very well at bringing trainers to Guam and
getting certifications done locally, versus having trainees travel to various off-island
sites. GHURA staff has also participated in webinars classes, which have all proven to
be more cost effective for GHURA. He commended the GHURA staff for all their hard
work.

[072/20] With no further discussions, Chairman Flores made a motion to
approve the Intent of Award, IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001, PH On-Site
Certification Training in the amount of $68,958. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner George Pereda. With no objections by the other board members,
the motion passed.

3. [073/20] Resolution No. FY2020-021
Resolution adopting the Procurement Policy for the Guam Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority

Mr. Topasna requested that board increase the dollar threshold of the Procurement
policy for small purchases and sealed bids from $15,000 to $25,000 for general
procurement. He also requested that the construction procurement be increased from

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 3 of 8



$50,000 to $100,000. This increase would bring GHURA to full compliance with Public
Law 34-35. This concern was addressed in GHURA's audit as being below the
recommended threshold as stated in Public Law 34-35.

Chairman Flores asked for clarification on the Gratuities, Kickbacks, and the Use of
Confidential Information section. He questioned whether the $5.00 value was correct.

Mr. Tony Perez indicated that the document was drafted back in 2017. Mr. Albert
Santos was the primary author of the document and he assisted in the write-up of the
policy. He stated that the CFR, HUD forms, and the 5GCA Chapter 5 were referenced
in crafting the policy. The $5.00 value was from one of the sources used.

Chairman Flores then suggested that on the Form of Solicitation section, Land
Surveying services be included in that section to be consistent with the Appeals board
and Engineering Board's regulations. This was acknowledged by Mr. Sonny Perez.

Mr. Topasna added that he and Mr. Perez have been discussing items that they would
like incorporated into the Procurement Policy. He stated that with the board's approval,
he and Mr. Perez may revisit the policy to work on necessary revisions. Chairman
Flores agreed to the revisions of GHURA's existing Procurement Policy.

Mr. Tony Perez stated that when the original policy was written, he and Mr. Albert
Santos found it difficult to find the balance between following federal and local
guidelines. He recommended that the revisions include the more restrictive guidelines.

Chairman Flores inquired about pending procurement projects that may need
approval. Ms. Katherine Taitano stated that CPD does have upcoming projects for the
Capital Fund and the HOME programs. Four projects await the threshold increase
approval before being advertised.

Chairman Flores inquired if Mr. Sonny Perez based his estimates on entire packages
collectively, as in the case of the Renovation project at all the AMP sites, Mr, Sonny Perez
explained that bids such as the renovation projects were sent out as an aggregate,
which would be considered a large bid, regardless of how the project is broken up by
location.

Discussions ensued regarding when projects would be brought before the board
regarding change orders that bring project costs above the threshold. Mr. Tony Perez
suggested that if a contract estimate is close to the $100,000 threshold, it should be
brought to the board for approval and not be categorized as a small purchase.

Chairman Flores suggested that the board approve only the increase of the threshold
allowance for GHURA's Procurement Policy and work on revisions to the policy at a
later date so as not to impede on the progress on pending bids. Commissioner Ishizaki
concurred with Chairman Flores.

[074/20] With no further discussions, Commissioner Ishizaki made a motion to
adopt the requested threshold increase of $100,000 for construction and
$25,000 for small purchases, under Title 5 Guam Code Annotated Chapter 5,

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 4 of 8



Section 5213 regarding small purchases not exceeding $25,000 for supplies and
services and not to exceed $100,000 for construction. In the interim, revisions
will be made to the Procurement rules. Mr. Tony Perez added that the motion
incorporate a statute into the policy regarding small purchases. Chairman Flores
seconded the motion to approve the amended Resolution No. FY 2020-021, the
Resolution adopting the Procurement Policy for the Guam Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority. With no objections by the other board members, the motion
was approved.

[075/20] Upon the arrival of Vice Chairwoman Guzman, Tabled item #1 Resolution No.
2020-020, approving the Above Step Recruitment Request for Alicia P. Aguon as a
Planner IV in RPE, was open for discussion.

[076/20] With no discussions regarding Resolution No. 2020-020, Chairman
Flores made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2020-020 approving the Above
Step Recruitment Request for Alicia P. Aguon as a Planner IV in RPE. The motion
was seconded by Vice Chairwoman Guzman, With no objections by the other
board members, the motion was passed.

4, [077/20] Resolution No. FY2020-022
Resolution approving the Annual PHA Plan (FY2021) and Capital Fund Program
(CFP) Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024)

Mr. Topasna indicated that GHURA is required to submit a Capital Fund 5-Year Action
Plan annually to identify and prioritize its modernization needs. He requested that the
board approve the CFP 5-Year Action Plan and the Public Housing Agency Annual Plan.

Ms. Katherine Taitano also added that these annual reports require the board’s
approval before they are submitted to HUD. Ms. Taitano indicated the reason the two
plans were on one resolution is because both plans run on the same calendar schedule.
She also stated that the 5-Year Plan is a calendar filled with 5 years worth of projects
for GHURA. At the end of every year, another year is tacked on as a continuation of the
operating plan for projects. In the board packet, Ms. Taitano stated that a list of major
changes to the plan was provided. Ms. Taitano also touched on some updates to the
plan that will be made. Updates include the recent GHURA lottery and the opening of
waitlists.

Mr. Topasna added that GHURA received funding from the CARES ACT fund. The media
has inquired about when GHURA will implement the Mortgage relief program.
However, many HUD requirements are very stringent. The pandemic conditions have
made it very difficult, but GHURA is committed to following HUD's regulations as
required.

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired whether projects not listed on the Capital Fund
5-Year Action Plan and PHA Annual Plan be added at a later time. Ms. Taitano stated
that Vice Chairwoman Guzman's inquiry falls in line with the Cap Fund 5-Year Action

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 5 of 8



Plan and projects may be added, but it is difficult to do. She explained the importance
of engaging Executive Management, management, and AMP managers in discussions
with the A/E division to identify projects that need to be addressed. Those projects then
get added onto the list that is included in the 5-Year Action Plan. These projects are
then slated to be completed in the timeline provided. Scheduling new projects not on
the list would be very difficult. However, there is a provision in cases of emergencies,
which does allow GHURA for some room to move.

Vice Chairwoman Guzman thanked Ms. Taitano for her clarification as her concern was
for cases in emergency situations.

Mr. Topasna added that GHURA also provides technical assistance to projects not listed
on the CFP 5-Year Action Plan. He stated that GHURA has the expertise and if called
upon for assistance, GHURA will assist in any way it can.

[078/20] With no further discussions, Chairman Flores made a motion to
approve the Resolution No. FY2020-022 approving the Annual PHA Plan
(FY2021) and Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024).
Commissioner Pereda seconded the motion. With no objections, the motion was
approved.

5. [079/20] Request for Tenant Account Receivables
Write-Offs through June 30, 2020 for AMPs 1, 2, 3,and 4

Mr. Topasna stated that he is requesting that the board approve the write-off of tenant
account receivables totaling $19, 037.69 for AMPS 1, 2, 3, and 4. He added that the
breakdown provided indicates the total from each AMP with AMP 2 having the largest
accounts receivable requiring a write-off of $9279.58. He stated that write-offs is
something that is done regularly as too many outstanding balances affects the agency’s
financial performance.

Ms. Napoli stated that the number of write-offs has decreased compared to the number
in past write-offs.

Mrs. Lucele Leon Guerrero also added that the write-offs were based on former tenants
and provided a list of reasons for the write-offs. She also stated that the previous
write-off included AMPs 1, 3, and 4 and was approved by the board on October 22,
2019 for a total of $29, 662.89. As compared to the current write-off amount of $19,
037.69, there is a decrease of 35.8%.

[080/20] With no further discussions, Chairman Flores made a motion to
approve the Request for Tenant Account Receivables Write-offs through June 30,
2020 for AMPs 1, 2, 3, and 4. Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. There
were no objections by the other board members. The motion was approved.

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 6 of 8



6. [081/20] Resolution No. FY2020-023
Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Budgets for Public Housing
Asset Management Projects (AMPs) GQ001000001, GQ001000002,
GQ001000003, and GQ001000004

Mr. Topasna indicated that it was very critical that the Public Housing budget for AMPs
1, 2, 3, and 4 be ready to be presented to the board and still meet HUD’s timeline. He
stated that the Asset Management Budget was broken down into categories: Personnel,
Utilities, Contractual equipment, and Other Costs.

Mrs. Lucele Leon Guerrero displayed a comparison of the 2020 and the 2021 budgets
for Public Housing, AMPs 1, 2, 3, and 4. Her comparison indicated that in 2020, the
board approved a budget of $5,130,884 for Public Housing. For 2021, the request is for
a budget of $5,642, 741, an increase of $511,857 or 9.98%. She provided variances in
dollars by each AMP and stated that an overall increase was in Personnel costs for
salaries due to the implementation of a new pay scale. This increase was in the amount
of $164,710.

[082/20] With no further discussions, Chairman Flores made a motion to
approve Resolution No. FY2020-02 approving the Fiscal Year 2021 Operating
Budgets for Public Housing Asset Management Projects (AMPs) GQ001000001,
GQ001000002, GQO001000003, and GQO01000004. Commissioner Pereda
seconded the motion. With no objections by the other board members, the
motion was approved.

V. GENERAL DISCUSSION /| ANNOUNCEMENTS
[083/20] Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about the status of the recent testing that
took place at Guma Trankilidad and the status of the other locations. Mr. Topasna
reported that GHURA had not been informed by DPHSS regarding the results of the
testing that was recently conducted at the site. He added that he hopes that future
communications with DPHSS will be improved.

He informed the board that upon learning of the two earlier positive cases at Guma
Trankilidad, restricted use of the common areas at the facility was implemented and
social distancing strictly adhered to.

Ms. Napoli also informed the board that about 50% of the residents at Guma
Trankilidad agreed to be tested, along with several GHURA staff members. She
indicated thatresidents have not been notified of their results and was unsure if results
were pending.

Vice Chairman Guzman requested that the Executive Management express the board’s
deepest appreciation to all the staff and management for their hard work and
dedication.

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 7 of 8



[084/20] Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting: Friday, September 11, 2020 at

12:00 P.M.
There were no objections to the next BOC meeting date.and time.

Vi. ADJOURNMENT
[085/20] With no further general discussions, Chairman Flores thanked

everyone for attending the BOC meeting. However, due to technical difficulties
with the video conference call, Chairman Flores was unable to adjourn the
meeting. All attendees ended the call at 1:34 P.M.

SEAL

7?@”7%\

" RAY s AOPASNA
Board Secretary /| Executive Director

Board Minutes of August 28, 2020 PAGE 8 of 8



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2020-020

MOVED BY: SABINO P. FLORES SECONDED BY: MONICA O. GUZMAN

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP RECRUITMENT FOR THE PLANNER IV
POSITION (RPE)

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its Board of
Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical experts, agents and
employees, permanent and temporary as it may deem necessary; and shall
determine their qualifications, duties, tenure and compensation..."”; and

Title 4 of the Guam Code Annotated, “... The appointing authority, or the head of
an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4 GCA,§4105(a) may
petition the Director of Administration, the Judicial Council (as to Judicial Branch
employment) or the agency, department or public corporation’s governing board
or commission (as to an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4GCA
§4105(a)) for recruitment at a higher step not to exceed Step 10, because of
documented difficulty or exceptional qualifications. .. ... " and

Ms. Alicia P. Aguon submitted her request to Executive Management requesting
to petition the GHURA Board of Commissioners for an above the minimum step
recruitment for the position of Planner IV based on exceptional qualifications; and

Ms. Aguon'’s exceptional qualifications for the Planner IV position consists of the
following:

Education —
o John F. Kennedy High School Graduate, Guam;
o College Credits — University of Guam

Work Skills —
1) Executive Director Habitat for Humanity of Guam (HFHG)— 8 years
- Planned, facilitated, and executed the U.S. Government and Guam
Community partnership, in efforts to construct Habitat's Phase 1 & ||
homes using the national volunteerism model and government
partnerships;
- Contributed to success building and community development with
HFHG and Habitat for Humanity's National Association to support
disaster recovery for other US Territories; and
- Researched and analyzed of Land Trust programs in partnership
with other HFHG Nonprofit and government funded projects with
focus on Guam'’s Land Trust and land for the landless lease holders.

2) Maintained contracts in the private business sector and other Nonprofit
Organizations such as:

- Account Administrator — Calypso Group — Tracked revenue and
client annual budgets. Advisement on procedures for efficient and
productivity for the agency’s team.

- Executive Vice President & Director for PRB — wholesaler of dry
goods and produce

- Administrative & Finance position for In-house Creative — advertising
and marketing firm; and



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

Ms. Aguon’s personal efforts included a non-profit organization awardee of over
$300,000.00 in federal grant funding to continue building homes into 2020, which
was not otherwise obtainable prior to 2009; and

the interview panel's report stated in part, “that the panel unanimously selected
Ms. Aguon as the best interviewee of the pool assembled. Among the strongest
points that came across during the interviews was her ready familiarity with
grant-related concepts and terms. Her experience with Habitat and as a sub
recipient of funds has helped her. Her direct experience in housing development,
planning and construction will aid our efforts to improve our management of
several CPD grant programs. No others of the pool could step in with the
experience as needed for RPE and CD”: and

a review of Ms. Aguon'’s leadership and project management skills working in a
non-profit setting is directly applicable to the functions of the Planner IV position
classification; and

management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits (i.e.
retirement, holidays, annualfsick leave, etc.) is competitive with the private sector
and respectfully requests an above step recruitment of Ms. Alicia P. Aguon,
OG3-5(F), $55,526.00 pa; $26.70 phr; and

the GHURA Board recognizes it has the discretionary authority to go below or
beyond management's recommendations (i.e., OG3-2(A), $44,401.00 pla;
$21.35 p/hr through OG3-10(F), $74,306.00 p/a; $35.72 p/hr - maximum), but
supports management's request for the above-step recruitment; and

funding for this position is available from COCC Funds; and be it further
that in consideration of the applicant's exceptional knowledge and experience,

the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step requirement for:
Ms. Alicia P. Aguon, 0G3-5(F), $55,526.00 p/a; $26.70 p/hr.

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - AUGUST 28, 2020
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES:
NAYES:

ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

SEAL

Sabino Flores, Monica Guzman, George Pereda, Frank Ishizaki,
Anisia Delia

NONE

Joseph Leon Guerrero

NONE

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board

of Commissioners on August 28, 2020.

L

RAY S. TOPASNA
Secretary /| Executive Director




GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
ATURIDAT GINIMA YAN RINUEBAN SIUDAT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM: %—ﬁay S. Topasna, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001 PH On-Site
Certification Training

GHURA issued the above invitation for bid to procure professional training services for
Public Housing staff. The awarded vendor will be required to facilitate training and
certification testing for: (1) Uniform Physical Condition Standards (UPCS) as it applies to
REAC, and to aid in participants developing an understanding of the process of
inspections; (2) Project-Based Maintenance Management to provide Site/AMP Managers
training towards the development and understanding of their roles and responsibilities for
maintenance at their sites.

The IFB was advertised on November 27, 2019, December 3, 2019, and December 12,
2019. There were a total of four (4) potential bidders whom a copy of the bid packet was
provided to. Of the four (4) potential bidders, only on (1) had submitted a bid by the bid
deadline on December 26, 2019 — Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. (NMA).

An evaluation was conducted for the one (1) bid submission. The method of evaluation
was based on the lowest, most responsive, responsible bidder. Cost clarification
questions were sent to NMA in which they had responded adequately. The evaluation
committee determined that the sole submission from NMA met the minimum
specifications and the procurement requirements per the IFB.

Additionally, a letter was sent to the U.S. Housing and Urban Development office (HUD)
on February 17, 2020 requesting for a sole source approval. After HUD's review and
consideration, an approval was granted by letter dated on March 13, 2020.

Furthermore, GHURA is requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve an award
to Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. for Public Housing On-Site Certification Training at a
total amount of $68,958.00.

Attachments: Independent Cost Estimate (ICE)
Bid Abstract
NMA Updated Bid Price Form
GHURA's Determination of Cost Reasonableness
HUD’s Request for Sole Source Approval Letter

At the Regular Board Meeting of
August 28, 2020, a motion was
made by Chairman Flores and
seconded by Commissioner Pereda
to approve the Intent of Award,
IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001, PH On-
Site Certification Training in the
amount of $68,958.00. Without any
further discussion and objection,
the motion was approved,




November 15, 2019

To: File
a
From: Procurement /™
Subject: IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001

Public Housing On-Site Certification Training

Cost Estimate

Based on the Public Housing and Section 8 (HCV) On-Site Certification Training done in
2017, Quadel Consulting & Training, LLC was awarded the following:

2017
Description Qty [ Unit Cost Total
Project Based Maintenance Management 10 | § 823.21 $ 6,232.10
UPCS Fundamentals 38 | § 24092 | $ 9,154.96
Project Based Maintenance Management Exam 10 | *included
UPCS Fundamentals Exam 38 | *included
Total $15,387.06

The total IFB award in 2017 was $125,742.43 which included 17 courses, their respective

certification exams, training staff airfare, lodging, per diem, and transportation. This awarded

cost was shared between all divisions to include: Public Housing, Section 8, Guma

Trankilidat, Central Office Cost Center, and the Saipan Office.

Based on the last award in 2017 for the two training courses listed above, GHURA
establishes the Government estimate to be $15,500.00 for training and $10,000.00 for the

training venue, for a total estimate of $25,500.00 for the Public Housing On-Site Certification

Training.




31eq

_ \ |
L R ——r LT
e - | L
b lppz)< —VBA2E P L)Joz)zr ™ e 7
v ﬁ\\ 7 1”4 L oy
wLs (4 .
i vl . a A Lo3'h'g 1| aladi il (V| g4k 0CqL* djadl YN 1
pusa pg WoL-poad g apuman oEME TR LROGYCE b € z I H300\8 oN
ikuring any Ll g O L) pig aseg 3l pig aseg Laj pig aseq Wajl pig aseg 40 WY .umu_umm_._
“eegoegl onp |Es000Id
“ LIoE qu. Mnsg
) B e e e e v AT T S Ty &
o\u/e}_\-\_ \/J.v BNINWIL VOUYOIH 20 ans-nNe Brlsnal 21e@hng
L

Tog- cwe 38 RNk H4dd

%

Jopang annoaxg ‘eusedo] g Aey



Table 2 — Bid Price Form

Bid - , :
it Description: Qty: Unit Cost Sub-Total
PROJECT BASED MAINTENANCE
1 IvanaGEMENT 12 | $675p/p $8,100
2 |UPCS FUNDAMENTALS 38 | $1141 p/p $ $43,358
(a) PUBLIC HOUSING MAINTENANCE $150 p/p $1,800
MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION | 12
3 EXAM
(b) UPCS CERTIFICATION EXAM 38 | $150 p/p $5,700
4 [TRAINING VENUE 1 $1250 $10,000
TOTAL 68,958

SPECIAL NOTE: Quantity of attendees may be subject to increase. An addendum will be
issued to reflect any changes in this invitation for bid.

12



March 12, 2020

To: File
J
From: Procurement f_‘*”
Subject: IFB#GHURA-COCC-020-001

Public Housing On-Site Certification Training

GHURA has determined Nan McKay's bid to be fair and reasonable. Nan McKay's bid price
exceeded GHURA's ICE due to the ICE having been determined based on the previous
training award in 2017. The 2017 training awarded for the UPCS course was a standard 2-
day training, whereas the issued IFB specified a custom 5-day program for the same course.
GHURA’s request for a 5-day training schedule differs from the bidder's standard 2-day
training: in addition to the standard 2-day training schedule, 2 more days will be included as
on-site training/inspections; and 1 (last) day will incorporate a final overview of all materials
covered as well as the certification examination. The UPCS course will also include
information that includes the change from the UPCS Protocol to NSPIRE, which emphasizes
the focus on resident habitability and health and safety condition.

Nan McKay's cost for the standard 2-day UPCS training costs $700.00 per person. The
bidder's cost for GHURA's specified 5-day custom training schedule is $1,141.00, which
accounts for the developmental costs to incorporate an additional 3 days on top of the
standard 2-day program.

Nan McKay's cost for Project-Based Maintenance Management training is similar to what had
been awarded in 2017.



U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

,;’é | 'a‘:g Development
S % * 3
s 2 Honolulu Field Office
R st o 1132 Bishop Street, Suite 1400
# y Honolulu, Hawaii 98813
4 hﬂp:ﬂwww.hud.gov
March 13, 2020

Mr. Ray S. Topasna

Executive Director

Guam Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority

117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, Guam 96910

Dear Mr. Topasna:

SUBJECT:  Request for Sole Source Approval
IFB No.: GHURA-COCC-020-001

We are in receipt of your letter dated February 17, 2020, emails dated March 4, 8
and 11, 2020, requesting approval of a sole source bidder that responded to an Invitation

The following documents were attached with your letter:

Exhibit 1 — Published Notice;

Exhibit 2 — IFB and | (@ 2

Exhibit 3 — Emails to prospective bidders:
Exhibit 4 - Log of proposal received;
Exhibit 5 — Bid proposal;

Exhibit 6 — ICE vs proposal;

A

We have reviewed the exhibits provided and hereby approve the GHURA to
dt

proceed to award IFB No. GHURA-COCC-020-001 to Nan McKay and Associates,



If you have any questions, please contact Kevin Ho at (808) 687-6936 or by email
at kevin.ho @hud.gov.

se Wu
Director

Office of Public Housing



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2020-021

Moved By: FRANK T. ISHIZAKI Seconded By: SABINO P. FLORES
RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR THE GUAM HOUSING AND
URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 5104, Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated, the Board of
Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is given
the right and responsibility to govern and control the operations of the Authority, and to
establish policies for its day-to-day operations, and generally to undertake its
responsibilities as governing authority for the agency; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wishes to prudently exercise the authority given to
GHURA to address procurement compliance issues from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD): and

WHEREAS, GHURA's procurement shall conform to applicable Federal law and standards identified
in 2 CFR Part 200.317-326, HUD’s Annual Contribution Contract (ACC), and HUD
Handbook 7460.8 REV-2; and

WHEREAS, The attached updated Procurement Policy dated August 28, 2020 is in compliance with
the Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) between GHURA, and HUD, 2 CFR Part 200,
and applicable Local laws 5GCA Chapter 5 and 2 GAR Division 4; and

WHEREAS, GHURA hereby adopts the attached updated Procurement Policy as its own
regulations. In the event there is an inconsistency between Federal and Guam laws and
regulations and this Procurement Policy, Federal and Guam laws and regulations shall
control; and be it further

RESOLVED, thatthe GHURA Executive Director is the Chief Procurement Officer for all supplies and
services, and the Contracting Officer for construction contracts for the agency.

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - AUGUST 28, 2020
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES: Sabino Flores, Monica Guzman, George Pereda, Frank Ishizaki, Anisia Delia
NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: Joseph Leon Guerrero

ABSTAINED: NONE

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct
copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing
and Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners

on ﬁugust 28, 2020.

(SEAL) /@4//___

Rafr S. Topé’s:naw
Secretary/Executive Director




GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
ATURIDAT GINIMA YAN RINUEBAN SIUDAT

—

SUBJECT: Resolution Amending the Procurement Policy for the Guam Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: ?wRay S. Topasna, Executive Director

Under Title 5 Guam Code Annotated (GCA), Chapter 5, §5213, small purchases are defined as
any procurement that does not exceed $25,000 for supplies or services and does not exceed
$100,000 for construction.

§ 5213. Small Purchases.

Any procurement not exceeding Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) for supplies or services, and
not exceeding One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) for construction, may be made in accordance
with small purchase procedures promulgated by the Policy Office; provided, however, that procurement
requirements shall not be artificially divided so as to constitute a small purchase under this Section. The
Chief Procurement Officer, the Director of the Department of Public Works, or the head of an agency
utilizing this Section, shall submit a report to the Speaker of I Liheslaturan Guahan monthly as to
procurement exceeding Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) for supplies and services, or exceeding
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) for construction, pursuant to this Section.

SOURCE: GC § 6959.3. MPC § 3-204. Amended by P.L. 34-035:1
(Aug. 7, 2017).

The above document was signed into law on August 7, 2017, to become part of Public Law (P.L.)
34-35. GHURAs current Procurement Policy for small purchase and sealed bids require revision
to reflect Guam’s Procurement Law as referenced above. The current dollar threshold for small
purchases is any amount not exceeding $15,000.00 for general procurement; and any amount not
exceeding $50.,000.00 for construction. For sealed bids, the current dollar threshold is any amount
exceeding $15,000.00 for general procurement and $50,000.00 for construction that would require
a formal solicitation process.

GHURA requests from the Board of Commissioners to increase the dollar threshold of its
Procurement Policy for Small Purchases and Sealed Bids from $15.000.00 to $25,000.00 for
general procurement: and from $50,000.00 to $100.000.00 for construction.



GUAIML TAVUOIING AINND URNDAIN NLINGYYAL AU AIIUNIL X
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY-17-009A(1)

By: DOM

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR THE GUAM HOUSING AND
URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

Pursuant to Section 5104, Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated, the Board of
Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is
given the right and responsibility to govern and control the operations of the
Authority, and to establish policies for its day-to-day operations, and generally to
undertake its responsibilities as governing authority for the agency; and

the Board of Commissioners wishes to prudently exercise the authority given to
GHURA to address procurement compliance issues from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and

GHURA’s procurement shall conform to applicable Federal law and standards
identified in 2 CFR Part 200.317-326, HUD’s Annual Contribution Contract (ACC),
and HUD Handbook 7460.8 REV-2; and

The attached updated Procurement Policy dated July 28, 2017 is in compliance
with the Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) between GHURA, and HUD, 2 CFR
Part 200, and applicable Local laws 5GCA Chapter 5 and 2 GAR Division 4; and

GHURA hereby adopts the attached updated Procurement Policy as its own
regulations. In the event there is an inconsistency between Federal and Guam laws
and regulations and this Procurement Policy, Federal and Guam laws and
regulations shall control; and be it further

that the GHURA Executive Director is the Chief Procurement Officer for all supplies
and services, and the Contracting Officer for construction contracts for the agency.

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - JULY 28, 2017
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Thomas Borja, Joseph Leon Guerrero, Carl Dominguez, Eliza Paulino
NONE
George Santos, Annabelle Dancel, George Pereda

ABSTAINED: NONE

(SEAL)

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam
Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of
Commissioners on July 28, 2017.

;

ICHAEL J. DUENAS
Secretary/Executive Director



GHURA

PROCUREMENT POLICY

AUGUST 28, 2020
RAY S. TOPASNA
Executive Director

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procuremen t Policy
1 Resolution No. FY



Contents

l. GENERAL PROVISIONS ...ttt sttt s e s sna e e s ssaa e e s snaaeessans 3
. ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING ettt ittt ettt srrre s se e s s nanee e e e e e 4
I. PROCUREMENT PLANNING . ....cttiiiiiiiitiiittciitc ittt s s ssra e s s nba e e s 5
V. PURCHASING METHODS ... .ttt e e e e s s snrrer e s e e e 5
V. NOTIFICATION OF PROCUREMENT OVER $500,000........ccceueueruemerienirreieienenieneeseneesessesessesessesessensesenes 10
VI. COMMENTS CONCERNING SPECIFICATIONS .....coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciittccnrrt ettt 10
VII. L e e et e e e e s s e e et e e et e s s a et e e e e e e s rae e e e e e s as 11
VIII. COST AND PRICE ANALYSIS ...ttt ettt st ra e e s na e s s ebae e s enneee s 11
IX. SOLICITATION AND ADVERTISING ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ittt et e e snree e e e e s s 12
X. BONDING REQUIREMENTS ...ttt ettt e e s 14
XI. CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES ...cciiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeee ettt e e 15
XIl. CONTRACT PRICING ....ettiiiiitte ettt st e et s et e s s ba e e s amna e e e saanaeeesannneee s 16
XIII. CONTRACT CLAUSES ...ttt st e e e s e et e e e e s s s snbbeaaeeeesesaannne 16
XIV. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS ...coiiiiiiiiteetec ettt 17
XV. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND OVERSIGHT ..ccoiiiiiiiiiieeiii ittt 17
XVI.  SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS......uuiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie ettt 17
XVII. APPEALS AND REMEDIES ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiteeeet ettt sttt esemnn e e e s anneee s 18
XVIII.  ASSISTANCE TO SMALL AND OTHER BUSINESSES..........ccooviiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiciiccinccnccien 19
XIX. BOARD APPROVAL OF PROCUREMENT ACTIONS ....ooiiiiiiiiiitee ettt 20
XX. INTERPRETATION OF POLICY ..ociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin ittt 20
XXI. DELEGATION OF CONTRACTING AUTHORITY .eiiiiiiiiiiiieei ettt s 20
XXII. DOCUMENTATION ..ottt bbb e s ab s s saa s s e s sabas e s 21
XXHI. FUNDING AVAILABILITY .ottt st e s s e e ssnn e e e samnn e e e sannneee s 21
Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy

2 Resolution No. FY



PROCUREMENT POLICY

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Established for the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority by board action on July 28, 2017

Revision Dates: August 28, 2020

This Procurement Policy complies with the Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) between

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) and the Department of Housing & Urban
Development (HUD), 2 CFR Part 200, and applicable Guam 5GCA Chapter 5 and 2 GAR
Division 4. “In the event there is an inconsistency between Federal and Guam laws and
regulations and this Procurement Policy, Federal and Guam laws and regulations shall control.”

GENERAL PROVISIONS

General

GHURA shall provide for a procurement system of quality and integrity, provide for the fair and
equitable treatment of all persons or entities involved in purchasing by GHURA, ensure that
supplies and services (including construction) are procured efficiently, effectively, and at the most
favorable prices available to GHURA, promote competition in contracting, and assure that GHURA
purchasing actions are in full compliance with applicable Federal standards, HUD regulations, and
Guam Laws.

Application

This Procurement Policy shall apply to all procurements undertaken by GHURA. Where a
procurement involves the expenditure of federal or contract funds, including grants, GHURA shall
comply with such federal law and regulations which are applicable and may be in conflict with
this Procurement Policy.

Definition

The term “procurement,” as used in this Policy, means buying, purchasing, renting, leasing or
otherwise acquiring any supplies, services or construction. It also includes all functions that
pertain to the obtaining of any supply, service, or construction, including description of
requirements, selection and solicitation of sources, preparation and award of contract, and all
phases of contract administration.

Changes in Laws and Regulations
In the event any applicable law or regulation is modified, eliminated, or replaced, then to the

extent inconsistent with this Procurement Policy, said law or regulation shall automatically
supersede any inconsistent provision stated herein.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
3 Resolution No. FY



Public Access to Procurement Information

Most procurement information that is not proprietary, privileged or confidential is a matter of
public record and shall be available to the public to the extent provided in the Freedom of
Information Act.

Il. ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING

General

GHURA hereby establishes a code of conduct for ethics in procurement, and shall implement a
system of sanctions for violations of this code of conduct. This code of conduct is and shall be
consistent with applicable Federal and Guam regulations concerning ethics in procurement,
including conflicts of interest.

Conflicts of Interest

No employee, officer, Board member, or agent of GHURA shall participate directly or indirectly
in the selection, award, or administration of any contract if he or she has a conflict of interest,
either real or apparent. Such a conflict of interest would arise when:

* An employee, officer, Board member, or agent involved in making the award; or

« His/her relative (defined as father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, husband, wife,
father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law,
stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half-brother, or half-
sister); or

» His/her partner; or

* An organization which employs, is about to employ or is negotiating to employ, or has an
arrangement concerning prospective employment of any of the above;

has a financial or other direct or indirect interest or benefit from an individual or entity competing for
an award or being considered for a contract arising from a GHURA procurement.

Disclosure of Subsequent Employment

No employee or former employee of GHURA having official responsibility or involvement in a
procurement shall accept employment with any proposed or successful bidder, offeror, or
contractor with whom the employee or former employee dealt in an official capacity concerning
said procurement for a period of one year from the date of separation of employment from
GHURA.

Gratuities, Kickbacks, and Use of Confidential Information

No employee, officer, Board member, or agent of GHURA shall ask for or accept gratuities,
favors, or items of more than $5.00 in value from any contractor, potential contractor, or party
to any subcontract, and shall not knowingly use confidential information for actual or anticipated
personal gain.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
4 Resolution No. FY



Prohibition Against Contingent Fees

Contractors wanting to do business with GHURA must not hire a person to solicit or secure
a contract for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except for bona fide
established commercial selling agencies.

Joint Ventures, Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Transactions between GHURA and any joint venture, subsidiary, affiliate, or other entity in which
GHURA has any interest must comply with the conflict of interest rules contained in this
Procurement Policy. A person who is an employee, officer, Board member or agent of GHURA
and who also serves on another governing board of a joint venture, subsidiary, affiliate, or other
entity in which GHURA has any interest, may not participate in actions by GHURA that are
incidental to any agreements with the other entity.

Disciplinary Action

Any officer, employee, Board member, or agent of GHURA who violates any of the provisions of
this section shall be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary action consistent with
GHURA’s Code of Ethics and Standards of Conduct Policy. In all cases, GHURA will also
consider pursuing civil and administrative remedies available under applicable law.

II. PROCUREMENT PLANNING

Planning is essential to managing the procurement function properly. Hence, GHURA will
periodically review its record of prior purchases, as well as future needs to find patterns of
procurement actions that could be performed more efficiently or economically, maximize
competition and competitive pricing among contracts and decrease GHURA'’s procurement costs,
reduce GHURA administrative costs; ensure that supplies and services are obtained without any
need for re-procurement, e.g., resolving bid protests; and minimize errors that occur when there
is inadequate lead time. Consideration should be given to storage, security, and handling
requirements when planning the most appropriate purchasing actions.

V. PURCHASING METHODS
Petty Cash Purchases

Petty Cash purchases may be made using a Petty Cash Account. Petty Cash Accounts may be
established in an amount sufficient to cover purchases less than $100.00 per transaction per
day. Only one positive quotation is needed for Petty Cash purchases. GHURA shall ensure that
security is maintained and only authorized individuals have access to the Petty Cash Account.
This Account shall be reconciled and replenished periodically.

Micro Purchases

Micro Purchases may be made for all purchases under $500.00. For Micro Purchases, only

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
5 Resolution No. FY



one positive quotation is required. To the greatest extent feasible, and to promote competition,
micro purchases should be distributed among qualified sources.

Small Purchase Procedures

For any amounts above the Micro Purchase ceiling but not exceeding $25,000.00, and
$100,000.00 for construction, GHURA may use small purchase procedures. No less than three
offerors shall be solicited to submit price quotations, which may be obtained by fax, in writing, or
through e-procurement. Award shall be made to the qualified vendor that provides the best value
to GHURA. If non-price factors are used, they shall be disclosed to all those solicited. The names,
addresses, and/or telephone numbers of the offerors and persons contacted, and the date and
amount of each quotation shall be recorded and maintained as a public record. Any purchase of
$2,000.00 or more in the case of acquisitions for construction is subject to the Davis-Bacon Act.

For small purchases not exceeding $25,000.00, GHURA may use small purchase procedures
with one exception. Small purchase procedures must not be used for single or term contracts
for professional services, if the contract exceeds $25,000.00, GHURA shall not break down
requirements aggregating more than the small purchase threshold (or the Micro Purchase
threshold) into several purchases that are less than the applicable threshold merely to: (1)
permit use of the small purchase procedures or (2) avoid any requirements that apply to
purchases that exceed these threshold to the greatest extent feasible. To promote competition,
micro purchases should be distributed among qualified sources.

Sealed Bids

Sealed bidding shall be used for all contracts that exceed the small purchase threshold and that
are not competitive proposals or non-competitive proposals, as these terms are defined in this
document. Under sealed bids, GHURA publicly solicits bids and awards a firm fixed-price contract
(lump sum or unit price) to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms
and conditions of the Invitation for Bid (IFB), is the lowest in price. Sealed bidding is the preferred
method for procuring construction, supply, and non-complex service contracts that are expected
to exceed $25,000.00 or $100,000 for construction.

A. Conditions for Using Sealed Bids. GHURA shall use the sealed bid method if the
following conditions are present: (i) a complete, adequate, and realistic statement of
work, specification, or purchase description is available; (i) two or more responsible
bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the work; (iii) the contract can be
awarded based on a firm fixed price; (iv) and the selection of the successful bidder can
be made principally on the basis of the lowest price.

B. Solicitation and Receipt of Bids. An IFB is issued which includes the specifications and
all contractual terms and conditions applicable to the procurement, and a statement that
award will be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets the
requirements of the solicitation. The IFB will be publicly advertised, and must state the
time and place for both receiving the bids and the public bid opening. The IFB must define
the items or services in order for the bidder to properly respond. All bids received will be
date and time-stamped and stored unopened in a secure place until the public bid
opening. A bidder may withdraw the bid at any time prior to the bid opening.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
6 Resolution No. FY



C. Bid Opening and Award. Bids shall be opened publicly at the time and place prescribed
in the IFB. All bids received shall be recorded on an abstract (tabulation) of bids, and
then made available for public inspection. A firm fixed price contract will be made in
writing to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. The IFB may also specify that
factors such as special qualifications of potential contractors, inspection, testing, quality,
workmanship, and suitability for a particular purpose may be considered as a part of the
evaluation.

D. Noncompetitive —contracts

If only one responsive bid is received from a responsible bidder, award shall not be
made unless the price can be determined to be reasonable, based on a cost or price
analysis and that GHURA obtains HUD approval for contracts exceeding the Simplified
Acquisition Threshold or the GHURA's small purchase limit, whichever is less.

E. Mistakes in Bids. Correction or withdrawal of bids may be permitted, where appropriate,
before bid opening by written, e-mail, or facsimile notice received in the office designated
in the IFB prior to the time set for bid opening. After bid opening, withdrawals of bids may
be permitted only as stated in the advertisement for bids, which normally will require a
bidder to give written notice of his claim to withdraw his bid within two business days after
the conclusion of the bid opening procedure, and only if the bidder can show by clear and
convincing evidence that a mistake of a nonjudgmental character was made, the nature
of the mistake, and the bid price actually intended. A low bidder alleging a nonjudgmental
mistake may be permitted to withdraw its bid if the mistake is clearly evident on the face
of the bid document but the intended bid is unclear or the bidder submits convincing
evidence that a mistake was made. All decisions to allow correction or withdrawal of a bid
shall be supported by a written determination signed by the Contracting Officer. After bid
opening, changes in bid prices or other provisions of bids prejudicial to the interest of
GHURA or fair competition shall not be permitted. GHURA shall notify a bidder within 5
business days of its decision regarding the bidder’s request to withdraw its bid. Correction
or withdrawal of bids after bid opening may also be allowed in cases where GHURA has
reason to believe that a mistake may have been made in a bid.

F. Tie Bids: Tie bids, quotes or proposals are defined as instances of identical total pricing
or scoring from responsive/responsible vendors that meet all requirements as set forth in
the bid, quote or proposal documents. Instances of a tie will be resolved by a drawing or
other similar random method. The resolution of the tie will be announced in advance giving
all "tie" vendors an opportunity to attend. The drawing or other random method for
resolving a tie will be conducted in the presence of three (3) individuals who will attest to
the results.

Competitive Proposals

Unlike sealed bidding, the competitive proposal method permits consideration of technical factors
other than price, discussion with offerors concerning offers submitted, negotiation of contract
price or estimated cost and other contract terms and conditions, revision of proposals before the
final contractor selection, and the withdrawal of an offer at any time up until the point of award.
Award is normally made on the basis of the proposal that represents the best overall value to

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
7 Resolution No. FY



GHURA, considering price and other factors, e.g., technical expertise, past experience, quality
of proposed staffing, etc., set forth in the solicitation and not solely the lowest price.

A. Conditions for Use. Where conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bidding,
competitive proposals may be used. Competitive proposals are the preferred method for
procuring professional services that will exceed the small purchase threshold.

B. Form of Solicitation. Other than Architectural Engineering (AE) services, competitive
proposals shall be solicited through the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP). The
RFP shall be publicized and shall clearly identify the importance and relative value of each
of the evaluation factors as well as any sub factors and price. A mechanism for fairly and
thoroughly evaluating the technical and price proposals shall be established before the
solicitation is issued. Proposals shall be handled so as to prevent disclosure of the number
of offerors, identity of the offerors, and the contents of their proposals until after award.
GHURA may assign price a specific weight in the evaluation criteria or GHURA may
consider price in conjunction with technical factors; in either case, the method for evaluating
price shall be established in the RFP.

C. Evaluation. Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources.
The proposals shall be evaluated only on the criteria stated in the RFP. Where not apparent
from the evaluation criteria, GHURA shall establish a written Evaluation Plan for each RFP.
Generally, all RFPs shall be evaluated by an appropriately appointed Evaluation
Committee. The Evaluation Committee shall be required to disclose any potential conflicts
of interest and to sign a Non-Disclosure statement. An Evaluation Report, summarizing the
results of the evaluation, shall be prepared prior to award of a contract.

D. Negotiations. Negotiations shall be conducted with the first highest rated offeror, and
unless price can’t be agreed, then go to the next highest rated offeror. This determination
is based on the relative score of the proposals as they are evaluated and rated in
accordance with the technical and price factors specified in the RFP. These offerors shall
be treated fairly and equally with respect to any opportunity for negotiation and revision of
their proposals. No offeror shall be given any information about any other offeror’s proposal,
and no offeror shall be assisted in bringing its proposal up to the level of any other proposal.

Discussions are tailored to each offeror’s proposal, and shall be conducted by the contract
administrator with each offeror within the competitive range. The primary object of
discussions is to maximize GHURA'’s ability to obtain best value, based on the requirements
and the evaluation factors set forth in the solicitation. The contract administrator shall
indicate to, or discuss with, each offeror still being considered for award, significant
weaknesses, deficiencies, and other aspects of its proposal (such as cost, price, technical
approach, past performance, and terms and conditions) that could, in the opinion of the
contract administrator, be altered or explained to enhance materially the proposer’s
potential for award. The scope and extent of discussions are a matter of the contract
administrator’'s judgment.

The contract administrator may inform an offeror that its price is considered by GHURA to
be too high, or too low, and reveal the results of the analysis supporting that conclusion.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
8 Resolution No. FY



It is also permissible to indicate to all offerors the cost or price that the GHURA's price
analysis, market research, and other reviews have identified as reasonable. “Auctioning”
(revealing one offeror’s price in an attempt to get another offeror to lower their price) is
prohibited. Proprietary information from competing offerors shall not be disclosed to the
public or to competitors.

E. Award. After evaluation of the revised proposals, if any, the contract shall be awarded to
the responsible firm whose technical approach to the project, qualifications, price and/or
any other factors considered, are most advantageous to GHURA (with price and other
factors considered) provided that the price is within the maximum total project budgeted
amount established for the specific property or activity.

F. Architectural /Engineering (A/E) Services. GHURA must contract for A/E services using
Quialification Based Selection (QBS) procedures, utilizing a Request for Qualifications (RFQ).
Sealed bidding shall not be used for A/E solicitations. Under QBS procedures, competitors’
gualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to
negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. Price is not used as a selection factor under
this method.

Noncompetitive Proposals

A. Conditions for Use. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole-source) may be
used only when the award of a contract is not feasible using small purchase procedures,
sealed bids, cooperative purchasing, or competitive proposals, and if one of the following
applies:

1. Theitem is available only from a single source, based on a good faith review of available
sources; or

2. An emergency exists that seriously threatens the public health, welfare, or safety, or
endangers property, or would otherwise cause serious injury to GHURA, as may arise
by reason of a typhoon, flood, earthquake, epidemic, riot, equipment failure, or similar
event. In such cases, there must be an immediate and serious need for supplies,
services, or construction without delay such that the need cannot be met through any of
the other procurement methods, and the emergency procurement shall be limited to
those supplies, services, or construction necessary simply to meet the emergency. A
minimum of three informal solicitations must be obtained, and a statement to file must
be provided detailing all aspects of the emergency situation and that certified statement
must be provided to the Governor and Speaker; or

3. HUD authorizes the use of noncompetitive proposals; or
4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.

B. Justification. Each procurement based on noncompetitive proposals shall be supported
by a written justification for the selection of this method. The justification shall be approved
in writing by the responsible Contracting Officer. Poor planning or lack of planning is not
justification for emergency or sole-source procurements. The justification, to be included
in the procurement file, should include the following information:

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
9 Resolution No. FY



1. Description of the requirement;
2. History of prior purchases and their nature (competitive vs. noncompetitive);
3. The specific exception in 24 CFR 85.36(d)(4)(i)(A) through (D) which applies;

4. Statement as to the unique circumstances that require award by noncompetitive
proposals;

5. Description of the efforts made to find competitive sources (advertisement in trade
journals or local publications, phone calls to local suppliers, issuance of a written
solicitation, etc.);

6. Statement as to efforts that will be taken in the future to promote competition for the
requirement;

7. Signature by the Contracting Officer’'s supervisor (or someone above the level of the
Contracting Officer); and

8. Price Reasonableness. The reasonableness of the price for all procurements based on
noncompetitive proposals shall be determined by performing an analysis, as described
in this Policy.

Cooperative Purchasing/Intergovernmental Agreements

GHURA may enter into State and/or local cooperative or intergovernmental agreements to
purchase or use common supplies, equipment, or services. The decision to use an interagency
agreement instead of conducting a direct procurement shall be based on economy and efficiency.
If used, the interagency agreement shall stipulate who is authorized to purchase on behalf of the
participating parties and shall specify inspection, acceptance, termination, payment, and other
relevant terms and conditions. GHURA may use Federal or State excess and surplus property
instead of purchasing new equipment and property if feasible and if it will result in a reduction of
project costs. The goods and services obtained under a cooperative purchasing agreement must
have been procured in accordance with 2CFR Part 200.

V. NOTIFICATION OF PROCUREMENT OVER $500,000

The Attorney General, the Deputy Attorney General or such Assistant Attorney General, or such
Special Assistant Attorney Generals designated or appointed by the Attorney General, shall act as
legal advisor during all phases of the solicitation or procurement process when the amount of award
is estimated to be $500,000.00 or more. When such attorney approves contracts, said attorney
shall determine the correctness and legality of the form.

VI. COMMENTS CONCERNING SPECIFICATIONS

Each IFB or RFP issued shall contain instructions for comments concerning specifications or other
provisions in the IFB or RFP to be submitted to the Contracting Officer or other individual identified

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
10 Resolution No. FY



by GHURA. All timely comments received shall be considered prior to the time set for award of the
contract.

VII. ICE

For all purchases above the Petty Cash/Micro Purchase threshold, GHURA shall prepare an
Independent Cost Estimate (ICE) prior to solicitation. The level of detail shall be commensurate
with the cost and complexity of the item to be purchased.

VIIl.  COST AND PRICE ANALYSIS

GHURA shall require assurance that, before entering into a contract, the price is reasonable, in
accordance with the following instructions.

Petty Cash and Micro Purchases

No formal cost or price analysis is required. Rather, the execution of a contract by the
Contracting Officer (or designee) through Purchase Order or other means, shall serve as the
Contracting Officer’'s determination that the price obtained is reasonable, which may be based
on the Contracting Officer’s prior experience or other factors.

Small Purchases

A comparison with other offers shall generally be sufficient determination of the reasonableness
of price and no further analysis is required. If a reasonable number of quotes is not obtained to
establish reasonableness through price competition, the contract administrator shall document
price reasonableness through other means, such as prior purchases of this nature, catalog prices,
the contract administrator’s personal knowledge at the time of purchase, comparison to the ICE,
or any other reasonable basis.

Sealed Bids

The presence of adequate competition should generally be sufficient to establish price
reasonableness. Where sufficient bids are not received, and when the bid received is
substantially more than the ICE, and where GHURA cannot reasonably determine price
reasonableness, GHURA must conduct a cost analysis, consistent with federal guidelines, to
ensure that the price paid is reasonable.

Competitive Proposals

The presence of adequate competition should generally be sufficient to establish price
reasonableness. Where sufficient bids are not received, GHURA must compare the price with the
ICE. For competitive proposals where prices cannot be easily compared among offerors, where
there is not adequate competition, or where the price is substantially greater than the ICE, GHURA
must conduct a cost analysis, consistent with Federal guidelines, to ensure that the price paid is
reasonable.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
11 Resolution No. FY



Negotiation of Profit

Profit must be negotiated as a separate element of the price for each contract in which there is
no price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and
reasonable profit, consideration must be given to the complexity of the work to be performed,
the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, the
quality of the contractor’s record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding
geographical area for similar work.

Contract Modifications

A cost analysis, consistent with federal guidelines, shall be conducted for all contract
modifications for projects that were procured through Sealed Bids, Competitive Proposals, or
Non-Competitive Proposals, or for projects originally procured through Small Purchase
procedures and the amount of the contract modification will result in a total contract price in
excess of $25,000.00 or $100,000.00 for construction.

IX. SOLICITATION AND ADVERTISING

Method of Solicitation

A. Petty Cash and Micro Purchases. GHURA may contact only one source if the price is
considered reasonable.

B. Small Purchases. Quotes may be solicited orally, through fax, or by any other reasonable
method.

C. Sealed Bids and Competitive Proposals. Solicitation must be done publicly. GHURA
shall use one or more of the following solicitation methods, provided that the method
employed provides for meaningful competition.

1. Advertising in newspapers of general circulation.

2. Advertising on GHURA'’s web page.

3. E-Procurement. GHURA may conduct its public procurements through the Internet using
e- procurement systems. However, all e-procurements must otherwise be in compliance
with 2CFR Part 200, State and local requirements, and the Authority’s procurement
policy, and may include posting on the Guam Department of General Services Agency’s
central electronic procurement website.

Time Frame

For purchases of more than $25,000.00 or $100,000.00 for construction, the public notice should
run not less than once each week for two consecutive weeks.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
12 Resolution No. FY



Form

Notices/advertisements should state, at a minimum, the place, date, and time that the bids or
proposals are due, the solicitation number, the GHURA representative responsible for the
procurement, and a brief description about the matters or items to be procured.

Time Period for Submission of Bids

A minimum of 15 days shall generally be provided for preparation and submission of sealed bids
and 15 days for competitive proposals; however, subject to the requirements of the Guam
Procurement Law, a shorter time is possible for a particular acquisition if supported by written
determination.

Cancellation of Solicitations

A. An IFB, RFP, or other solicitation may be cancelled before bids/offers are due if:

1.

2.

4.

The supplies, services or construction are no longer required; or
The funds are no longer available; or

Proposed amendments to the solicitation are of such magnitude that a new solicitation
would be best; or

When it is in the best interests of GHURA.

B. A solicitation may be cancelled and all bids or proposals that have already been received
may be rejected if:

1.

2.

6.

The supplies or services (including construction) are no longer required; or
Ambiguous or otherwise inadequate specifications were part of the solicitation; or
All factors of significance to GHURA were not considered; or

Prices exceed available funds and it would not be appropriate to adjust quantities to
come within available funds; or

There is reason to believe that bids or proposals may not have been independently
determined in open competition, may have been collusive, or may have been submitted
in bad faith; or

For good cause of a similar nature when it is in the best interest of GHURA.

C. The reasons for cancellation shall be documented in the procurement file and the reasons
for cancellation and/or rejection shall be provided upon request.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy

13 Resolution No. FY



D. A notice of cancellation shall be sent to all bidders/offerors solicited and, if appropriate,
shall explain that they will be given an opportunity to compete on any re-solicitation or
future procurement of similar items.

E. If all otherwise acceptable bids received in response to an IFB are at unreasonable prices,
an analysis should be conducted to see if there is a problem in either the specifications or
GHURA'’s cost estimate. If both are determined adequate and if only one bid is received
and the price is unreasonable, the Contracting Officer may cancel the solicitation.

F. If problems are found with the specifications, GHURA can either amend the procurement
or cancel the solicitation.

Petty Cash/ Micro Purchases

Authorized credit card holders may use a credit card for Petty Cash/Micro Purchases. Petty
Cash/Micro purchases made with a credit card must follow all procurement procedures associated
with such purchase. Cash advances are prohibited. Credit card purchases will be subject to
scheduled and unscheduled audits on a year round basis.

X. BONDING REQUIREMENTS

The standards under this section apply to construction contracts or equipment contracts that
exceed $25,000.00. There are no bonding requirements for small purchases or for competitive
proposals. GHURA may require bonds in these latter circumstances when deemed appropriate;
however, non-construction contracts should generally not require bid bonds.

A. Bid Guarantee (applicable to construction and equipment contracts exceeding $25,000).

All bids must be accompanied by a negotiable bid guarantee which shall not be less than
five percent (5%) of the amount of the bid. The bid guarantee may be a certified check,
bank draft, U.S. Government Bonds at par value, or a bid bond secured by a surety
company acceptable to the U.S. Government and authorized to do business in Guam
where the work is to be performed

B. Assurance of Completion. For construction contracts exceeding $50,000, the successful
bidder shall furnish:

1. A performance and payment bond in a penal sum of 100 percent of the contract price;
or

2. A 20 percent cash escrow (Only for Public Housing projects); or

3. A 25 percent irrevocable letter of credit (Only for Public Housing projects.)

C. These bonds must be obtained from guarantee or surety companies acceptable to the U.
S. Government and authorized to do business in the State where the work is to be
performed. Individual sureties shall not be considered. U. S. Treasury Circular Number 570
lists companies approved to act as sureties on bonds securing Government contracts, the

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
14 Resolution No. FY



maximum underwriting limits on each contract bonded, and the States in which the company
is licensed to do business. Use of companies on this circular is mandatory.

XI. CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES
Contractor Responsibility

GHURA shall not award any contract until the prospective contractor, i.e., low responsive bidder,
or successful offeror, has been determined to be responsible. A responsible bidder/offeror must:

A. Have adequate financial resources to perform the contract.

B. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule and
requirements, taking into consideration all the bidder’s/offeror’s existing commercial and
governmental business commitments;

C. Have a satisfactory performance record;
D. Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics;

E. Have the necessary organization, experience, accounting and operational controls, and
technical skills, or the ability to obtain them;

F. Have the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment and facilities, or the
ability to obtain them; and,

G. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and
regulations, including not be suspended, debarred or under a HUD-imposed Limited
Debarment Participant (LDP).

If a prospective contractor is found to be non-responsible, a written determination of non-
responsibility shall be prepared and included in the official contract file, and the prospective
contractor shall be advised of the reasons for the determination.

Suspension and Debarment

Contracts shall not be awarded to debarred, suspended, or ineligible contractors. Contractors may
be suspended, debarred, or determined to be ineligible by HUD in accordance with HUD
regulations (24 CFR Part 24) or by other Federal agencies, e.g., Dept. of Labor for violation of
labor regulations, when necessary to protect housing authorities in their business dealings.

Vendor Lists

All interested businesses shall be given the opportunity to be included on vendor mailing lists. Any
lists of persons, firms, or products which are used in the purchase of supplies and services
(including construction) shall be kept current and include enough qualified sources to ensure
competition. Also, GHURA shall not preclude potential bidders from being included on vendor
mailing list during the solicitation period

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
15 Resolution No. FY



Xill.  CONTRACT PRICING
ARRANGEMENTS Contract Types

Any type of contract which is appropriate to the procurement and which will promote the best
interests of GHURA may be used, provided the cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost and
percentage-of-construction-cost methods are not used. All solicitations and contracts shall
include the clauses and provisions necessary to define the rights and responsibilities of both the
contractor and GHURA.

Any use of a time and material type of contract must be supported by a written determination as
to why no other contract type is suitable. GHURA may use time and material type contracts only
after a determination that no other contract is suitable and only if the contract includes a ceiling
price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk.

Options

Options for additional quantities or performance periods may be included in contracts, provided
that:

A. The option is contained in the solicitation;

B. The option is a unilateral right of GHURA;

C. The contract states a limit on the additional quantities and the overall term of the contract;
D. The options are evaluated as part of the initial competition;

E. The contract states the period within which the options may be exercised;

F. The options may be exercised only at the price specified in or reasonably determinable from
the contract; and

G. The options may be exercised only if determined to be more advantageous to GHURA than
conducting a new procurement.

Xlll.  CONTRACT CLAUSES

All contracts should identify the contract pricing arrangement as well as other pertinent terms and
conditions, as determined by GHURA.

Additionally, the forms HUD-5369, 5369-A, 5369-B, 5369, 5370, 5370-C, and 51915-A, which
contain all HUD-required clauses and certifications for contracts of more than $50,000, as well as
any forms/clauses as required by HUD for small purchases, shall be used in all corresponding
solicitations and contracts issued by this Authority. To the extent that Appendix Il to 2 CFR Part
200 — Contract Provisions for non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards contains any
Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy

16 Resolution No. FY



additional required contract clauses, then such clauses shall also be included. Where appropriate,
GHURA may require a value engineering clause in contracts for construction projects of sufficient
size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions.

XIV. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

GHURA and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. This includes procuring only items
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the
value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeds $10,000; procuring solid waste
management waste services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and
establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified
in the EPA guidelines.

XV. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND OVERSIGHT

GHURA shall maintain a system of contract administration and oversight designed to ensure that
contractors perform in accordance with their contracts or purchase orders. These systems shall
provide for inspection of supplies, services, or construction, as well as monitoring contractor
performance, status reporting on major projects including construction contracts, and similar
matters. For cost-reimbursement contracts, costs are allowable only to the extent that they are
consistent with the cost principles in HUD Handbook 2210.18.

XVI. SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS
General

All specifications shall be drafted so as to promote overall economy for the purpose intended and
to encourage competition in satisfying GHURA needs. Specifications shall be reviewed prior to
issuing any solicitation to ensure that they are not unduly restrictive or represent unnecessary or
duplicative items. Function or performance specifications are preferred. Detailed product
specifications shall be avoided whenever possible. Consideration shall be given to consolidating or
breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. For equipment purchases, a
lease versus purchase analysis should be performed to determine the most economical form of
procurement.

Limitations
The following types of specifications shall be avoided:
A. Geographic restrictions not mandated or encouraged by applicable Federal law (except for

A/E contracts, which may include geographic location as a selection factor if adequate
competition is available);

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
17 Resolution No. FY



B. Brand name specifications (unless the specifications list the minimum essential
characteristics and standards to which the item must conform to satisfy its intended use; a
“brand name or equivalent” description may be used as a means to define the performance
of other salient requirements of the procurement).

Additionally, to promote full and open competition, the following shall be avoided:

1. Specifications that contain features peculiar to a product of one manufacturer

2. Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do
business.

3. Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding.

Nothing in this procurement policy shall preempt any State licensing laws.

Contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, and invitations
for bids or requests for proposals are excluded from competing for such procurements.

XVII. APPEALS AND REMEDIES

General

GHURA will attempt to resolve all contractual and administrative issues informally and without
litigation. GHURA is also bound by the procurement protest mechanism contained in 5 GCA
Chapter 5 Article 9. Disputes will not be referred to HUD unless all administrative remedies have
been exhausted. When appropriate, a mediator may be used to help resolve differences.

Informal Appeals Procedure

To issue a bid protest/appeal for contracts of $25,000.00 or less for general procurement and
$100,000.00 or less for construction, the bidder/contractor may request to meet with the appropriate
Contract Officer.

Formal Appeals Procedure for Contracts More Than $25,000.00 for general procurement
and $100,000.00 for construction.

A. Bid Protest. Any actual or prospective contractor may protest the solicitation or award of a
contract for serious violations of the principles of this Policy. Any protest against a solicitation
must be received before the due date for the receipt of bids or proposals, and any protest
against the award of a contract must be received within ten (10) calendar days after the
contractor receives notice of the contract award, or the protest will not be considered. All bid
protests shall be in writing, submitted to the Contracting Officer or designee, who shall issue
a written decision on the matter. The Contracting Officer may, at his/her discretion, suspend
the procurement pending resolution of the protest if the facts presented so warrant.

C. Contractor Claims. All claims by a contractor relating to performance of a contract shall be
submitted in writing to the Contracting Officer for a written decision. The contractor may
request a conference on the claim. The Contracting Officer's decision shall inform the

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
18 Resolution No. FY



contractor of its appeal rights to the next higher level of authority in GHURA. Contractor
claims shall be governed by the Changes clause in the form HUD-5370

XVIII. ASSISTANCE TO SMALL AND OTHER BUSINESSES
Required Efforts

Consistent with Presidential Executive Orders 11625, 12138, and 12432, Section 3 of the HUD Act
of 1968, and 2.2-4310 of the Procurement Act, all feasible efforts shall be made to ensure that small
and minority-owned businesses, women’s business enterprises, service disabled veteran owned
businesses, and other individuals or firms located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing
in the area of GHURA project are used when possible.

GHURA shall adopt a Section 3 Policy

Efforts to utilize small and minority-owned businesses, women’s business enterprises, service
disabled veteran-owned businesses and other businesses shall include, but shall not be limited to:

A. Including such firms, when qualified, on solicitation mailing lists;

B. Encouraging their participation through direct solicitation of bids or proposals whenever they
are potential sources;

C. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to
permit maximum participation by such firms;

D. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage
participation by such firms;

E. Including in contracts, to the greatest extent feasible, a clause requiring contractors, to
provide opportunities for training and employment for lower income residents of the project
area and to award subcontracts for work in connection with the project to business concerns
which provide opportunities to low-income residents, as described in 24 CFR Part 135 (so-
called Section 3 businesses); and

F. Requiring prime contractors, when subcontracting is anticipated, to take the positive steps
listed above.

G. Goals shall be established periodically for participation by small businesses, minority-owned
businesses, women-owned business enterprises, labor surplus area businesses, service
disabled veteran-owned businesses, and Section 3 business concerns in GHURA prime
contracts and subcontracting opportunities.

Definitions

1. A small business is defined as a business that is: independently owned; not dominant in
its field of operation; and not an affiliate or subsidiary of a business dominant in its field of
Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy
19 Resolution No. FY



operation. The size standards in 13 CFR Part 121 should be used to determine business
size.

A minority-owned business is defined as a business which is at least 51% owned by one
or more minority group members; or, in the case of a publicly-owned business, one in which
at least 51% of its voting stock is owned by one or more minority group members, and whose
management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more such individuals.

A women’s business enterprise is defined as a business that is at least 51% owned by a
woman or women who are U.S. citizens and who control and operate the business.

A “Section 3 business concern” is as defined under 24 CFR Part 135.

A service disabled veteran-owned business means a business concern that is at least
51% owned by one or more service disabled veterans or, in the case of a corporation,
partnership, or limited liability company or other entity, at least 51% of the equity ownership
interest in the corporation, partnership, or limited liability company or other entity is owned
by one or more individuals who are service disabled veterans and both the management
and daily business operations are controlled by one or more individuals who are service
disabled veterans.

XIX. BOARD APPROVAL OF PROCUREMENT ACTIONS

The GHURA Procurement Policy and all its revisions must be submitted to the Board of
Commissioners for review and approval.

All contracts in an amount of $25,000.00 or more for general procurements, and $100,000.00 or
more for construction procurements shall be submitted to the Board of Commissioners for review
and approval prior to awarding a contract. Furthermore, any change orders, contract modifications
and/or amendments for such contracts that exceed the original contract amount must be submitted
for Board approval prior to any contract modification.

XX.

INTERPRETATION OF POLICY

In the event of ambiguity, contradiction or unforeseen situations not addressed clearly or directly
in this policy, the Executive Director shall use his/her best professional judgment in making a
decision that will best protect the interest of GHURA and ensure GHURA’s compliance with
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.

XXI.

DELEGATION OF CONTRACTING AUTHORITY

While the Executive Director is responsible for ensuring that GHURA'’s procurements comply with
this Policy, the Executive Director may delegate all procurement authority as is necessary and
appropriate to conduct the business of the Agency.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy

20 Resolution No. FY



Further, and in accordance with this delegation of authority, the Executive Director shall establish
operational procedures to implement this Policy.

XXII.

DOCUMENTATION

GHURA must maintain records sufficient to detail the significant history of each procurement action.
These records shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to, the following:

A.

F.

G.

Rationale for the method of procurement (if not self-evident) including any pre-procurement
review;

Rationale of contract type and pricing arrangement (also if not self-evident) including any
technical specifications, requests for proposals or invitations for bid, and independent cost
estimates;

Reason for accepting or rejecting the bids or offers;

Basis for the contract price (as prescribed in this handbook);

A copy of the contract documents awarded or issued and signed by the Contracting
Officer;

Basis for contract modifications; and

Related contract administration actions.

The level of documentation should be commensurate with the value of the procurement. Records
are to be retained for a period of seven years as required by 5 GCA 5249 after final payment and all
matters pertaining to the contract are closed.

XXIII.

FUNDING AVAILABILITY

Before initiating any contract, GHURA shall ensure that there are sufficient funds available to cover
the anticipated cost of the contract or modification.

Revised August 28, 2020 GHURA Procurement Policy

21 Resolution No. FY



MOVED BY:

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2020-022

SABINO P. FLORES SECONDED BY: GEORGE F. PEREDA

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL PHA PLAN (FY2021) AND CAPITAL FUND
PROGRAM (CFP) FIVE YEAR ACTION PLAN (2020-2024).

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

pursuant to Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act (QHWRA) of
1998, the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority is mandated to develop and
submit a Public Housing Agency (PHA) Annual Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD); and

the PHA Annual Plan is a comprehensive guide to the Authority's policies, programs,
operations, and strategies and progress for meeting local housing needs and goals for
implementation for the upcoming fiscal year; and

the CFP Five Year Action Plan describes the capital improvements to be undertaken
within the 5-year period. The capital improvements are necessary activities to ensure
long-term physical and social viability of the PHA's public housing developments; and

the goals and objectives of the Annual PHA Plan (FY2021) and Capital Fund Program
(CFP) Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024) is consistent with Guam's Five-Year
Consolidated Plan, which identifies and prioritizes the housing and community
development needs of Guam; and

this Plan was prepared in accordance with the PHA Plan requirements of 24 CFR Part
903; now, therefore, be it

that the Board of Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
hereby approves the Annual PHA Plan (FY2021) beginning October 1, 2020 and Capital
Fund Program (CFP) Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024).

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - AUGUST 28, 2020
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES:
NAYES:

ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

(SEAL)

Sabino Flores, Monica Guzman, George Pereda, Frank Ishizaki,
Anisia Delia

NONE

Joseph Leon Guerrero

NONE

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam
Housing and Urban Renewal Board of Commissioners

on Au 28, 2020.

- :

Ray SI. Topagna
Secretary/Executive Director




ST, GHURA

2? %
@ % Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
% = Aturidat Ginima® Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
% & 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910 EQUAL HOUSING
. & Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 3007563 + TTY: (671) 472-3701 OFFORTUHITY
A, 1562 M Website: www.ghuriorg

The PHA Plan is a comprehensive guide to public housing agency (PHA) policies, programs,
operations, and strategies for meeting local housing needs and goals. There are two parts to the
PHA Plan; the Five-Year Plan, which is submitted to HUD once every five years and the PHA Annual
Plan, submitted annually. The Five-Year Plan describes the mission of the agency and agency's
long-range goals and objectives for achieving its mission over the five-year period. The PHA Annual
Plan describes how GHURA has achieved the goals set in the Five-Year Plan and any changes to
program policies. GHURA submitted it's latest five year Plan last year along with the first year
Annual Plan. The second year Annual Plan is due to HUD no later than October 18, 2020. The
following outline changes and/or significant updates.

- The Plan was available for public comment from June 9, 2020 to July 28, 2020.

- BOC ratified the implementation of the HUD-Approved Success Rate Payment Standard
Schedule for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. Payment Standards have been
changed from the 40th percentile of the FMR to 50th percentile.

- Notice to the public of the COVID-19 Statutory and Regulatory Waivers adopted by GHURA
available on GHURA’s website.

- GHURA continues to address public housing unit modernization with Capital Fund Program
(CFP) funds. Addressing our aging units deteriorated sewer waste and water lines and
antiquated electrical system are also being addressed with CFP funds.

= LBP has been identified in 67 of our units in the G250 and G100 sites. The A/E Division is
working towards abatement.

- GHURA’s progress in meeting its mission and goals:
= Number of vouchers leased under programs such as Project-based Elderly Program, HUD-

Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing Program (VASH), Mainstream, Non-Elderly Disabled
(NED)

- Increasing availability of affordable housing - Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Guam
has added another 116 units through the construction of Summer Town Estates Ill with 66
units and Ironwood Villa Del Mar Phase | with 50 units.

- Guam has completed the renovation of a 14 unit apartment complex for an affordable rental
program to be operated by a local non-profit organization.

- A total of 3 families were assisted under the Renewal Affordable Homes Program on a lease
with option to purchase.

- GHURA hired a Consultant to conduct a Housing Study and Needs Assessment for the island
of Guam to better understand the local housing market.

= Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) program graduated two participating families during calendar
year 2019. FSS Program Coordinators supported a total of 150 program participants/families;
121 from the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program and 29 from Public Housing (PH)
Program.

- Construction Contractors working on GHURA projects, as of February 2020 hired 4 Section 3
residents as Laborers for part time work.

- GHURA Property Site Managers continue to monitor the Deconcentration of Poverty and
Income-Mixing requirements. The average income at all AMP sites are below the established
income range, there are no concentrated poverty areas.

- GHURA continues to work and partner with other agencies and non-profit organizations to
bring outreach and education to families residing in PH.

GHURA is required to submit a Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five Year Action Plan annually to identify
and prioritize its modernization needs. GHURA is on a rolling Five Year Action Plan, rolling plans are
updated annually and submitted annually. The Five Year Action Plan includes the work item
projected and the budget for each year covered.

IO R O 0T GTsC T “:“'l = TS W T Cl a0 TS,
The Chicf Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and 1elephone numbers



URBAYN

v:“ﬂousl'hpe
O’Qm.f N ""y

L] I%’, l;‘

Guam’s
Annual PHA Plan (FY2021)
and
Capital Fund Program (CFP)
- Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024) .




Annual PHA Plan

HUD-50075-ST



Annual PHA Plan U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development OMB No. 2577-0226

(Standard PHAs and
Troubled PHAS)

Office of Public and Indian Housing Expires: 02/29/2016

Purpose. The 5-Year and Annual PHA Plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic PHA policies, rules, and
requirements concerning the PHA's operations, programs, and services, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the
public of the PHA's mission, goals and objectives for serving the needs of low- income, very low- income, and extremely low- income

families.

Applicability. Form HUD-50075-ST is to be completed annually by STANDARD PHAs or TROUBLED PHAs, PHAs that mest the
definition of a High Performer PHA, Small PHA, HCV-Only PHA or Qualified PHA do not need to submit this form.

Definitions.

(1) High-Performer PHA — A PHA that owns or manages more than 550 combined public housing units and housing choice vouchers, and
was designated as a high performer on both of the most recent Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) and Section Eight
Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) assessments if administering both programs, or PHAS if only administering public
housing,

(2) Small PHA - A PHA that is not designated as PHAS or SEMAP troubled, or at risk of being designated as troubled, that ownser
manages less than 250 public housing units and any number of vouchers where the total combined units exceeds 550.

(3) Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Only PHA - A PHA that administers more than 550 HCVs, was not designated as troubled in its most
recent SEMAP assessment and does not own or manage public housing.

(4) Standard PHA - A PHA that owns or manages 250 or more public housing units and any number of vouchers where the total combined
units exceeds 550, and that was designated as a standard performer in the most recent PHAS or SEMAP assessments.

(5) Troubled PHA - A PHA that achieves an overall PHAS or SEMAP score of less than 60 percent,

(6) Qualified PHA - A PHA with 550 or fewer public housing dwelling units and/or housing choice vouchers combined, and is not PHAS or
SEMAP troubled.

PHA Information.

A.l | PHA Name: Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authoritv PHA Code: _GQ001

"1 PHA must identity the specific' location(s) wiiere the proposed PHA Plan, PHA Plan7i.énents, ead 4} information relewint lo the

PHA Type: [ Standard PHA [] Troubled PHA

PHA Plan for Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY): _ 10/2020

PHA Inventory (Based on Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) units at time of FY beginning, above)

Number of Public Housing (PH) Units 750 Number of Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs) 2,585 Total Combined
Units/Youchers 3.335

PHA Plan Submission Type: [ Annual Submission [JRevised Annual Submission

Availability of Information. PHAs must have the elements listed below in sections B and C readily available to the public. A

public hearing and proposed PHA Plan are available for inspection by the public. At 2 minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans,

including updates, at each Asset Management Project (AMP) and main office or central office of the PHA. PHAs are strongly

encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on their official website. PHAs are also encouraged to provide each resident council a
copy of their PHA Plans,

The Annual PHA Plan and Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five Year Action Plans are available to
the public for review and comment. Due to COVID-19 pandemic and the Government of Guam’s
social distancing requirements the Plans will be made available electronically on GHURA’s
website at www.ghura.org. If you would like to obtain a copy or require additional information
please contact Katherine E. Taitano, Chief Planner, at 475-1322 or email at katherine@ghura.org
or Alvina C. Castro, Program Coordinator, at 475-1401 or email alvina@ghura.or

The Public’s comments are imporiant to us, GHURA will advertise for public comment from June
9, 2020 to July 28, 2020. Comments, questions, concerns, should be sent to GHURA via mail at
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, Guam 96910, fax number (671) 300-7565, TTY/TDD number
(671) 472-3701 or email to katherine@ghura.org or alvina@ghura.org. The final date for

submission of public comments is July 28, 2020.

Page 1 of 19 form HUD-50075-8T (12/2014)




] PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a Joint PHA Plan and complele table below)

i . i 4
Participating PHAs PHA Code Program(s) in the Consortia Program(s) not in ihe No. of Units in Each Program

Consortia PH HCV

Lead PHA:

Annual Plan Elements

B.1

Revision of PHA Plan Elements.
(a) Have the following PHA Plan elements been revised by the PHA?

Y N
BX] Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs
Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection, and Admissions.
B Financial Resources.
Rent Determination.
Operation and Management.
X| Grievance Procedures.
X] Homeownership Programs.
Community Service and Self-Sufficiency Programs.
Safety and Crime Prevention.
Pet Policy.
<] Asset Management,
B Substantial Deviation.
Significant Amendment/Modification

®O

—

UO0O00000xOOAa
RKRXX

—_—
o
—

1f'the PHA answered yes for any element, describe the revisions for each revised element(s):

Rent Determination

In the Board of Commissioners (BOC) meeting of Augisi 2655319 GHURA Board ratificd the
implementation of the HUD-Approved Success Rate Payment Standard Schedule for the Section 8 Housing
Choice Voucher Program (HVC) and Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities to

determine the maximum subsidy for participants.

BOC-approved payment standards were being calculated at the 40™ percentile of the Fair Market Rent
(FMR), GHURA Section 8 HCV applicants and participants were experiencing difficulty finding a unit to
lease as a result of low payment standard amounts per bedroom size that are no longer competitive in the
private rental market. Therefore a change to the success rate payment standards amounts was requested
and approved to be calculated at the 50™ percentile.

The GHURA's policies governing rents charged for public housing dwelling units, have not been revised
since the Authority’s prior submission. However, the Public Housing Flat Rent Schedule and Section 8
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program Payment Standard Schedule is updated annually based on the

applicable Fair Market Rent (FMR). The updated Flat Rent Schedule for Public Housing is effective

Page 2019 form HUD-50075-ST (122014)




September 1, 2019 and Payment Standard Schedule for HCV Program to include the adjusted applicable
percentile is effective August 26, 2019.

Other Comments:

Deconcentration and Other Policies that Govern Eligibility, Selection and Admissions

Latest update and changes to the HCV Administrative Plan (Admin Plan) were incorporated into the Policy
and adopted by GHURA Board of Commissioners on September 27, 2018, changes were provided in last
year’s Annual Plan. Any additional changes will be reviewed and prepared for implementation as
necessary.

The latest update to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) was submitted to HUD
August 31, 2017, additional updates are being worked on to include the latest regulatory and/or
discretionary changes. These updates will be reviewed by the GHURA Board of Commissioners prior to
implementation.

COVID-19

On April 10, 2020, HUD published Notice PIH 2020-05 pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security (CARES) Act and in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Notice outlines HUD
COVID-19 Statutory and Regulatory Waivers available to PHAs for the Public Housing Programs.
GHURA adopted the temporary waivers necessary to keep the Public Housing Programs operational to the
extent feasible and allows GHURA to continue to carry out its mission to provide decent, safe, and sanitary
affordable housing for low-income families amidst the pandemic. A chart of the temporary waivers
adopted by GHURA can be viewed on GHURA’s website at www.ghura.org,

Significant Amendment/Modification
See Exhibit A

(c) The PHA must submit its Deconcentration Policy for Field Office review.

Included as Exhibit B is the Deconcentration Policy (ACOP 3/1/17).

B.2

New Activities.
(a) Does the PHA intend to undertake any new activities related to the following in the PHA’s current Fiscal Year?

Y N

[] & Hope VI or Choice Neighborhoods.

[ ¥ Mixed Finance Modernization or Development.
[_]. Demplition and/or Disposition. i S
[ [éiiiated Housing for Elderly and/or Disabled Families. s
X Conversion of Public Housing to Tenant-Based Assistance.

X Conversion of Public Housing to Project-Based Assistance under RAD.

X Occupancy by Over-Income Families.

Bd Occupancy by Police Officers.

[ Non-Smoking Policies.

X Project-Based Vouchers.

X Units with Approved Vacancies for Modernization.

X Other Capital Grant Programs (i.e., Capital Fund Community Facilities Grants or Emergency Safety and Sccurity Grants),

I {4

(b) If any of these activities are planned for the current Fiscal Year, describe the activities. For new demolition activities, describe
any public housing development or portion thereof, owned by the PHA for which the PHA has applied or will apply for demolition
and/or disposition approval under section 18 of the 1937 Act under the separate demolition/disposition approval process. Ifusing
Project-Based Vouchers (PBVs), provide the projected number of project based units and general locations, and describe how
project basing would be consistent with the PHA Plan.

Page 3 0f 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)




Demolition and/or Disposition
GHURA 99, Agat

The interest by a private developer of the purchase of a sliver parcel of property in Agat located in the
GHURAD99 area was presented last year. The disposition of any property is a lengthy process, GHURA
continues to pursue this matter. The property is a portion of Lot 350-5 located along the northwest portion
of the parcel in Agat GHURA 99. The approximate size of the parcel is between 1500sm to 4000sm. The
sale of this parcel has been requested for the purpose of providing for an easement to serve adjacent parcel
owners presently without an identified public easement.

Conversion of Public Housing to Project-Based Assistance under RAD

Although GHURA is not actively pursuing the conversion of its’ Public Housing stock to the HUD Rental
Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program, GHURA is continuing the review of this program to determine
its applicability and benefit to the island’s inventory of Public Housing.

Units with Approved Vacancies for Modernization

GHURA continues to include Unit Modernization in the Annual Statement and Evaluation Report
(50075.1). GHURA requests HUD approval for the modernization of units that are in need of major
renovation work, Capital Fund Program funds are used to address these vacant units under modernization.
Units identified for modernization require the unit to become or remain vacant to accomplish the
improvements necessary, modernization may require up to eight months for completion. GHURA finds that
not only does the age of the unit play a huge factor in the need for modernization and upgrade, but the
deterioration of the sewer waste and water lines, and the antiquated electrical system are also the cause for
the need for modernization. Some units are around 49 years old, the sewer lines originally installed were
galvanized pipes that have since and continue to severely corrode and the electrical systems are obsolete,
parts are no longer being sold to perform the necessary maintenance of the system.

Other Capital Grant Programs
GHURA will continue to consider the possibility and feasibility of applying for the Capital Fund Financing

Program (CFFP). GHURA public housing units were constructed between 29 and 49 years ago. With
Guam’s harsh weather and the age of the units most of the units are in need of renovation/modernization.
With the limited capital funds and the projected renovations to the public housing units and sites needed to
provide decent, safe, sanitary homes for our residents other funding opportunities need to be researched.

Lead Based Paint. A re-testing for the presence of Lead-Based Paint (LBP) was conducted on 145 Public
Housing units at AMPs 1 (Agana Heights, Mongmong and Sinajana), 2 (Yona), & 4 (Toto). Out ofthe 145
units a total of 67 units tested positive for lead. GHURA identified funding under the Capital Fund
Program (CFP) to address the abatement of the units affected. As the Architectural/Engineer Division
works towards abatement GHURA zositir:=+to provide the tenants of the effected unit’s notices of the
presents of LBP. A report of any individuals tested positive for lead poisoning is given to HUD quarterly.

Use of Operating Reserves. GHURA is looking into the possibility of using operating reserves to address
project-specific activities in order to maintain the efficient management operations of public housing units.
Projects that are being considered are:
* Construction of an open-air canopy above existing basketball courts and/or playground facilities
located on the AMP sites;
* Removal and installation of new or repair of existing fencing at the AMPs’ site fence line and
offices;
* Installation of lighting at fence line for security purposes;
* Purchase and installation of security cameras with security monitoring services;
e  Support of resident programs;
e Other project-specific activities include, but are not limited to, improving curb appeal
(maintenance costs, non-routine or capital expenses).

Page 4 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)




Wait List. AMP 1 (Agana Heights, Mongmong, Sinajana, Asan) wait list has been closed as of September
28,2018, AMP 2 (Yona, Talofofo, Inarajan) and AMP3 (Agat, Merizo, Umatac) is open and does not have
an anticipated date to close the wait list at this time, AMP4 (Toto, Dededo) closed their application wait list
on October 1, 2019 with no anticipated re-opening date. Section 8 wait list was last opened in October
2018 for a period of five days. Section 8 selected 1,800 pre-applications through an electronic lottery
system to establish a two-year waiting list. However, Section 8 anticipates re-opening the wait list in March
2020. Section 8 Project-Based Rental Housing Program for elderly families only opened their wait list from
January 13, 2020 through March 13, 2020. The Multifamily Housing Program for the elderly, Guma
Trankilidat, opened their wait list for a period from January 6, 2020 through February 7, 2020.

B3 [ Civil Rights Certification,
Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Reguiations, must be submitted by the PHA
as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan,

B.4

Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.

(a) Were there any findings in the most recent FY Audit?

Y N
(]
(b) If yes, please describe:

The Findings identified in the single audit for Year Ended September 30, 2018 are as follows:
1. Finding No. 2018-01 (Material Weakness, Supportive Housing for the Elderly, Eligibility - Late

Annual Recertification)

e Cause: The PSM failed to adhere to existing policies and procedures to conduct tenant eligibility
properly and in a timely manner. Additionally, there is a lack of internal control monitoring or
review procedures in place to ensure the adequacy and completeness of the tenant recertification.

2. Finding No. 2018-02 (Material Weakness, Supportive Housing for the Elderly, Eligibility -

Documentation form HUD 50059)

e Cause: There is a lack of internal control monitoring to ensure that tenant files are independently
reviewed for completeness prior to tenant certification GHURA lacks proper tenant file
maintenance. The Property Site Manager did not adhere to the internal control procedures to
complete all the required documents at the time of the annual or recertification process. There is
a lack of internal control monitoring or review procedures in place over the initial and annual
recertification process.

3. Tinding No. 2018-03 (Significant Deficiency, Supportive Housing iri Eldeily, Cligibility —File

Maintenance

e Cause: There is a lack of internal control to ensure that tenant files are independently reviewed
for completeness prior to tenant certification GHRUA lacks proper tenant file maintenance. The
Property Site Manager did not adhere to the internal control procedures to complete all the
required documents at the time of the annual or recertification process. There is a lack of internal
control monitoring or review procedures in place over the initial and annual recertification
process.

4, Finding No. 2018-04 (Significant Deficiency, Supportive Housing for the Elderly, Special Tests
and Provisions — Housing Inspections)

o Cause: The PSM failed to adhere to existing policies and procedures to conduct housing
inspections according to scheduled time frames to coincide with the annual inspections prior to
tenant recertification in a timely manner. Additionally, there are no independent internal control
monitoring or review procedures in place to ensure the adequacy and completeness of the
admission and certification of tenants.

Page S of 19 form HUD-50075-8T (12/2014)




et
- T

5. Finding No. 2018-05 (Material Weakness, Public and Indian Housing, Eligibility — File

Maintenance and Missing Documentation)

» Cause: It appears that the Public Indian Housing personnel did not adhere to the internal control
procedures in ensuring that all the required documents are complete and accurate at the time of
the recertification process.

6. Finding No. 2018-06 (Material Weakness, Public and Indian Housing, Eligibility — Form HUD

50059)

¢ Cause: It appears that the Public Indian Housing personnel did not adhere to the internal control
procedures in ensuring that all the required documents are complete and accurate at the time of
the recertification process.

7. Finding No. 2018-07 (Material Weakness, Public and Indian Housing, Eligibility — Annual

Certification)

e Cause: There is a lack of internal control monitoring procedures to ensure that tenants are
recertified in a timely manner.

8. Finding No. 2018-08 (Significant Deficiency, Low Income Housing Assistance Program, Special

Tests and Provisions — Annual Inspections)

e Cause: The Authority lacks effective internal controls to monitor and ensure that all units a¢
inspected annually in a timely manner.

9. Finding No. 2018-09 (Significant Deficiency, Low Income Housing Assistance Program, Special

Tests and Provisions — Community Service)

* Cause: There appears to be a lack of internal controls and monitoring procedures to ensure that
adult family member is in compliance with the community service requirement,

10. Finding No. 2018-10 (Significant Deficiency, Section § Housing Choice Voucher Program,

Eligibility — Form HUD 50058 Discreparicies)

¢ Cause: There is a lack of internal control monitoring procedures over tenant folder reviewto
ensure that all required documents are complete and accurate at the time of admission or
recertification. Quality control procedures have not been fully implemented to ensure that case
files are well-managed and properly maintained.

I'l. Finding No. 2018-11 (Significant Deficiency, Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program,

Eligibility — Criminal Activity)

* Cause: The Authority did not adhere to its administrative plan for screening applicants and
tenants for family behavior or suitability for tenancy.

12. Finding No. 2018-12 (Significant Deficiency, Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, Rental
and Housing Assistance Payment — Rent Reasonableness)

* Cause: Prior the amendment, the Authority’s administrative plan did not specifically address the
segregation of the duties for this function. Additionally, the data base had not been thoroughly
reviewed to ensure all.nnassisted units included all ngcessary information for comparability.

GHURA has completed its Corrective Action Plan to resolve all Findings listed above. Full FY2018 Audit
can be found Additional information regarding the FY2018 Audit may be reviewed in the Office of Public
Accountability’s web site at www.opaguam.org.

Progress Report.

Provide a description of the PHAs progress in meeting its Mission and Goals described in the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan,

Meeting the Statement of Housing Needs and Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs

Project-based Elderly Program

Guam has 112 Project-based Elderly Program vouchers which are 100% leased up. The Section 8 Project-
based Voucher Program is rental housing assistance program for elderly families. Unlike the Section 8
tenant-based program, the Project-based subsidy is attached to specific units. The assistance does not move
with the family. In Guam the Project-based Program subsidizes 112 rental units at the Summer Town
Estates in Dededo.

Page G of 19 form HUD-50075-8T (1212014)




HUD-Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing Program (VASH)

Guam currently receives a total of 56 VASH vouchers with 45 leased up. Guam will continue to apply for
additional funding to help more of our homeless veterans and their families afford decent, safe, and sanitary
housing.

Mainstream

Guam was awarded 11 Mainstream Housing Program vouchers in 2018; all vouchers are leased up. These
vouchers assist non-elderly persons between the ages of 18-61 with disabilities who are transitioning out of
institutional or other segregated settings; at serious risk of institutionalization; homeless; or at risk of
becoming homeless.

Non-Elderly Disabled (NED)

Guam currently has 175 NED vouchers. The NED vouchers assist very low-income non-elderly disabled
families and individuals with permanent housing. The recipients of NED vouchers are non-elderly head of
household, co-head or spouse that is disabled.

Family Unification Program (FUP)

FUP vouchers are for families for whom the lack of adequate housing is a primary factor in the imminent
placement of the family’s child, or children, in out-of-home care; of the delay in discharge of child, or
children, to the family from out-of-home care. This program also includes an 18-month Voucher for youth
at least 18 years old and not more than 21 years old who left foster care at age 16 or older and who do not
have adequate housing. The FUP program is available only to families who are referred by Department of
Health and Social Services (DPHSS), Division of Public Welfare (DPW), and Bureau of Social Services
Administration (BOSSA). Guam has 133 FUP vouchers, currently 130 are leased up.

It has been determined that part of the reason that some of the vouchers are not fully leased up is that some
individuals and families are having a hard time leasing a unit not only due to rental subsidy not at arate that
is marketable, but that families are finding it hard to find one and two bedroom units available for rent.

Multi-family Program

Guam continues to operate Guma Trankilidat, a project-based rental assistance program that has a total of
49 units available for the elderly and adults with disabilities. This program is limited to very-low income
individuals whose head of household, spouse, or sole member is elderly or persons with a disability.
Additionally, of the 750 Public Housing units, 82 are for the elderly.

Increasing Availability of Affordable Housing (Other Programs)
Guam increases( #ue availatility of decent, safe, and affordable housing through several progiams, ;% s-

Guam continues to meet the priorities set forth in the 5-Year Consolidated Plan to increase the availability
of affordable housing. As previously reported Guam'’s participation in the Low Income Housing Tax Credit
(LIHTC) program has thus far completed 333 affordable LIHTC rental units which includes 240 units
geared towards the Elderly. Since the last reporting Guam has added another 116 units through the
construction of Summer Town Estates Il with 66 units, and Ironwood Villa Del Mar Phase [ with 50 units,
These units were completed and placed in services in 2019 and will serve LMI families. An additional 132
rental units for LMI families are anticipated to be completed by this year, Ironwood Villa Del Mar Phase 11
with 68 units, and Summer Town Estates IV with 64 units.

Guam continues to support affordable housing through the rehabilitation of structures that are converted as
affordable housing; through the construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of housing for sale as
affordable housing; and through the LIHTC program. Guam continues to provide decent, safe, and
affordable housing. This reporting period, Guam has completed the renovation of a 14 unit apartment
complex for an affordable rental program to be operated by a local non-profit organization. A totalof 3

Page 7 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (122014)




families were assisted under the Renewal Affordable Homes Program on a lease with option to purchase,
with one closing during this period.

Housing Study

To better understand the local housing market, GHURA hired a Consultant to conduct a Housing Study and
Needs Assessment for the island of Guam. The goal is for the Consultant, whose expertise is in housing
issues, to identify existing and future housing stock with the community; assess the existing housing
conditions; identify the demographic and market demands (present and future); and identify critical housing
gaps and issues.

Occupancy Levels (HCV/S8, PH, Guma' Trankilidat)
The following tables are intended to provide a snapshot of GHURAs available units under the HCV, PH

and Guma’ Trankilidat programs by occupancy level and racial analysis and wait list status as of February
29, 2020:

Page 8 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (1272014)




sl

ES'STI60 OTHVOVED oI

L Sjueua] jejpo | 951

0t (0P 01 [0ES TR v T s 98y
91 (4200 Apapiy £l O0ES O 0TS 1Uay iz 4 pi-gg ally
gl Pajgesicy 1z (UTE O [0]15 ey st : P5-§T 28y
S paddesipunyy 61 ML Mgy L ¥e- 81 08y
‘umopyearg faappy Jo pagesioypaddesypuey IMOPYEAIY] Juay Jurmay oy ealg 33y plowpmmel| jo peajy

o wanmag o o UOISKIIPY MON! | SER[ALUOH
ISEFO'O1S Sutosu] EIuUY adeisay T woemag ¢
D0'EZLE0LTS WU (Y (@10, €2 woeapag 1 ¥rl PUR[S[ 2L IO URIBARH 2ATEN
L6 L W2y ke ), aFsay 1L WOCIPY £ ol uBysY
00'091°TLS iy Ry (e ) UIOOIPaY 0 UENSR]Y BATENG URIDU] RO LAWY
oo's AV oferaay €l woomag | 1 ; prig
J0ns d Vi |ew, 0 waoIpay ¢ ¥ M
ozl SR o IBPUIL) WMOLETUY
Ll s21dnon 9l smdsiH-uoN rE PIOYISNOH JO peal] ofepy
61 sofdng ) onmwelsipy zzl PISYRSIOH JO peal apewad

umopqualy a21s Apweg

Moy ey Py

MO Ry 1apuan

SIVLOL LHOddH

moday ansnelg et I, - SUPsy] uoRwIRIID)

L# dWY - Buisnoy ongng

ViNnHO

form HUD-50075-5T (12/2014)

Page 9 of 19



4 FIS61IS| OT/FO/E0 IR
SJuBu j, 18y, LS
Tl DOFE 1 L0g] U0y 0 ISL o0y
S (+29) Apapiz 0z N0ES ©1 L0T$ 1wy 12 pL-gc oty
91 pPAlgw=Ia ET 008 ©1 1014 1uay il $E-cT 2Ry
z padduapuny Rl 001§ ©1 03 1uay s1 FZ- 81 28y
umOpy ey Apaappi e papyesigypaddeaipuey MO PHHILY JUDY JUEED | ok nmopyeaag 39y plugasnoy jo pealy
i
1 WoLIPay 9 o UOISSIPY MBI I8 553| JUOH
1eeL1zs duIeIU] ERULY ITBIIAY 6 wooipay § .
OUSTA T LEES SWUDUY [ENUUY B0 ), Lt woospag ¢ €51 PUEJS] OLI9R,] IQ/UBITEMRY ANBN
05°C8S Ay neun) afriaay 9L WoMpag € zl URISY
O EZrELs pUEHISULITET ST 9¢c uiolpag z 0 UTSHLY PANTNAITIPU] UBRDLIa WY,
uoos dVH 23eraay g wivoIpaty | 0 Houjy
00os dVH B0} 0 WOOIPIL] (3 T M
IUMOPHBILE UOIIEINIJE]) JUIY TWAMOPYUIIF] I WOLIPIY INMOPHEALY DBY
g€l sy 0 DPUIL) uMOUU[)
(4] sojdnog LS owuedsi |-uoN it PIOYIsNO| | JO P} | VN
6 s313my o suedsiy uz|) PlOYSSNUL] JU pRap] 2(Biuag
rnaupyuaag s {uueyg rumopyrasg Anayy IUAMOPYEILY JIPUIDY
SIVLOL LHO4TH
jaoday 2nsnES JuBua g, - BuUNSITY WO BIYIIAD)
£906-68.L (129) xed Z906-68L (129) Z# JIWV . L586-L2% (L49) 1L
SL696 weng 'euoy ‘ajolyn seloy ‘21 OL# eseg 8)|S ISEIUINOG -
ALINNLHOddO 10ZE-24% (L29) ‘ALL - G952-00t (129) XBd - L596-L2p (1£9) :auolgd P
ONISNOH 1¥ND3 01696 ND "BUElBUIG "aNUSNY BPIUBA USIG L1 L s* “ay
UBYEND jepnis Ueqanuly ueA EBWIUIG JepLn)y .
fMuoyiny jemeusy ueqin pue Buisnoy wens - M .W
VANHD m
fer @

form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)

Page 10 of 19



sakul } QEIP 1RO OZ/P/ED IR
i SuUBUL |FI0.L 981

4 00FS O 10€% Wy 8 457 99y
9€ (+TY) A=ap1a [43 DOLE O 10T% way £F pL-SC ady
0E pagesig €T 0028 M 101wy sel p5-5g 28y
¥ paddedipuu) | LE 001% @ 0f way 01 vz - 81 93y
STMODY R .ﬁ—-—ﬂ-k..ﬂ 40 _uo—n-lﬂ_ehuur_n_:ﬁ-_ pusagj nMopyRAIE] JuUaYy RLLLLEN umapyeasgy UH.J..__ _.—_.u-—udq--.— 3o peaHy
0 wooIpag 9 I UOISSUUPY MON] 18 §SI[2Wo] T

IRFOLUG1S AWLIU] [BRUUY AARIAAY IE woapag ¢
00 FGr ESSES JUOSU| [BNuLy [T0| 0¢ woopay ¢ 1Lt PUB|S] DLIDE | WAO/UMIBATE SANOA
89'1LS oy juuna] oFeosy cF mooIpag] § T sy
DOZEE'ELS U207 IMTH2 ] 1910,] 1+ WOQIpag] T 0 UTHSIY DATIEN/URIPH] UBDLIOUWN
00os dVH =friaay It waoipag | 0 yorig
00°0% 4V Moy, 0 WoaIpag () € AYM
u-_-.e——-__-x-._ﬂ.-.— ﬂc_u’——._..--__.ﬂv 1wy UMDY RASE Q.h_mu E-Ir.-n-uﬂ u..—.’a-uj.lﬂ..—m HHIM—
1€1 Sap e, 0 . JAPUATY uMOUNUTY
1T sajdno) 981 Jwwdsy -uoN 8r PIOY3sSNO}| JO PO} 38N
€ sojdmg 0 smedsiTy gcT- PIOTASNOTT JO PUSIT O[BUD.T
TuMOpYRIag] 7S kg msmopyRag LUy TMMODPYRILG JapUar)
STIV.LOL LU0d3d

J10day 21ISHEIS JUBUA |, - SUNSIT UONEIYNIID)
5155-595 (129) :xed #586-595 (LL9) . ZOEL-G2P (129) (1oL
eauQq oeysebe  1eBy ‘eseg o}is 1SeMUINOS £ JINY
ALINNLHOdEO LOLE-ZLY (1497 "ALL - G954-00€ (148) *XBd - 1686-LLv (1.L9]) BuUDUd

SNISNOH ¥ND3

01696 N9 'BUElEWS "aNUaAY BPIUSA USIE 2LL
UBYEND 1BPNIS UBGENUIY UBA BWILIS) JEPLINYY
Auoyiny |emeusy ueqsn pue Buisnoy wens)

VdHD

B,
o,
n\..« )

form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)

Page 11 of 19



1aq

9S:65:60 0Z/v0/E0  Amg

SINVNA | [¥I0L 5T

ST 0DFS O 1OES WAy <1 +6L Aty
Le +29) Apapia s€ ODES 03 10T$ Wy <k bL-5¢ a8y
61 pajqesiq cF 00Z$ 01 101% oy L91 $6-67 98y
I paddearputa | 1€ 0013 01 0§ 1wy L ¥Z - 81 98y
rusopyeang {1ap|g Jo paiqusigy/paddeaipusy) FUAMOPY I VU Jueud | % wnopyedaq 33y pjoyasnop] jo peEal
0 woospag] 9 4 UOISSTIUPY MIN] 18 §S3]MU0f T

TI'STI'TZS Swioauy [enuuy oFmnay 81 woodpaq] §
00 FTL EEL'SS IWOUT [Ty (W0 ] T WOOIpI § T61- PUB|S] 31J190J GIQ/UBIEME]T 241N
05 191% 1uay Jurua ] admasy €01 wompay g 4 UBIS Y
00°69F LES Wy Juea ], [mog ve woospag ¢ 0 USRIV JAREN/UBIPO] UBILDWY
RTES JVIT9%wony 6 woo1pag | I Joug
009ZT1S dvilmeg 0 woonpag = MYM
H o'-n-f_ﬂdhﬂ Gﬁ_uﬂ_q—o_wu ._.-.?..H._ u_.-.sc_uv—ﬂuhﬂ_ Uﬂ.._mw EO:.-“Z—_ n..:’-—-wu—lahm Y
181 sapw,| 0 13puat) umounury
&l saydnon b4 aruedsip-uop 2 PIOY2SNAH JO prap 2w
43 sa|fuly 0 auudsiy vLl PIOYasNoH JO peapy s[ewa,|
umopyraag g Anuorg UMOpYRAIg] Apotogry IUMODYRIAG Jpuan)
STVLOL 1804493

1oday Jsne)g Juenay - Bunsiy voyvIYNIA)
Lw8L-22v (L29) :xed , 9ZEL-52¥ (LL9) ‘v# dNY . LG86-22% (L29) oL
Susplep 0jo] aueT luoQ /Z# 9seq 9)|S WayHON v dNY |
ALINNLIHOddO F0L€-24¥ (1L9) "ALL - G98/-00E (120) XBd - LGBB-ZLF (120) .elolg PR

DNISNOH TYND3

0OLEDS N9 .mcﬂ.—m:_w ‘SNUany epiuan, usig LLL
UBYEND) JEPNIS UBGaNURY UBA BUNUIS) jBpUN)Y
Auoyiny |emeuesy ueqin pue Buisnoy wens

VAIHD

form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)

Page 12 of 19



sl

EQFTS | OTAVED  ®ed

sjuvna ] vI0, 6+
9 HPS 01 [Ors Uy 9z +ci 0y
|43 (429 Sprapya 2 DOES 01 [OTS Wy 1T pL-SS By
Ll PRjgEsICE 81 DOTS M Lo [§ ey Z pS-cT odv
0 paddenipuey] 9l H01S O 0y way Q rE - 81 28y
Mo pyraag] Aj3apy o pajqeacypadduipueyy IMOPAITAI] Juay Jura] :umopyoasf 28y ployasnol] jo peafy
0 oampadg 9
LE DO LS DN [ENLNY DERIDAY 5] WooIpag <
00 LEHrapss QWOOU] TeNmny 0T, Q0 Hooapa Figh PUB[S[ 2108 TROMUEITEMEH SATIEN
£eSR1S juay jiwua | a8maay? 0 WORPE € PE uBtsy
o' 16 TR Jta [ [e0 ], 0 weoapsg O URNEE|Y DAl pAMRI] NEDIS0Y
DO0s AV H *Eueay 6L wooIpag | 0 Youjg
oos dVH 1¥el 0 wooapag (3 £ apA
IUAOPYEMIY UOfRjRaR]) U IHMOPHRIIY 2E1G WI00IPIF THADPHNAIY 39y
0 SO e, L] Iapua g WO
S sa[dnog 6t otumdsig-tioN 0l PIOUASNOH JO PR 2[E[
¥ LB 0 onnxisipy 6f Plotpaw] 30 Peal] dBWway
SUMOPHERIY] 2215 Ape ] smopyEalg Sy MMOPHTALY JIpUI)

SIVIOL L304d3d

OupyDjuTL], vuns)
poday) anspeg Jurua], - SUPSIT BONEIGILD))

jeplpjuel] ewng
fjuoyiny jemausy ueqin pue BuisnoH weng

form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)

Page 13 0f 19



Improve Community Quality of Life and Economic Vitality

Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS)

REAC inspection was conducted in September 2019 on AMPs 1, 2, 3 and 4. The overall PHAS score is 80,
designation status is Standard Performer. HUD Notice PTH 2020-05 effective April 10, 2020 includes the
temporary suspension of the PHAS. GHURA staff continues to work hard to increase the score.

Safety

AMP] continues to have a good relationship with each Mayor from the four (4) sites: Asan, Agana Heights,
Sinajana and Mongmong. Each site has a Neighborhood Watch Program (NWP), any concerns/updates
occur quickly through the NWP and/or Mayor’s Office. Outreach efforts are on-going as each site
encourages more recruitment of volunteers to participate in the NWP to help make their sites safe.

AMP?2 development consists of 163 public housing units located in three villages in the south
eastern part of the island. Ninety nine of the 163 units are located in the village of Yona, where it
appears that crime is more prevalent.

A handful of residents living in the Yona and Talofofo Public Housing are actively engaged in the
NWP. The Inarajan site has not been able to get enough volunteers to establish an NWP, The
Guam Police Department (GPD) staff have connected with our Public Housing residents by
participating in Town Hall Meetings in an effort to recruit more residents into the

NWP. Although the NWP program has impacted the village who participate in many positive
ways, resident volunteers have voiced that there is just too much crime happening island-wide and
have focused efforts within their assigned pocket areas.

The village of Yona currently does not have a Mayor who normally takes the lead in coordinating
and facilitating activities aimed towards crime prevention in the neighborhood. Without the
stability of a Mayor, residents have done their best to work directly with GPD’s patrol division to
alert them of any known crimes in the area.

AMP2 staff and management continue to provide the residents with the necessary means to keep
their units safe. At the residents’ requests, we approved for the installation of security cameras (at
their expense), additional exterior unit lighting, and extra window locking mechanisms.

Outreach efforts with GHURA’s Public Housing Division and the GPD continue. The partnership
with GPD has proven to be beneficial in our efforts to reduce the crime rates within the
developments.

AMP3 recently completed the clearing of debris along the perimeter of the G99 site and the
installation of a new fence, changing the height from 4° to 6” high. The new fence not only will
deter tenants from throwing their trash over the fence, but will also deter unauthorized access.

AMP4 works with the village Mayors from both Toto and Dededo. Toto currently has a resident
involved in the NWP and anticipates to enlist a couple more. The PSM will be working with the
Dededo Mayor regarding their NWP and anticipates having residents enlist in the program.

AMP4 will be replacing the fence lines at both the Toto Gardens and Dededo Elderly sites due to
rust and deterioration. The replacement of the fence line will help prevent criminal activity. The
deteriorated fence line became an entry point for unauthorized access. AMP4 has renovated the
former AMP1 office to provide classroom instruction safety related trainings.

Page 14 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12/1014)




GHURA recently completed the renovation of a facility that will be utilized by the Public Housing tenants
as a Residential Services Center. The Center is located within AMP4 Toto and adjacent to AMP1 Site Base
Office. AMP4 will be providing classroom instruction safety related trainings. By providing training and
activities in this facility we hope to minimize unlawful activities in the area.

GHURA is also hoping to utilize Capital Fund Program funds to construct an open-air canopy over the
existing basketball court at and/or playground facilities at various AMP sites. The construction of these
recreational facilities will assist in the decrease in crime at these sites by providing an outlet to the
residents,

COVID-19 Response

Safety

Pandemic Conditions of Readiness 1 (PCOR1)

On March 14, 2020, the Governor of Guam signed Executive Order 2020-04 Relative to responding to
COVID-19. EO 2020-04 ordered the closure of non-essential Government of Guam offices through March
30, 2020, and was later extended. GHURA executive management immediately put into place limited
procedures critical to maintaining the operations of the Housing Authority, i.e., landlord payments for S8,
Utility Reimbursements, and payroll. For Public Housing, the critical functions were limited to responding
only to resident Emergency Health and Safety life threatening issues (EHS-LT).

(PCOR2)

For plans to eventually resume normal operations, GHURAs executive management implemented --
GHURA'’s Action Plan for Resuming Critical Functions In Response to COVID-19. The Plan outlines the
procedures each division and employee must follow to keep with social distancing guidelines and other
preventive measures to stop the spread of COVID-19. On May 11, 2020, Public Housing AMP 2 issued
notice to all its residents informing them of the newly implemented safety procedures. In anticipation of
reopening offices and also as a precaution, the AMP’s were retrofitted with plexiglass in areas where staff
must engage contact with an individual. Signs are posted in conspicuous areas notifying the public of the
strict sanitation protocols, and a no mask, no entry policy has been implemented. Notice of these changes
were provided to the public in a press release.

Qutreach Program

HUD Notice PIH 2020-07 allocates $685,000,000 of Supplemental Operating Funds for Public Housing
through the CARES Act (Public Law 116-136), of which Guam was scheduled to receive $745,204 in early
May 2020. The funds were used to support and assist the safety of individuals and families living in Public
Housing. GHURA distributed to its Public Housing residents “CARE Packages” consisting of masks, hand
soaps, and other cleaning an'i hygiene suppiies needed to stop the spread of COVID-19. GHURA Property
Site Managers concur that there is no duplication of these services offered in the community at this time,
and the costs to conduct this outreach is considered an eligible expense.

Promote Self-sufficiency and Asset Development of Families and Individuals

Meeting Family Self Sufficiency Geals

GHURA’s Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program successfully graduated two (2) participating families
during calendar year 2019. Both families graduated with escrow, averaging $4,900. The first graduate
through participation in FSS On-The-Job (OJT) Training, was able to gain increased knowledge and
experience necessary to prepare her for her first administrative job. Empowered by her new sense of financial
independence, the graduate pushed herself a step further and opened up a small business. The family is
currently completely free of housing assistance. The second graduate through hard work and determination,
achieved her final goal of “Preparing for Homeownership” by completing a HUD approved, online
Homeownership Certification course. Impressed with the wealth of information she acquired, coupled with
personal accomplishments gained through her participation in the FSS program, she decided to go one step
further, and pursued the purchase of her first home. Closing was finalized in December 2019.

Page 15 0f 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12120 14)




At December’s end, FSS Program Coordinators supported a total of 150 program participants/families; 121
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program participants, and 29 from the Public Housing Program. Public
Housing participants are divided into four (4) Asset Management Project (AMP) sites, and are broken down
as follows:

s AMP| = 9 Participants
« AMP2= 9 Participants
e AMP3 = 1 Participants
e AMP4 = 10 Participants

FSS Program Coordinators continue to seek out means to educate, improve financial literacy, expand
homeownership options and improve access to affordable housing for FSS families. Through continued joint
efforts with Program Coordinating Committee (PCC) pariners, FSS organized a number of essential
seminars/workshops during the year. These workshops provided a foundation from which FSS families
would begin to improve their budgeting skills, and form a sense of financial empowerment, PCC partners
provided courses such as Pathways to Homeownership for First-Time Homebuyers, Homeownership
Counseling, Homebuyers Education Course, Loan Affordability Analysis, ABC’s of Credit Repair, in
addition to several other Basic Budgeting and Credit workshops.  FSS Program Coordinators worked
conscientiously so as to ensure that families stayed focused on their goals, and maintained their motivation
to succeed.

FSS staff continued to seek out effective, alternative training programs, workshops and seminars, as well as
additional resources within the community which serve to enhance and cultivate the FSS program. With this
in mind, FSS Coordinators introduced families to an expanded food and nutrition information program. The
goal was to introduce families to healthy lifestyle changes, which include improving the quality of their diet,
and incorporating fun family exercise activities. FSS families learn to plan healthier meal options, and are
provided tips on how to purchase healthier items on a budget.

Outreach clinics continue to be an effective means of bringing awareness and inciting interest to participate
in the FSS program. FSS Coordinators remain committed to providing a wide variety of information,
assistance and opportunities to all participating FSS families, and are continuously exploring the feasibility
of expanding the services it provides. Coordinators continue to promote the completion of secondary and
post-secondary education to enhance personal development and attain skills necessary to secure better
paying, career driven employment, thereby leading to self-sustainability. The program further seeks to
encourage and assist participants to pursue homeownership as much as is possible, by working closely with
and linking FSS families with its community partners, such as the Micronesia Community Development
Corporation (self-help), Habitat for Humanity, as well as GHURA’s Renewal Affordable Homes Program.

Section 3

GHURA's Wage Compliance Officer continues to educate the contractors on the Section 3 regulations and
to mandate the compliance of these regulations with each construction contract. A/E continues to work
with Section 3 residents as well, to link them with contractors for employment. As of February 2020
construction contractors were able to hire 4 Section 3 residents as Laborers for part time work. The
construction contracts are for a short duration and can only provide for part time work. Most
residents want full time work. The agency continues to work with the contractors to hire residents
and to train them to be skilled laborers.

GHURA'’s FSS coordinators conduct outreach clinics and contact its Public Housing residents directly to
encourage them to become more involved in the Section 3 program. FSS coordinators assist the A/E
Division by compiling a list of eligible individuals and obtain resumes that will later assist the Wage
Compliance Officer in selecting participants whe may be offered employment whether it be construction,
administrative, or clerical work.

Page 16 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)




Deconcentration of Poverty and Income-Mixing

GHURA's admission policy is designed to provide for deconcentration of poverty and income mixing by
bringing higher income residents into lower income projects and lower income residents into higherincome
projects. Nothing in the deconcentration policy relieves GHURA of the obligation to meet the income-
targeting requirement. Gross annual income is used for income limits at admission and for income-mixing

purposes.

Deconcentration and Income-Mixing Goals - To the extent this deconcentration policy is applicable to the
public housing units at all four AMP Site Developments, GHURA acknowledges that its public housing
developments are mixed-income developments that include policies intended to promote income mixing in
public housing and increase incomes of public housing residents. If the incomes of the Public Housing
Residents fall outside the Established Income Range (EIR), GHURA will provide an explanation inits
Annual Plan. GHURAs deconcentration and income-mixing goal, in conjunction with the requirement to
target at least 40 percent of new admissions to public housing in each fiscal year to "extremely low-income
families", will be to admit families above GHURAs EIR to communities below the EIR and vice versa.

Deconcentration of Poverty and Income-Mixing - The average income at all AMP sites are below the
established income range (EIR); and there are no concentrated poverty areas. The average and adjusted
income of families residing in all covered developments as of September 30, 2019 are provided below:

FY2019 (as of 9/30/2019) AMPL AMP2 AMP3 AMP4 SECTIONS

HHM WITH INCOME 679 | AVERAGE B44 | AVERAGE 830 | AVERAGE 597 | AVERAGE 5,753 | AVIRAGE
ALLINCOME 641038219 | 944092 | 818048054 | 70308 | 797041574 | 960091 W 1038147333 | 1041271 W 52.304,689.01| 410737
EXCLUSIONS 1444 475,18 3372.824.05 3517,861.08 3,403,192.76 18,125,945.06

ADJUSTED INCOME 396590701 | 584081 [ 481665849 | 570694 | 4452554.66) 536452 | 697828057 699928 [ 34,168,74405| 5939.9

Housing Counseling

GHURA anticipates becoming a full-fledged HUD approved housing counseling agency by the August
2020 deadline. As an approved housing counseling agency GHURA will have a Certified Housing
Counselor on staff. The Housing Counseling program aims to assist clients in the Home Investment
Partnerships Grant program, the Family Self Sufficiency program, and residents of Section 8 and public
housing. The program covers a myriad of counseling topics, including Pre-Purchase, Post-Purchase
counseling; budgeting; homeownership and tenancy; fair housing; avoidance of mortgage default and
eviction. The service is free of charge.

Within-the past 8 months, GHURA has aided approximately 28 clients in housing counseling Services and
continues to move forward with the addition of 15-20 clients who are participating in the Renewal
Affordable Housing (RAH) program in 2020. GHURA will continue both the one-to-one counseling and
education pieces for housing clients. With the anticipated increase in interested clients GHURA is seeking
for three more personnel to become housing counseling certified (both for homeownership and renting).

Outreach Program
GHURA continues to partner with several agencies and non-profit organizations to bring outreach and
education to families residing in Public Housing;:

e The Department of Education’s Early Intervention System (GEIS) and Early Childhood Special
Education Programs, the Department of Public Health and Social Services’ Karinu, the Mayor’s Council
of Guam, and the University of Guam Center for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education,
Research and Services (CEDDERS), brings programs such as Learn the Signs, Act Early Project, and
Village Play Time to the community and the sites. Village Play time is an innovative travelling playgroup
and a new initiative to support children birth to five years of age and their parents to actively engage in

Page 17 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (1272014)




learning opportunities to enrich their child’s overall development. Village play and other early childhood
programs will continue throughout the year for all the sites.

Maiie’lu (formerly Big Brother Big Sisters of Guam) is a local non-profit organization whose mission is
to provide education and empowerment to children and families through mentoring. Mafie’lu has been
providing outreach activities to include work force development, sports and recreational activities such
as hikes and visits to various program partners. Some highlights this year include “Art in the Ville” with
three components including cultural dance taking place in Yona (AMP 2), Art in the Ville (street art) in
Mongmong (AMP 1), and a “walking club” in Toto Gardens (AMP 4) and Pagachao (AMP 3).

Other local non-profit organizations like GALA Inc’s Youth Empowerment Program for youth ages 10-
19 years of age promotes health and wellness among youth, especially preventing substance abuse and
suicide. Activities include lessons from the Storytelling for Empowerment Curriculum. There will be arts
and crafts, physical fitness, dance, games and other life skills training.

Public Housing has formed partnerships with the Guam Community College (GCC), Adult Education
Programs, a program which provides adult basic classes in preparation for GED/HIiSET (High School
Equivalency Exams); Adult high School Diploma classes, and English as a Second Language (ESL)
classes.

GHURA has partnered with the University of Guam Cooperative Extension and Outreach. UOG
provides outreach programs to the residents about eating smart and being active through its Expanded
Food & Nutrition Program (EFNEP). EFNEP focuses on families with young children. EFNEP
Coordinators came directly to the sites to engage participation with families and showcase ways
families can make healthier food choices for meal preparation. Residents were also provided
information on how to manage their funds for purchasing food items as well as how to choose the right
physical activities for their families.

Other UOG programs will be to conduct assessment needs of the families at the different sites to match
available programs some of which are described below:

Agriculture and Natural Resources (Agricultural Economics, Container Gardening, Walk to Wellness)
Consumer & Family Sciences (Community Nutrition Education Programs, Expanded Food and Nutrition
Education Program, supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program- Education, Healthy Aging, eic,)

4-H and Youth Development (Enrichment Programs, STEM Programs, etc.)

Community Development (Workforce Development, Entrepreneur Training, Leadership Training,
Financial Management Training, Asset Mapping, Needs Assessment Instruments‘and Data Collection)

4-H Youth Development Programs being offered assist youth in acquiring knowledge, developing skills,
and forming attitudes that will enable them to become self-directing, productive and contributing
members of society.

AMP4 has completed the renovation of the old AMP1 office and plans to have programs geared towards
classroom instruction in resident self-sufficiency programs. AMP4 will work with Manuelu and other
non-profit organizations to provide programs, such as computer training, resident safety, and renter’s 101
training, to name a few. AMP4 anticipates to hold at least two meetings with residents within the fiscal
year.

Violence Against Women Act (VAWA)

The last updated revision to the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Admin Policy was on September 27, 2018,
and the Public Housing Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) on August 31, 2017. Both

Page 18 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)




policies incorporated the latest VAWA update. Additional revisions to the ACOP are being worked on, it is
anticipated to be completed, to include BOC approval, by July/August 2020. ACOP revisions to GHURA
Policy will include changes to:
* Section 16-VIL.C. Notification to Applicants and Tenants - to provide safe delivery of information to the
victim.
e Section 16-VILD Documentation — deadline for submission of documentation of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking may be extend up to 10 business days.
* Section 16-VILD. Conflicting Documentation — third party documentation, contact information for local
assistance, and submission timeframe.

Other

» Utility Allowance (UA). GHURA hired a consultant to conduct a Utility Allowance Schedule Study of
Guam’s Public Housing clients. The consultant conducted the study according to HUD’s guidelines;
the study showed an increase in utility expenses. The new UA Schedule for Public Housing units was
effective September 1, 2019.

* Challenged Elements. (Exhibit C-copy of advertisements to be included after published)

B.6

Resident Advisory Board (RAB) Comments.
(a) Did the RAB(s) provide comments to the PHA Plan?

Y N
X 0O

(c) Ifyes, comments must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative
describing their analysis of the RAB recommendations and the decisions made on these recommendations.

See attached RAB Meeting Minutes (Exhibit D).

B.7

Certification by State or Local Officials.

Form HUD 30077-SL, Certification by State or Local Officials of PHA Plans Consistency with the Consolidated Plan, must be
submitted by the PHA as an electronic attachment to the PHA Plan.

B.8

Troubled PHA.

(a) Does the PHA have any current Memorandum of Agreement, Performance Improvement Plan, or Recovery Plan in place?
Y N NA

O0OX " v

(b) If yes, please describe:

| Statement of Capital Improvements, Required for all PHAs completing this form that adrinister piblic housin
""_and_rg’égi\'!reﬁ;‘d o s s e s ke e et e

g rom the Capital Fund Program (CFP),

C.1

Capltal Imprn.vem.cnts. Im.:ludc.a refefence here to the most recent HUD-approved 5-Year Acti-un Pian (HUD-50075.2) and the

date that it was approved by HUD.

Five Year Action Plan report year 2019-2023 (HUD Form 50075.2) has been entered into the EPIC on-line
data system and approved by HUD electronically in EPIC on May 21, 2019.

CFP Five Year Action Plan (Form HUDS50075.2) report year 2020 — 2024 has been entered into EPIC and
was approved by HUD on April 20, 2020.

Page 19 of 19 form HUD-50075-ST (12/2014)




Capital Fund Program

Five Year Action Plan
HUD-500/5.2



(800T/¥)T"SLOOS-ANH uue]

00919198 00'967°0LSS 00VTEESS 00'000'698$ 009192558 (¥0000010009) 0SZ YHNHO
00HOL'SLES 00'028'+828 00'0LE'986S 000000623 00'000'05£8 (£00000100DD) 66 VUNHO
00°000°1 £S5 000058158 00°000'192% 00°000°1823 00'005°81SS (zo000010009) 001 YINHD
00'96Z°5EES 00'000'95FS 00'000'vL 1S 00919°6vvS 00°005°89v$ (1000001000D) HST VINHD
00°£9Z°0p9% 00'€9T'5LPS 00'€9T°0S TS 00°£9T'5155 00°£9Z°5845 2AIM-ALIMOHLNYV
veor  SAEA £T0T p4BIA T gaEIx [Z0T  zdaeax 020z 14ERx
10J JUUIIEIS HA0 AL A0} JUIWAEIS HA0 AL 10} JUIWIEIS HIOA | 0] JUdWNEIG HA0A, | 0] Juamia)eg Haopy Jwep pue taquny jusmdopasg v
10000  :9quInN VHJ
( 10N uoisiady) uel 1894 -G pastady [] uglg 4BIA-C jeudLo [X]
(a8 3 Huno/An) Anjesoy Auoyiny [emausy ueqin % Suisnoy wen)  : swep VI
Lfewwng :j Jeg
72080 :Ag paaoaddy e jes0addy yeiq smers
PLTO-LLST

3uisnop| uelpu| pue aqng jo 20110

wawdojarag veqn)

pue Suisnoy jo wawredaq "5

uelq UONOY Jed & -oal,] - weidolg puny [enden



(800T/)T°SLOOS-QNL] W0,

SII[AIAS [ENIDRNUO PUE UONINNSULD *HI0M J2PI0 Fsuyaind 0] MIIARI SE 1ans

00'000°1§ eidasd g4 9y 01 Bupusesad sansst ud ONEINSUD pur 5391AIS [RF9] IPIADI] (5150 pue 5204 39130~(0gp1) uonEnsmIIPY PEIU0) SIS [EF0r] 9£00d1
suoieantjenb o 153nbas pues piq 10§ UOHRIIALL SE (JONS SIUSLIBS[LI2APE

009LL°LS Buunbou sioafosd * ink 2 atiqnd pategel 440 J0) WAISTUIARY (s1507) pue $394 J2ipg<{pgy 1) uone PY RENLOD) 13ApY $£00dl

00'000°0518 Aspuns ‘sjijauaq pue sowejes yjeis g7y (51500 PR 5934 SO DY 1) VONRSITWRY 1RKIU0D)SISOT) pUE $33.] FEOOCL

00°000°18 1503 Wpny (pny-(ogr1) vonenswIWPY PRSI NIPNY ££0001
"SIALRE a5yl Jo

00 L3V 0FTS uoddns uy sarpddns apnjoul 01 sautanor Suuonto pue voneuwR|dw ‘Fuuerq (Apung-{p1p1) vonensIpY saueEg-(014() UONENSIUIWPY )sis0)) aAlEnSIIImpY ZEODA]

00'000°0£8 suonwade ((90v1) suonmiadgsuonesndg 1£0001

00 £9T'SRFS {OSYMVN) 3AIM-ALNOHLAY
1500 pajewnysyy LAnuend) $911089)87) W40 Jolepy] Jo uondiasag [BI2UD ) aweNsaquiny Judwdojaaaq Janyuapy

0202 0

IE3X 10 JUIUINEIS MI0AL

(5) syuaunayeyg yao A4 Spaap [eISAyg - sadey Fupaoddng :y 1rug

ZTOZ/8T/C0
FLEO-LLET

Buisnoy ueipuj pue a1qn g Jo asyy0
wawidojara ueqan) pue Suisnol jo wawredac] ‘g

UB[d UONOY 183 X -3Al] - wWeidosd pun [eyde))




(B00T/P)T'SLOOS-ANH w0

“Ya1e| 20e[das pue sjaued pajesopiad (5318 ssapures m
3uqe} J00p Uams nedal JO J00P USRS A1EMDIS F9B[dAL PUR FAOWIRL IPNIUL [[1M

(81000 Jouaixg<{0gy] ) Jouamxg-nun) SupmaN9zo) wesy oszn)

00'000°05 1§ adoag 14NV 18 quiel pue 100p 101X SIUN O 2owjdes pus pAiLax AP1R]dn eue(big ‘Fuowiduop ‘siydop suely 1 s00q usaing Aiunoag puw rouLINg 258jdy pus aAoway 1Loaat

[ gl T B = 53T

Jamag-{0gp1) oA aNs-1un FunpEma'spmeys pue sqn1<(ggp|) Jouai-jun Buipam uiquingg

-0891) Jo1s1u]-y1un 3unjamg PRO-(08k1) JOUAUL-HUT] FulEM TEIUREIN 08F[) J0u2Iu-1mip

SulpMQ'sieone ] pue sYUS UaGATN(0§p [} Joualu-un JunamasIauIqe) Y-8k ) Jotsajuy

-l Juipm'(aulinos uot) Funured J00a1U[-(0g R ) JoUDINT-Iup Fufjarg'siooq souaui-{ogy1)

[-11u0) Bu|pavg ' (puninos uau) Furoo]d-(0g ) JoUiug-iun Fulpm TeaLaa-(08 | ) J01a1u]

“Iun Supag'sapowiuia)-{pgpT ) J0uu[-1ur) Sugem'(jEanaka uou) Sutoo) wooneg-(0grl)

Jouauf-jun) Suifpma'siulS pue s@iuna)) woonpeg-{opt) Joumup-nun Sulm saoueddy

AIUDNIS Tuippng puv SWLIq PR JOOJ 1 SYILLD *18q0s pasodxa ‘[puds 08¢ 1) fou2MuL-11un) Fuypm'smopul-(0g41) JOUIxI-1un SunEma’sioon-(0gy1)

2210002 3o meday pue apis Auadosd wo jesaie) J21Em 1T JA[RA LO-1NM[S m3Iu Ipnjoul Jouarxg-uun Sunjpmq'sSuipey pie sSurpue-(ggp[) Jounxg-1up Juiamg‘suonepunod-{ags1)

1 Suiping Jo JOUIINA JB AU} aisem j0 Juiysn|y Jo aul arsem pue sajem Jo Fudid JouaNT-1up) Suifpm( edeosg a1, - SIS JOUSIXT-{pgY] ) J0uIXTGHuR Suiam q'duryme pue

~a1"sUMXY 11| pue ‘531 I1MS *SIAIN0 ‘SIfEaq IMDI J0 Jualuaseydas apeddn uted Jouang-(0gp ) Jovaneg-1un Suypag Sunydry sousxg-{ogy) 1= Suljas ooy

[pued [estnaags ‘Bunured Jomiur majdwos apnpul o] 10, W00 Juan pue Jouag-(08p]) JoUNXT-Nun) Tw|[Pm soyoIog pue suumion-{0gp]) J0LRIxg-Tury Sunpmg qe s
00°000°PLIS WOGIP3q "WOQIKIE] 'WIYILIY SPAIDUL O] SIFUN § JO BONEZILIPOU un 212]dwo)) Buipimg-(08p 1) Jouaixg-iun Fuijema)9zn) wesy 3 (DST) uiS “FuaN "HY 18 UDTEZIWAPON IIN 6£00d1

00°00S°39vS (10000010009) 0ST VENHO
000000zs SIIIALAG IuRINSUO]) 97y (s150)) puw s394 PO-(08F]) UONERSIILPY 1IRNUO]) J$201AI9S TUD[NSLHOD) a L atiail
00°000°SES Fumiesf, (Bunnes] YeIS-{gop1) wowacddury ) duy ot Jeuey LEDOI
1500 parewnsyg Anuend) saLi0da)e)) y1opy Jolelq Jo uondiissaq jesauan swepN/Jaqunp juawdojasagg J3nnuapy

0zoc [

A3 L 20J JUIWIJTIS IO AL

(5) spuawRleg N0 A SPAaN] eaisfuyy - saSeq Sunaoddng iy g

¢C0T/8T/20
PLTO-LLST

Fuisnoy ueipu pue a1iqnd Jo 2010
wswdojeas( ueqin) pue Suisnop Jo uaunredaq g7

UB[d UOTIOY 183 £ -9Al,] - weido1] puny [eyden



(800Z/¥)Z°SLO0S-ANH wog

'SIIMAIDE BOTINASUOD YiIM PATIIOSSE SWANT HIOM JIYIO pue 'sasoy
Ajddns s SaATea 9|8t "SI0 SIUIBIII ‘NUIS UL APA2UL 01 JOM MIN] “PUDL-t
TFupsiea (IR 01 MOU ‘M Yilw paoejdal pun PAYSHOWAR 5q 0} JBIUNCGD PUR “Funyy

(Sumqumnid-(ogr1)

doumu-1un) FWjEM'SIINE PUE SAUIS VAT 08H 1) LoL-Aun) Fuljjamg'sIPuIqeD) BagaIny
08¥1) Jotmuf-nun Sutgiem (dunnos uou) Sunuiug Jouauj{0gy ) Joumul-Imp FuEmsiood
JoLAII-{0gp1 ) JOIRU-IUN FurfPm (aunnos uou) Fnpoold-{08y 1) JousuIAMN njaM [IO3TT

00°005°LZ1S [[e “12UIQUD 252G FUNSIXE THS ZJINY U} I8 SIUN G JO UONEZILSPOLI U311y ~(08p1) Jouaiui-iupy Sujgamg ‘saoueddy-(ogy1) Jousiuf-mn ma__u:nw_an-.ssx 555_ 650041
13maG08F1 ) oA S-uN Fuljamg'siamoyg pue sqn]-(ogpT) 8:25._&: m_ﬂ_;_n._.;._ u_.a.naz
<(0811) Jouaw-itun) FuremLpc-{ogr) sousul-iun Jmjpsg erue-{pgs] ) oM
Bupjpm'sIRoNE] pue SIS UaANIN-(08HT ) Jouaul-HUA Surfmg namge) uwRRIny-{0grl) souatug
-nuny Jupwa'(aunnes sou) Sunurd souaul{ogyl) ouau]-upy Jurfamgisiond oua-{ogs1)
sousu-jupy Suramg'(unnes vou) Suuoo) o8y ) Jousiup-iun Suipmg’ [eaLnajg-{08k1 } Jouanu]
=1ty Burpemq'sag 100811 ) Fouau-pupn Suname’(esne £ o) m::oc_m EoEzEmAS«_:
Jouaiug-nur] duijpag'syms pue suNog neg-{0gy () souaup-iun 3 a" 4
‘UGS -(08#1) Jouu - Fuyjem smopuim=0grl) Joumxg-tupn w:.:«.sm &3&;8_“:
Suppying pue Jurpres Aucojuq 'siueag pue Jo0s 1 SyPRID ‘TBqRd pesodxa ‘[uds Jouapxg-nun Juppag'sfuiry pure simpue<pgy 1) Jounxg-1un Jurjam suonepune - oge])
21200102 Jo sredas pur opis Auadosd uo [RI3le] INEM I8 2A[EA JJO-INYS ML PRI Jouapg-iiun Buljpm adeosg aiig - s[Paug Joualxg-(0gf | ) Jouspxg-iun Sumjpmg Summen
01 BuIp|ing JO JoUINNE 18 U] A1sem Jo Turjsnyy 5o sutpsisem pue taes jo Smdid pue ued Jouxg-(0g | ) wunxg-iun fupesg omydey ouaxg-(oge]) Jouxg
=31 “saImxy 131 pue ‘ssydms ‘SN0 “sIaNEalg 1nas Jo Juawaaejdas spesidn =nupy duigfam'sicoq Jouspxg-(0gp [ ) 0unxT-1un Juyjpmg syt pue suwnjod-(ggyl) 10UNXG
jaued pamasrs ‘Jupured souau 21adwos apnjoul o1 sty “woas Suial pue “uup) Supema'qels Suppmg-(pgy1) Jouaxg-wun Fuips g Nne-sTupey -soypiog-soucoeg-{pgp1 )
00°000'1928 WODIPA] ‘WOOYIR] "UIYILEY IPH{IUL 01 S1UN 6 JO nuapou 1un a1apdio) touapg-iun Suipmalcgs) velemul (8D ¥ 870) QIR '(DR1D) BUOA 18 UOHEZ U3 PO 11U[) or0odl
00°'005"8¥SS (200000100DD) 001 VANHD
“SIALDE UONINNSUOD Yiim PAIEID0ssE
SWA JIoM S0 pur S350y Aiddns pim saaea 313ue ‘qny Lyjan spajpur o) pom (suonepunod gk 1) Jouaxyg
Map puryul unsixa yRITW 01 N0AR] 01 MAU “man (NI paoejdal pue patsiowap -y Jup s Supime) pue ued J0unxg-(0gr () Jouatxg-1un Suljpag ao-sduey-saynio
00°000°LIS 24 01 palinumep qng Annn [im @iunos souspxs Junsxa sim g7 e soejdsy -53Iu0d[eg (08 ) J0uaig - Fuiamq)yms Aunn s asepday SN0 31319007 JO [RAOUNY 901041
(Buiquinid-(ogy1)
"SIULANDE UONIILISUOD YiiA PAIRIIOSSE SWISTL HOM JOUI0 puE 'sas01 Joumul-up) Butjpmc'siaone,] pue syuls wyn-(084 1) Joumutun Suljamg seuge;) uwaery
Ajddns (pum saa[ea 3[2ue “5a)0 J1WRIID UIS UPIDY IPIDOUL O) HIOM MR PUL-ul S 08¥ [} touatup-1uny Suijomg'(2unnos uou) Junure] souanr-{ggp]) Jouau[-inin Suisag sioog
TuUnsSINS YR 0) MaU "mau (im paoepdal pue pausiowap aq ol 191N pue ‘Funy Jouu[-{ogr| ) ouawm-1upy Juiesg’(sunnos uou) Fuuooid-{ogpl ) Jouup-puny Swppag’ Ea1a2]3
00005 LZ1S [[E "Ruiqed aseq SUnSIXg IUS [ JIAY 21 1€ S3UN 5 JO IZIWIPOW UYL -(08%1) souaiug-un durjjame'ss: {dw-(pgp1) Joiur-1run Ful[2Mg)uoneaoudy Uy 9800d1
any
15070) pajyewn)sy fmuend) nu_._amcua.u HI0OM .3?2 Jo uondiiasag [LARTIETS] JUWEN/IIGUINN] :._".E:o_gun Jayyuapy
0z0Z [ JE3X JOJ JUIWAEIS HIOAN

(5) syuawaeyg Ha0 Ay spaay [eoiskuy - sa8eg Sundoddng :yy 31eg

CTOT/BT/TO
PLTO-LLST

Buisnoy weipu pue a1qng Jo 30150
awdojasaq ueqin) pue Fuisnoy jo yueunredaq g7

ue[J UONOY B2 A -2AT] - WieIdold puny [ende)




(8002/¥)T°SLO0S-ANH uLog

unRLE

Fuipjing pue duipier Aueo|pg ‘SWIEa PUE JOOI 18 SR ‘mqA pasodxa ‘|(eds
210009 Jo nedas pue opis Auadosd Uo [RINE] 121EM 18 2A[RA JJO-ITYS Mal SERJOUT
O3 UIP[INg JO IOLANXI 12 U] 1SEM JO TUIGS]] D 1| ISEM PUR 19|EM JO Furdrd
=21 "SAUMIXY JYS1] puR ‘SayolMs 'S1A)IN0 'SIYESIY 1INDILD JO uauoEldas ‘opesddn
jeued jeauoaa ‘Fumured oL ;a(dwod 3pn|aur ol Yiox, 'WwO0I FuAl pue

ey

pus sqni~pgp1) 11t Butjam Tuquin| g-(gg ) Jouaup-un Suijasdg g0
H08¥1) Jouaiur-iun PG [EAVRIN-(08 P ) JouA-1up) TunEMa siaIne] pue SIS
UsUNI-(08p 1) Jouiuj-un Juljpag seuqe wagir-(ogy) 1-u) Sonamg (unnol uou)
funuied JOUMNUI-{QEPT) 0uN]-1un Fuamcs00 I0UB[-{ogH] ) JOUANU]-IT] Buljpmg ' (aul
uott) 3uLioo]. {2y 1) JoH21u]-1up) Fulj[PM'[BILIID|T-(08 Y ) JOUAU[-1ur) Furjpac'sap ]
-(08r1) Joma-irun dungjama(feaya4 vou) Supoo].g woonpiea-(ggy 1 ) souaul-nun Sunama’syug
PR SI2un07) wooneg-(08y1 ) Jouaiup-nun Junpm saounijddy-{pgp| ) Jouau-uun
Juijoma'smopuI s ~{0gtr1) JouRIXg-iun Funfamq sjooy-(ogp) sousxg-un Sugpema'siuy ey
pue sTnpUe gy ) Joamng-un Buijpmc'suonepunog-(ogp 1) JoUXZUn Surjfem g adeasy
1 - SIPAIEIS J0URIXS {08y ) Jouag-1un SugEpma Suine] pue kg Jouxg-{gp[) Jouag
1) Jul[pamd Sunydi T souanxg-(08k1 ) JOuAXT-1un Ul Pma’SI00q JoUaINT-{08k ([} 10MaIXT
-uun duipma'saysiod pue suwnjod-{ggp|) Joumxg-mn Juiemaeis Smppna-oge () 10usxg

00°000°062$ Wo0IP3q "WoOTEq WAYIYY IPN]IUT 01 SN | JO BOREZILIPOU 1un ajdwa) N Sunema)(ego) eewmn 3 (€30 7 780) 0ZUAIA (280 P 66D) LAY 18 UOUFZIWIPOIY Iy 1900d1
00'000°05£S (£00000[000D) 66 VINHO
e T B2 T o
08V 1) oM MS-Uup) Bumamc'suepy - saur 19mMG~(08b1) H10AL MG Burjjam Huniseg
=(08%T) oM 2§-1un FuMamc's1aMoys pue sqrL-(pgp] ) Jouaiup-mip Bujamg Tmqumg-loge1)
Japaup-y) 3ulfamd MRG0 1) J0HA-UL) FUamSIane puB syuis uayany-{ogyT)
Jouau]-yun 3uEsd sImauD vagNIN-{08y 1) Joualul-nup) Sinpeme(aunno: uow) Funurey Joru
-{0BY1) JoL- 1N Bupjpma 5100 s0uUE-(08p[) 0u3)u]-nun Fugamer(aunnos wou) Suuoopy
<08¥1) Jouanu]-jun Fuyeamq'eotnoag-(0g 1) Jouaup-iun BulfPma'sapowmo)-(ggp] ) soumuy
“1un Sumsg{jEpAa vou) Suuool woonpeg-{ngp1) JOUAUI-IUN FulPEm SHuIS pue sIUNO
uoneaynuap! unjred desipuey apnjau) “asmnus Suipjing woanneg-(081) soumup-iun Jurgam qsaoueyddy-(ogp ) Jouamf-uun Sulamg smopuy
Pue SWEMN] PUE JOOI 1B SY3R10 'Liegqas pasodxa ‘reds 1909000 jo njedss pue <{08p1) souang-nury Fuigamey'sadeasy 2114 - sypas-(0gp1) Jouaxg-nun Junamsjoon-(0gel)
apis Auadoid uo |B151E] 191Em I8 2A|BA [JO-IINS M2U 2PRJIUI O} Juipjing jo souaixa Jouaxg-nun Burem suonepuno|~{ggy ) Jounxg-1un Suljemg adesss 211 - 5]|IMIIRIG JOLINT]
123U 3158M Jo Suysny Jo ol Msem pue smem jo Juidid-a1 ‘saanxy WS ~08¢1) Jouapxg-nun SuiEmg dupgne] pue ey Jousig-(ogyl ) Joumxg-nur Juigpmg Fungdiy
PUE S3Y2IIMS 'SIDPNG 'SIaxEaIq 1Moo Jo a1 ‘apesidn (awred [patyoaa JouaIxT-(0g 1) Joumxz-1uf) Furjpma’siooq 10xg-{pgy| ) Joudrxg-nun Jui[pag'soneg pue
‘Sunuied souaiut a1dwod aprjout 0} oM “(SV4N) PEPUBIS AgISsa0dy £4p20-(08p1) ousixg-un Juma'sayatod pue sumnied-{ggt |} :0uaixg-aun Suamgademen
[E12pa uLogur], Bun g5 s £]dwos [jim vonesouzl ‘wool Sual] pue woopag 2aupng- suodm-(pg 1) Jouxg-un UM qRS Fupping-{pg 1) Jou=ixg-nun Julpaa'ne
00°000°0015 "U00ITEG "USYIIL] IPRIOUI 0) TNV 18 SITUN { JO UONEZNUDPOW Jiun a3a(dwo) -suyrey-soypiog 1eg-(08p1) Louaxg-nup) Su(Raq)AIqIss3y pOg JoF 1NN A1RAOUY grioal
"PRIINGaT BUTIUTEN [E01) SIUI0] sUip[am puE
soaepms Fugjres (e juted wud 'saoupms pas (|2 yioows 3 puud ‘e ‘punose
112 PIa# [[1Y 3q [[eys siusof adid [y J21u20 uo Ul |8 j101 je(pawsajul Ja1aWerp
UIp/E PUR SRONTIUOD |21 Wopoq pue dos (pp 3npayas) 2did saaumeip wipy| . (sBupmy pue sduipue1-(ogp |} oLy
-1 Ypim )s1su09 [eys sfuppres £u03[Rg MaN M2l s paoejdal pus paacwal aq o1 -1ty Suypma ' Jur{ne;) pue g Jouaixg <03 () Joumxg-nun) Suyjpm ate-sTunrey-sayaio
00°000°09% satuoofeq e e Juijies Junsixg 7Y e sun Z[ 18 sduies aoejdar pue Aoty ~$31U02[RG-{08F ) JoUNXF-1up) Fupjamc)ZdNY 18 Mot im paoejdal 3q 01 sTujms Aucajeq Sunsixy £11001
1500 payelUSy Anuend) 5311080187) W40 JolR[y Jo uondriasa( [e1ouany aweN/squinp juauwdopaas 13y uIp|

0Z0z 1

JEIX 10J JUIWIIEIS HIOAY

(5) syuawayeyg yaoa spaaN jenskyg - saSe Suntoddng :qf 11e g

Te0T/8UTO
PLTO-LLST

SuIsnoH ueIpU] pue a1[qn4 JO 21O
juswdojaaa(] urgdn) pue Suisnoy jo Juewyeds(] 'S

ue[q U0V Jea A -aAl,] - wreido1g puny feyde]y




(BODZ/PIT'SLO0S-ANH U0y

[T ERT TR TIEI0] SOLEA 18 2109)

uopsiaazd ya1e) yiim so1ed [euossad apis Yp - ¢ apnpaul o1 104 auy Auadosd
TIm pauBige saut yull-utoyo put ‘g 21m UOISU3) 930S SSAUIRS WONog pue [e1
dop saump wigs-1 1s0d auy {aRpLeip UIE *(22u2] Jo woneq) snonunuoa 3unoo)
{UA [[BA MO Paolojuial (ALY NI UIg SIa4u[-Z yum p1sisuod ySig 9 o [jeys

(2300315-(08Y1) o AuS-un Suyomg Bunysiy
(08P 1) o sus-nun Juiamaadeaspue-{pgp]) H0 aug-nun Furoma Bunuwg-(ogp1)

00915'5KZ§ SoUad MaN_“sau itm padu[dal pur pasodsip ‘pasousi aq 0 s1wad Sunsixg 20/ SN Fuiama)aurt fpadosd 1S1aWLag iy 1 Fuiouag Juisixg soeqday pur sADLIY s010ql
T=T T gl ! A = ST
MISL08YT) o aus-1un FupMd sIM0YS pur sqn 108y ) UL Supfjam Sugquingg
Hugp1) Jouaiuaun Junjpag RpQ-0ge 1) o Julpmg s NBYN-(08P1)
oy Aulamg sisanuy pue syng U N-(08 1) JORNL-MUL) Buljpag siamige)y vayry
<08¥1) Jotiun Juijamq'(aunnos vou) Sunured Jousiur-(ogp] ) JopRiup-iun Sl sicog
Jouaiuf-{08 [ ) JOMRL-UL Sunfjasg{aunnos vou) Suucol (g ) Joumug-jmn Funjomguamang
-081) souaw-1un foyamg'sopounuoy-{pgp1 ) torLiul-run Bufjamg’(jeao4a tou)
fnicory woonpeg-(pgp1) som Ju[pag suIg pue D woonpeg-(gg ) Jousu-mpn
‘amnils unomgsaouenddy-{ogp1) Jouiul-1r) FuEmC'SHOPUIM {0811 ) JouIING-IuN Ampmg'gooy
Fulp[mq puw swieaq pue Juijier Auo3jeq “joos i Syae12 ‘Teqal pasodya ‘eds ~{08p1) 2omarxg-1un Ty pmcsdugiey pue sButpue-(0gp () Jommxg-nun Juam'suctiepuno
Sla1aued Jo nedas pue apis Ausdold uo [eiaie] 2jem 18 9AEA JA30-INYS mau apnjouy -{08p1) Jouanxg-nun Suijomgadeosg ang - S[[PMIRIS JOLUNXT-{08 Y] ) souanxy
01 FUIp|Ing JO JOUNXS 18 SUl| 15EM JO Aunysny 1o 3un] 15EM pun snem jo Juidid =) JuijRmg FunyneD pue nieyg Jouxg-{(ogp1) Jouaixg-un Funamg Sy Jouaxg-{ogrl)
=21 ‘saampxy 8| pue ‘sagonms ‘sppne 'SIS{E21 MN242 30 1uawsoejdal ‘apesfdn Jouanxg-un Sulamg'sicog JoLxg-(08F 1) Jouax-un Suljamag sayaiog pue suumpo3-{ogrl)
12ued feamaage ‘unuied sousjuy a19(dwiod apujaur o) aopy “woos Fujal pun foExg NN Fupm'qe|s Supimg-(ogp!) ouawg-Nun Fuypmgae-sdueg-soya10-samoaqeg
00'000°0628 WOQJpaq "WoaIyIeq ‘UL IPNjoU] OF SIiun O] JO UCHEZILIBPOW 11N adwo) {08 ) 10uaixz-1uny @Eu.snxcwnou 0101 (289/3PD/SED) OPIPICT 18 UDHEZIWSPORN Hiuf) #00q]
009197558 ($00000100DD) 057 VHNHD
"PaNmbaT TOTOTEd [eay S6] S0ipjam pug
saogpns Suipes jje wied sawud ‘saospms pas | poows 3 puud ‘weaj2 ‘punoss
112 Pl2# 110 2q [eys suroladid |1y =103 w0 18 12! Aepauaun Ipwep
Ulp/€ PUE Snomunuod (ies wonoq pue doi (of 2npayas) adid mmswep gy (3-sAu1[1ey-53y 2104500 e~ p8 | ) JoLAINT
=1 s 1sisu0a Treys s3ujies Kuodjeq map “mal fara pasu[dal pue paaowar o -nun Butpsqsdunpey pue s2upm-{ogp1) J01RXF-IUL Fuifm Furnjney pue jured souag
00°000°09% SUO3[eq 1|2 e Furjies Funsixg gy 18 stum z| e sTugies osedas PUE 3ACWAY ~{0gp1) Jopawcg-iun Buisma)eg VAMNHD 18 Mau yum paoejdat aq o} w:.la?_| Auooeq Sunsixg zZ11oar

nuslu.m:__mqm.wu_"_uuom.mu._:no_r_méwz- touape-yun Sujpmq suiepysaunry
S M-(08¥1) oM Ms-nur] Fuiame'sureiy - san m5-{08p1) HOM, 30151

I1S07) pjewsiy

fnueng)

$a11083180) YJo Jofey] o uondiidsaq [esauan

awepN/aquiny] Juswdopaaag nynuapy

(174174 [ JE3X 10§ JUIWAIEIS HIOAL

(5) S1UWNEYS HJ0 A SPaa [eIsAY] - 95w g funuoddng :q1 j1eg

Z0T/8Z/20
PLTO-LLET

uisnoy ueipuy pue 1jgng Jo aakyQ
yawdojaaaq ueqan) pue Swisnoy Joaunredaq ‘g

UB[d UOLDY Jea X -0AT - weiFol puny [epder)




(800Z/7)T'SLO0S-ANH utog

00'6L8 V0K TS 1507 PAIBWNST JO [BI0Iqng
'SIMIANIE UOHONDSUOD LM PRIBIDOSSE
St piom 1310 pue ‘sasoy Sddns qum saapea apBue ‘g Aan apnjaut o1 310 (suonepuno.f-{(gg il ) Jouarxg
Map purur Junsixs 121EW 01 INOAR] 01 mau ‘mau il m paor|dal puk paYSIOURp A Suemg une pue ey souaxg-(ogy1) sorxg-mun] Auifamg e-sam|ey-saaiog
00'000°L15 2q 01 paffewep qm Anan yum 121unod souaixa Sunsixs sum g e aoe(day “Sanioojeg-{0gp| ) Jouaixg i Suipama)uis Lnnn mim 008]day SOMNNCY 21243u07 JO [EAVEY srlodl
3500) pajewinssy Anueng) $aL103338)) HA0 AN Joley] Jo uonduiasa( [erauan awepN/taquiny] yuamdojaaag Jaynuapy
0207 1 JEIX J0] JUIWIIEIS HIOAL

(5) sruawaymg H10 44 spaaN [easLy - saded Suntoddng :q g

TToT/8TITO

PLTO-LLST
SuIsnoy uerpuj pue o1jqng Jo OO

awdojara(y ueqI) pue Fuisnog] jo

juswuredad ‘g7

UB[J UONOY Jud & -aA1 - werdoig pun, rende




(8002/Y)2 sL00S-ANH w0

SIOIALIS | 33 pUE uo| ‘aom Japso aseyamd soj maaas 58 Yons

00°000°18 ‘wesdoud 443 9y 0} Sumurzuad sansst UO UORENNSUOD PUE SIOIAIS (B2 apiaoig (51500 PUP 5331 39PO-(0gp1) UOURISIUIIPY 198NUOD)SIOIAIS (887 TR
"IEMIJOS PUR 2AeMPIEY

00°000°0£% JweguIRw 2peid-dry - (Juatwaosdw] sWAsAS) wasoiduy juswpdeme)y (Siuawasold | wagsdg<{gop|) wustwaacidu ey uauaaosdw] juswadruey 2co0al
‘suoneayyenb 10§ jsanbar purs piq 0§ UONEIAU] SE yans uanpe

009LL'LS duumbai siafosd ‘suatwalinbal 103000 dqnd PaaI 447 J0J NBWASTRAPY (51500 pue s394 3MAO-(0RY [ ) UONENSINWP Y 19RNUC]) USRS LIAAPY 1so0at

000000518 A1puns *s1yauaq pue saUREs JJTS 37y {s1503 pue 5994 1UO-(08Y 1) UONRASIUIWPY 1IEAU0J)SIS0D) PUE $33.1 0500al

00'000°1$ 51502 upny (upav-{0gp1) vonensmuwpy 10enuopny 6¥00a1

SAANAIIE 352 JO

00°L8Y'0FZS uoddns w sa1jddns apnjaus o1 sanianaw Sunonuom pue vonwwWadw Fnjuus]g (Ampung~(01p1) uonensmupy saLeieg {0 1) UONENSIUIWpY J51507) SANENSIILPY 8900QI1
00'£92'5165 (ASVMVN) FAIM-A LMOHLAY
1500 pajewI)sy Anuend) $311030)87) H10 AN Jolepy Jo uondiasaq [LAELIETS) Fwepaquiny Juswdojasag JyyuIp|
1202 T JAE3j J0} JUIWIIBIS HI0 AN

(5) syuswalelg Na0 M, SPIaN [etshy g - soSeg Suntoddng :qf Jreg

e0T/8L/e0

PLTO"LLST UB[J UOTIOY T3 X-3A1, - WesFoid pung [enden
Sursnof uEIpuT pure d1(qng Jo 291130 . .

wewdojeaa(] ueqn pue Susnopy jo wawpeda ‘g




(800Z/F)T"SLOOS-ANH Uuoy

aumanas Julpjing pue Swaq PUT JOOI 18 SO/ “Bqa1 pasodxa ‘Jjeds

210102 0 siedar pue apis fpsdord Uo [RINT[ LM 18 2A|RA JO-ITYS mau pnjoul
0) JuIping Jo JOLI3IX3 1¢ 2u1[ st Jo SUISNY 10 Ful AjseM PUB JMEM JO Smdid
=30 'S2NIXY WYB1] pue 'SayIMS ‘S1aN0 ‘SIaEAI] oI Jo Juataoedar ‘apeiddn
{aued [eornoags ‘Funured souojuw 9iadwod pNjOUT 01 O, OO FWAL] pue

(TETAL =TT ) UEF IO SIS-TT L1 | ERaTyg gt S|

1amIS-{0RY 1) 3O US-1un Sulama siomos pue sqn -8y ) oumug-iup Fuijama Suquangg
~(08p1} sousiup-ip SunpsgianE-{ogr1 ) jousul-jun Junpma EanmysN-{0gp 1) Joustu-Tin
duamg'siaoney pur syuts uapIN{0geT) JOUAUI-NUN Bulfjamd siouqeD) uayaIy-0g L) Joua]
Aluny Sugamer'(sunnas uou) Sunuied sour-(ogpT) Jounup-yun) Juiamsioo] Jouau-{oeyl)
Jouayurj-1jun) Fufjmq(2unnoa uou) Sutioofd-(0gk1) souasul-im 3mpa ' [eatasaig-{ag L) Jouany
WU ulamqsepounuo)~(pgp1) Joumul-un Furpad(jeara43 von) Fuucors woonpeg-(0gyl )
Jouu]-Itun) Fuhpm('suLg pue S1umo) woonneg-{0gy] ) JOuNUf-un Suijamg saoueddy
«08¥1) Jouaiuj-iun) Fuyjama smoputm-(0g vl ) Jouxgun Fupamg'sjooy-{ogp)

oLXE-UN Fuiam siuney pue sfuipue1-(0gp1) jouaixg-1iup Suram suonepunod{0ge1 )
Jouspgamy) SUPAQ 2deosg 2114 - S4UTEIS 10U0XT-{08 1) JoLRNg-un Fuiom Suryme pue
1ed JOLANXI-{08p1) s0uanxg-Tun Suram Funydi ouaxa-(oge1 ) UG- Sutjemd sicog
JouaNg-{0gp]) Jouala-mn Sulpm sanaio  pue suwm(o)-(0gy ) fouaig-iun Fugpma'qes

00°000'FL1S 1o01paq 1hooTIfIvq "WIYIY IPN]2U] 0} SIUN 9 Ja UORRZILIAPOLI Jun ala|diiog) Ampung-(0gp1) touaxg-1mun Juagyoz) wesy ¥ (psz) WS ‘FUO Y 18 TONEZILRpO TF rSo0al
00919'6v¥S (1000001000D) 0ST YHNHD
00°000°sZS S01AIRG JURINSUO]) T/Y (81500 pue 5234 Y10-(08 ¥ [) VONRISIUIWIPY JIRLUDYJSIIAIIS JUE][ISUOD) T1/Y 1siedi
00'000°05§ suonutadg - ((90¥1) suonwadp)suonusado sriodi
0000001 Supres ], (Fuimner), yeig-(gopi)? duwy yusundevely) oiduif waiageuepy Lp1odl
3500 pAyRUILSH Auen() sauodae]) Haop Jolepy jJo uonduasag erouas awenaquny juamdepaag I3ynuIp]
[eoe T B3N J0) JUIWIEIE HIOM

(5) stuamwe)g HI0 A\ SPIFN] [BISAYJ - 598 Funaoddng :f Meg

ZT0T/8T/T0
PLTO-LLST

Juisnoy ueIpu] pue oTjqnd Jo 290
juswidojana( usqin) pue Sutsnoy jo wawpeds ST

ue|J UONOY Iea A -2A1] - weidold pung [ende)




(8002/v)2°SLOOS-ANH w04

((pumnos uou) Sunuieg souawul~(ogy1) Jousul-nun Suyam'siooq 0UAUI{8H ) UL
ugomq'sII0s-(08Y1) souaixg-nun Surama SupIS-(oge1) Jouaxg-iun Sunjjamg Bupyney pue
WiEd JOLNXT{ 081 ) Joumxg-1un Suljam’siooq Jouaxg-{gge| ) soumxg-nun duppma'soned
pue sy331-(0g 1) JoUdINg-uun) FuljemQ io-sT ey -souIog-sanoa[eg-(0gy1 ) JOUsINg
000007028 “ZAWY 18 101eg paseg-pua] NPy

“IUr) s saipiod pue suwnioJ-(0gy) Jouang-nun Sutpma)Eaomay W] paseq pes £510d1
U b AJ0 AR ..|.. _‘..1..-...11.3. 1153 MICHAN 3 -.. ._. | A4
pue sqn 1-{gy [ ) Jouau]-1u) Fumpsmg Fmqunid-(osp1) 1-1un) BUMPMQIMO
<08k 1) JoLmu]-1up) Fuljamq' [eoneyaay-{pgy) Joua-itun Buiamg sieane, pue symg
BIAY-(08 P [) J0Bau-NUN IUIMQ'SIUIGRD UAYIIN-(08H | ) JouaIu[-1tup) Surfamg (aunnos uou)
dunured Joua-{pgy| ) souaiuj-ur) Sugjamg'sicoq Jopau[-{pgy| ) wousul-un dujpmg (aunnes
uou) BuLI00|4-(08 | ) J0L21U]-11U1) Aulfa0|EIL3]F (081 ) JouRIu|- ) Sunjam( ‘sapounion
-o8¥1) sousar-nun Suljema (oo vou) Sunoo]4 woonged-(ogy | ) Jousiu-mn Suipag sjuls
PUE S101Una)) wooneg-(08y ) Jousuf-pun Suym'ssowenddy-(ggp| ) Jousiug-mn
“aInanns SUIp{Ing pue suisaq pue Joo 1k SYORID ‘reqai pasodxa uds Bujamq'smopurm -y 1) J0uag-nur Furgamr'spooy-(ogp1) Jouaxg-nur) Juifamg'sSurey
21212100 J0 Jtedal pue apis Auadord U0 [RI2)E] 1B 18 SA[BA JO-INYS MU PRI put sdutpue{(gl[) JoLmixg-1up) Sui[pmd suonepuno-(0gp] ) Jousixg-nupy Fuigam adeasg
0} 3uipping jo Jouaixa Ju sul| d)sem Jo Fumsny 10 2ul| ASem pue JaieM 30 Swdid il - sj[pate)g JouaNg {08y | ) Jouixg-wun Suiamg Junyne) pue Juted sousxg-(ogpl)
-3 'SAMXY JYTH] pUB ‘SAPIMS 'SII[ING 'SI3E21q 0D JO MuRwadeydas ‘apeiddn Jouapeg-1un) Jupjamg Sunydi ouaxg-(ggp ) Jouaixa-iun Fuljpag'siooq Jousng-(08k1)
[aued (earn29)3 ‘Fupuied Jouaur 2ie)dwoo epnjour o1 jrop w00l Fuiar] pue Jouapegnn Juljpag 'soiog pue suwnjoJ-(0sp 1) ouaixg-iun Juma’qes Juppmg-loger)
00°000°1928 \H00IP3q "WOOIYIEG "UIYINY IPNUL O) SIUN 6 JO UONEZILIIPOW Jun 3jRjdwoy Jouawg-un Sunema)egn) uelimu; ‘(780 7 $7D) 0JOJO[LL '(0019) TUOA 18 UONLZALDPAW M) Seoodl

00°000'1828 (z00000100DO) 001 VENHD

({ounnou uou) Sunured Jousiu-(ggy ) Jouauf-mun Suljjem’sicoq Jousu-(agy] ) Jousiup-iun
Aupma'sIgos{0gy] ) Josia-1un Fuema‘Furpis-(ogk[) Jou21xg-1in SunpsqFuryney pue
Wik JOLRII-(gg 1 ) Joumna -un Turjam'siooq 1001x3-(08F 1) JOL21XI-1uN Funpa soneg
PUR $400(0-(08 1 1 ) JOLAIXG-1UL] FUTj M 1[1EY-534210-5oM0d[RE-{08 11 ) JoUAIXT
00'919°¢£18 1 dINY 18 IR pasug-pra] aeEnnaRieqy g Smpaagg'saiasog pue w_Ea_oo.Am.mw: Jopnxg-au Buijam)eacway Wikd paseg peat z510a1

“(pury-ut paoe(das agq o1 padnwep puncg 31 quiel 1oop jousjm Sunse) safunyg
pure 1a5300] £opAU M31 3PNJIUL O} SI00P MAU ‘SICOP POOM 2103 PIJOS MAL (1IN ((stirmnoy vou) Junured Jounu)-{pge | ) Joustu]-jup] Jurpag'siooq
00'000°0¥1% aoe|dal pue | WY I8 SIUR |4 18 SI00P PoOMm 2103 MO|[0Y 2aejdal pUE A0y oL 08| ) Jouaul-n Sui[RAg 12500 PIOS 01 5100(] 2107) MOJ[OH JOLISJU] S3E[CDY PUR A0 6Z10Q1

1500) pajemnsy fnuend) sar08a3e)) yao Ay Jolepy Jo uonduiasaq [erouasy awep/taquny] juawdoppasg Jagnuapyp

1202 rd JEI R 10} JUIMIJEIS HIO0 AN

(s) sauwaeIg HI0 A spaap [edsAyy - saded Bunaoddng i1 jaeg

C2ou8T/h

PLTO-LLST ug|q UONOY Jea A -aA1] - weidoid puny [ende)
Bursnoy uerpuy pue 1qnJ Jo 2O .

wawdojaaa(] teqiq) pue Suisnoy jo juswpedsy “§)



(800T/¥)T°SLO0S-ANH uLog

MRS FUIpjing pue SWESq PUE Jo01 8 SYIE1D ‘leqas pasodxa ‘[eds

sjanuoea jo nedal pue spis Apadosd uo [RIsE] 1R 18 SATEA JT0-INGS M3T SPAIIT
03 Jup|ng JO Joua1xa 18 JuT] 2i5em Jo Rurysny 2o aul| 1sem puE Jatem jo Suidid
=21 'S2MIXY WY1 pUE ‘SaYdIIMS “SIOJIN0 ‘SIEDIQ MNIND Jo Judiuaoejdas ‘apesddn

e T TS T T TT
12m35-{0851) SHOAL AIS-IM TUPMQ'SPM0YS pue SqnLgp ) Jouaiuf-iup Suypmg Suiquingg
<0871) soujur-yun) FuPAg PRO-(08F1 ) JOUNUI-N FU[Pm [EREYIN-(08 ] ) JoLRIu[-IuT
UM SI3oNE ] PUE SYWIS BaYAIY-(08F 1) Jouaw-1juny Sunamsiange) tayniry-{0gk| ) Jousiy
=1upn u_u_:u.sm.nu:_n:oh uou) Funuieg Jouaiuj-pRe] ) Jouau-jup Tuyaag'siooq Joumul-{pgt1)
Jouul-yup) Suijpmg (sunno vou} Suuoald-(0g () Jouaup-iun SuIEM EImAT-(08 k1) JouRIu]
) npam'sapowme-{(ggpl ) Jotmml-11un Sunpame(jest>£o uou) Sunool woonpeg-(ogy1)
Jouup-un Fuiem'smg pue s10me)) woeonpeg-(ggpl) Jouau-iury Suypmg seousn ddy
<08¢1) Jouswup-un Bulfpmc'smopum-(0g 1) sonanxg-imun SunRmasiooy-(08r1)

Jouana-uun Sulfasmg siunrey pie stupue]-(0gy1) Jousng-nupn Sunjpma 'suonepuno.[-{(ogil)
Jopaixg-iup Suljjame adeasy any - sjjasaielg Jouarg-(agp1) Jouaixg-1sn Suamg Surymey pue
18l J0UANF {08y 1) 2ouaiNg-1un SuiEm FunyEr souRiNg-(pgpl) Jounxg-iun Suifpagisiooq

[oued (o9 ‘Fupuied opmur japdwion apnjaul 0] Y0, “woes duial] pue 10uaT-{g 1) JOLINI-I[) Bulfj2m('saya10g pue suwnjod-{(8Y [) soumxg-1mn Tuiamg'aes
00°000°0628 pag JiBq “usyoiry apagoul o] Spm pl jo 1wapou jun 2idwoy Juipling-{0s¥1) Jouarkg-wun SuEma)oszo) 00, ‘(28/3PD/SED) OPapaq 18 UONEZILIAPOI WU L£50001
00°000'698% {¥000001000D) 05T VINHO
pue sqni-(0gi1) Jouaiu-nun SulpmcSuiqunig-(ogp1 ) ouaug-iun Supamaamo
<0841} touan-nun Fuigam ' [Esrueysap-{0gH1) Joumu-iun Surama'sisone pue s§uIS
UARIH-{08 1) JoLIaju(-yuy) Bulfiamg'sioutqe)) uayar-(08E1) J0anug-iu) Sujfpsg (sunnos uou)
Junuie Jousuy(ogp 1) JouN-NN SulPMQ s JOUAU-{0g] ) Jouauf-un Sujpmg {aunnoe
uou) SuLoo| - ogy 1) Jouauf-iup IuPMg' [EIL2R1E- (08P 1) J01Iu]-1m] FUPMG SIPOWIO]
<08 1) souwp-1mur) Jurjmg ([parpio uou) Suuooly weonpieg-(pgy1) Jouwuj-un Tunpma'syulg
pue siajuno)) woonpeg-{ogy1) oumu-iun Jujesg soueiddy-(pge] ) Joumu-impn
‘DS BUIPING pun sumwaq pue Joos 18 S92 Jeqal pasedxa |(eds Auiamq 'smopuiy(agp 1) Jouaxg-in Sunjpmg sioou-(0gy 1) Jouaxg-iun Fuljpmg'surey
M210u02 jo sredal pue apis Auadoad vo a1 Jarem 18 AJRA 1JD-1NS MU IPNjILL pue supue1-(0gp1 ) 20191x3-1up) Sujjemg suonepunog-(pge ) Jouaxg-1up) Juljpagadeasy
0) Juipjing Jo Jouaxa Je aulj ajsem jo Fuiysny) 10 sulf isea puw sapem jo Juidid 14 = S|RATRIS JOLING-{(8 ) JOUAIXT -1} Fulj[emg Tunyney) pue mwied joumxz-{(gy]) Joualg
-1 ‘sammxy 1y pue ‘SARIME ‘SN0 “SIE31G IMAD Jo Wwawaaejda ‘speddn =Inup) Surfm SunySiy Jouaxg-{ggy]) Jouapg-nup JurRa 'soog] Joumxg-{8 1] ) Uy
pued [eaunase “Jupuied souaws stapdwos spnjam o1 Yo WooI Bl pue -1y Furpamg'sagaung pue suumio-(0Ry] ) sousieg-un Suljpsaiqe;s Suping< ogel ) Jousxg
00'000°062% WIOoIPSq "WOCIYIEq U SPN[Iul 01 SHUR 0 JO UOHEZILIApOW J1un a12jdwo]) - 3upaiern) suewn 7 (€80 7 780) OZUIW (280 % 660) 10BY 1e HOREZIWIPO 1juy) 950041
000000625 (£000001000D) 66 VANHD
3500) payBwnsy Almuend) san10dae]) NI Ay Jolefy Jo nonduasaq [riauan swep/Rqunpj Judmdo[asag Jaygnuapy

120z [4

A3 X 10] JUIWIIEIS HIOA

(5) SIUWAIEIS HI0 AL SPARN |edshY - saseJ Suntoddng 11 1aeg

TT0T/8T/T0
PLEO-LLST

Buisnoy weipuy pue sljgng Jo 33430
juawdoraaaq ueqan pue Suisnoy jo uawpeda '

ue[ UOIOY Jea A -2A1] - WweIifold pung jepde)




(800Z/b)T'SLOOS-AMNH Lo,

00648 POV TS 1500 PRIRWTIST JO [BI0MGNS
{(sunnoi uou) Sunuey sousiu[-(pgy1) 1ouMuT-run Fumjam 00 JouANUI{0gp]) JouRIU]
- Funpsa sigos-{gp1 ) ousixg-un Surma Iurpis-(ogy 1) Jouang-imn Furjpamg funjney
PUE wied I0LIT-{081 ) JOUSIXT M) Suljam'siooq Jouarg-{08 | ) 10usIxg -1
Buripma'sonied pue s930-(0gF 1} JoUAXI-IIu Suiam(r'sayRiod pe suwnon~(g ) JoLXg-un
00°000°s8 “PAWY 18 JUIRd POSRE-peaT] ARANINAIEqY ARG N2-SAUIIEY-50Y0J-5021E {08 41) JOLMXT-UN UMD )[EAOITY WIE paseq pea] ps1oal
T TR L T
{08+ 1) SO Fuijemg ' [EAurIN {081 ) JoLLU -3 Tunnj[am'sI200E ] PUE SYUIS
USUNI-(08F 1) 20uaiup-nup) Snjjama’spuige) uayaiey-(ogy 1) Jousu-un s (unnos uou)
Bunueg soumui-{ogp1) Jousjuj-un Suam's100q Jouani-{ogp1) Jounul-un Supma‘(auancs
uou) dutioo|4-{08p1) Jouulrun Furamg’[eataaia-(pgr () Joumuf-tun) Suram( sepouos
(08p1) Joumui-aun Sulfoma'(jeana £ uow) Funioolg woonpeg-(ggp () Jouaiuf-nun Sunpag sug
Pu s12iumo))y woolipeg-(pg ) sousiuf-nun Sutpsgssouenddy<(ogpT) Jonnul-un
BujRmg smopulp{08p1) 1o -1 Furpiam'sadeasg 11 - SIMIRIS-0gh1 ) J0UaDE-TuL)
uoneaynuap fungred dearpue apnjou “asmonns Furpymg Buipmg soy-{0gyL) JoLaixg-nun Suipmg'suoniepunog-(ggy () ouaig-iun Tunpmg adessy
PuEe ST PUT JOOI 1B S3I01D "sreqa pasadxa ‘Tjeds ajasuos jo aedas pue Aty - S|[PAIRS J0NNXT{0f 4] ) JOUaXT-Hur Fuljfam  Buryne]) pue 1umeg Joualxg-{(g8p] ) J0Ua1XT
apis Auadosd uo [eI1e] J21EM 10 2A[EA JJO-INIE MaN IPR[OUT 0) TWP[ING JO J0LR)NA ey Bumem ' ungii] souaxg<{ogrl) 0RIxg-Nun SuRma’siooa Iouapa-{pgel ) JouaNg-nun
182Ul 21sem Jo Tuigsny 1o aur| aisem pue jem Jo Jmdid-or ‘sarmg T2 M 'SONUY PuL SYO20~(08 b 1) J0UIXF-liur) SUI[aMC'SIYI0,] PUE SUUM|0-05 b1 ) JOUIXF-Hur|
PUE SIY2IIMS ‘SIANINO ‘SIajEAN] Mana Jo juawadedal ‘aperddn aued [eoussp BullPaq aTeIey asupung- suodw)-(ogy1) Jo1pc-aun Juama’qels Supimg-(osyl) Jouaa-un
“Jupured souapur 2121dwod 3pnaur 01 oM *,(SY.IN) prepumS Kipiqissacay Funomq'aia-s3uljiey-5312104-537u03e B 08y 1) Jou1xZ-1un Bullfamg ' surspysour] sem-{o8 K1)
[219pa, uLOJIun, 1M pos Yiim Ajdwos |jim uonEAQUAL ‘w00 Futal] PUR WOCPAQ o ns-tun) Furpmd a3eudis-(ogr1) oM ans-iun Fuljemg suRp - SSUKT BABS-08p ) H0M
000000813 ‘0aIINg ‘WILNLY IPAJRNE 01 pJNY I8 SHUN § JO UDNEZILAPOWL Jin Ja]duio) ns-iun SugpmaBubped{gsrL) 30 aus-1un JuyPaa)An[qissaay pOS 10 I AEAOUIY oslodl
3 {S100] Jouawug
“SATNALOE UONDIISUOD [l PARISOSSE SWIII YI0M JOIp0 pue (08t 1) soumw -ty uam (aunnos vow) SuLoord-(0gy 1) Jopul-nun Juljpmg EummaE-(0gr1)
“sasoy £jddns yiim saafea [FUL ‘S JIWLID AUIS UYL JPOJIU] 0F YI0m Map] Jouawu-jun) Fuppmasoouetddy-{ogp1) Jouml-iun ujama Fuqumd-(ogy| ) Jousiuf-uun
PURY-] BURSIXG Y2101 O] Mau 'mats Yitm pacejdal pus paystowap aq 01 JNUNCD Buniam( 19084 PUE SYUIS WSYANY-(08P1) JoLramu]afun TurjpamgsIsuiqey vaysry-{ogp1 ) Jouau]
00°005°LZ1S puB ‘Runy [[ea ‘ouiqea aseq Sunsixg pdY 18 SHUN G JO UONEZILIBPOL USYIPY N Jujjpmg (punnos ou) Funurm, Jouaiuf-{0gk 1) JOLOMI-3IUN SUIl|aME)UOREADUY U3y shLoal
‘yae] sowjdad pue sppued puesopad (915 ssajuizIs 0) DUGE] Jo0p
U135 Jiedas 10 100p UseIDs AIUNDas 2oujdal PUR SAOLSE SPRIIUL [jIM HI0M O {s100q) touapg-(pgE1) fouxg-nun SuEag)oszo)
00005 998 adoag “pdNY 1€ quuel pue 100p JousIxd siun €5 99e(dar pue aA0wal Ajoiojdiwo]y 010 ‘(Z8/81D SED) 0popa(] I8 100 (] USRS LNIIG pire JOLDIXG 08(doy pus 0wy ZL00Q]1
- e
1507) pajewnsy Luuend 5311033} 8] HI0A) Jolepy Jo uondurasaqy [ersuan awepN/Jaquiny juamdoaaagg A3ynuapy
1202 . 7 d®ag 10j judwuae}g Ao
(5) syuawaye)g HI0 44 Spasp [esAy - seSeg Junaoddng =1 3amg
TTOT/BL/TO
PLEO-LLST UB[d UONOY Ieaj-oAl] - weiSold puny jenden

Suisnoy ueipur pue a1qng jo 231330
wawdojaaaqg ueqan pur Suisnoy jo juaunredag *g'n




(800Z/p)T°SLO0S-ANH wog

‘(puri-ut poowjdas aq o) pafewep punog 1 qurel soop souapu Funsixa) sadum

: pue 1syd0] Aeatd Mol pn|sug 0] SI00P Mall 'SIDAP POOM 2103 PIIOS M3U 1M {(suynos vou} Junurey fouau-{og 1) Joutu[-1mp Tupag'sioog
00DLB 8IS 20jdas pue IV 12 SHUN L6 18 SI00P POOM 2100 MOj|0Y 20%|dos PUR 2AOWSY] JoUU-{0gp )} Joustul-jur FulPMTRI0) PIOS 01 5100(] 2107 MO|[OH JoURIu] 30ejday pis SAcwaY 91100l

"yawef aaujdas pue sppued pawopad (2015 SS3[UIBIS 0) DGR 100p (durgne pue

. 133105 Jipdal J0/pue 100p 192105 aov[dal pUR IA0WAL IPN[AUI [jiM 104 JO adodg Witeg Jouap -8y 1) JoLaig-1un) Surjomg 's100(] J0u91xg-(0gp1) Jouaxg-nun Sugpsc)esn)
000000828 "EdINY 18 s1um g6 18 qurel pus Joop jouaps soedal pue aaows Af1apdwon Juewi[] {£g I 780) 07U (78D ¥ 660) 1edy e 100(] UIAIDG pUR J0URY ejday pue 3s0WIy 201041

-—.D.W* .—..au.n.l.._ ._...41- ....___l.....- I A 3 A0 AN ...,» ,-.-....21.__

pue sqn [ -(0gt [} JoL2iu]-1un) Suemd ‘3usqum(g-(0gp () Joujuf-nur Supag eno

{08y 1) Jouurfun Funjamq [EREPIN-(08Y1) JOLRIUENUN FU[PAAS2INES PUE SYUIS

USUIIA-{ 08K 1) Jouamuf-aiun Buljjam(’suiqe]) uaymry-(ogy 1) sousur-iun Sajjjamg’(unnos uou)

Sunuimg Jousui-{ggy1) souaruj-Jiun Suipiam’si0oq 0LRIUI-{0gy| ) J0URUIIN Buljjam (aunnos
uou) Butoof4-{gg ) Jouawur-arun Fuqrem [watn(I-(ogp1 ) Joumui-mn Surjamqsapounios
(08¥1) Jouaw-mun Su)jama'([eatfosd uow) Sunioo) g wioonpeg-(ogk [) Joumul-nun SupPM SIS
Pug S121UN07) woonned-(0gr 1) Joumup-nup Sunamc'ssauerddy-{ogp1) Jonaiur-nun

“AMidans uip|ing pue sweaq pue Jool 1e $xoes 'mqas pasodxa ‘fleds Bunmqsmopuim-(0gr1) Jomaxg-un uijpma‘sjeoy-{ogk ) 0UNXI-un Butjemg siu ey
2115U09 30 Jredas pue 2pis Auadoad uo JEI3IE] J2IEM 18 BA[EA JIO-IAYS MIU SpOjaL pue sfupue{ggp[) Jouapxg-yy Sunjfam suonepimoJ-(0gp1) Jouaxg-iuny Buippomg adeasg
01 BUTP{Ing Jo Jou21xa v aur] A5t Jo TurSnY 10 AUl 1sem pue sanem Jo Furdid 1 - §|pautelg J0UNXF-{0gp1) J0LeIkg-IN Fuiamg Bunne] pue g soumXg-(0gp1) Jouaixy
~21 'SAIXY JYTY PUE ‘SIPIIMS *SII[IN0 ‘SISYRAIQ 1N JO Iwaoeidas pesddn -] Jui[paa Bunydi souaxa-(ggp) Jousixg-iun Suipemg'sioog souapa-(ogpT ) 100N
jound [2otn5ofa “Funured souajut 2191dwos dpnfoul 0 Joy, uIoos Futal pus - 3utjpimq'saypiod pur sumnjo)-(ggy 1) souaixa-iug Supad'qers Fupma-(ogpT) souang
00'000°0623 W00.pag W00 ‘LYY IPRIOUI OF SIUN O] JO UONEZILAPOW Jun ejduo) -uun Suemg)(egn) seiewn 7 (€39 ¥ 280) 0ZUIW (78D 7 66D) 185y 18 vONRZILAPOp [ 6900l
(Fuiqunid-(og 1)
“SINANIE UARINOSUOI IM PIIFIDOSSE SR 304 IO pue Jouau |- Tulam Kaone ] e S{UIS VIGATN-(08y1) Jouanup-nup Fuijpag’sauges) uaysyy
*sasoy Ajddns s soAjea 3[Fur 's3[m MBI AUIS UGN PRI OF IOM Map 081 ) Jormiuf-yun Fujjim (3unnos wou) Sunured JOUST-(08k| ) JouRIuL-N Fm(famc 100
“pupj-ur Junsrxa gageur o] mau ‘Mau yiam pasejdal pus paysiowap aq o1 Housiu-(gp1) Jounuf-iupy Juiam (sunnos o) Funoold-(0gp) JoLLWI-NN FunpRag RILmaa(T
00005°LZ1S pire "Suny [[eA 100jqe0 25uq FUNSIXT "INV IR SIUN S| JO HOTEZILIBPOMU BYNTY ~(08¥1) souaui-nun Suamg saaueddy-(0gp1) J0UAUI-TUA SuIl2MaJUOnTAOUY UALIITY 0900011
00°0LE'986S {£000001000D) 66 VHMHD
1500 pREWNST Auuend) saL105a3eD) HaoAy Jolegy Jo uondiiasa( [eiauasn Jwen/Hquny juswdoaagg Jaygnuapy
[44114 £ JB3IZ JOJ JUIWANEIS IO A\

(5) syuawayelg Haopq spaay [eaisdy g - sadef Suntoddng :q jaeg

TT0T/8T/T0

PLTOLLST Ue[d Uonoy Iea A -2l - werdold puny jende)
3UISNOY epu] puE d1[qnd JO 210 . ) )

swdojaaa(] wequq) pue Suisnoyy jo Juawuedad g




(800T/¥)T'SLO0S-ANH uuog

00°000°051%

{51500 0auip) Aipuns *sjyausq pue SaLB[Es JJuis /Y (51500 pue 5204 JayIQ <08y 1) UONENSIIWPY PENU0))SIS0]) puE 5394 590001
Q0000°'1$ 51502 iipny (Ipny-{0gk] } UoNEnsIIWpY weaua] pry vop0al
‘SILUALIDE a5yl jo
00°L8Y"OPES oddns u saiiddns apnjow 01 somANGE SuLoNLOW pu uonERWA[dw! ‘Fute] (Apung {01 p1) UONENSITIPY ' SILRIES-(0] p1) HOUEASIIWPY )SISOD) SATRISIINUPY £900d1
00°£92°05v3 ({asymvn) 3aIm-ALNOHLOY
Bl sl 5= T T
0871) 4o ns-Hun Tunjama 'suren - s3ur] 3oma5-{08p () o aS-Iun Julfjem Turgsed
-08y1) oM aus-1un Funomg'siasoys pue sqni-(pgp1) soumu-nun Junama fuqumig-(ogpr)
Jouau-11up) BUEMQ'[FIURYIN 08P [) 201w Rurjam('siasne.) pue suIg usUanE0s L)
Jouu[-uny w_h____oiﬂ.aua_ﬁ_uu U8k [ ) Jousu]-jiun mu___uin_.aonﬁno._ uou) Aunureg JoLRiu]
~(08¢1) Joumu|-iup) uifpmg sioog Joumul-(ggp] ) Jousul-yury Jutjjamc(aunnas wou) Sutoo)q
~(08p1) Jouu(-imp) Funamq ' [eatofE-(08Y1) 10U UM ‘sapouno{0gp () IoLs)
-Hun Buijamd'(j2a(pAd uow) Buicol] WOONYIEg-{pgh|) Jouatuf-1up) T [AmMQ'SHUIS PUE Si3junos)
uonsaguuapi Juppied desipuey apnjoup ‘sumonus Suipjug woonyieg-{0gp1) Jounuf-nus) Sunpma'ssouenddy-(ogy 1) souamu-iun Smpama‘smopuim
Pue Swieaq pue Joo1 18 SYOED 's1eqai pasodxa [|eds 21a10u0a jo Jiedal pus ~08¥1) Joumxg-nun Builjamg'sadeasg airy - syeaeIg-(ogp 1) Jouapa-nun Tufmageoy-(0gy1)
apis Auadosd uo [21299] J31em 18 9A[EA JJO-1nYs Mau 3pnjaut o) Fuip;ing Jo soLaixa Jouaneg-nup) Sufflam'suonepunog gyl ) JouaIxI-un Juljjamg adessg a1 - s[pasRIS 100X
1e 2wt 3j5um Jo Buigsay 1o aul] disea pue saiem Jo Surdid-or ‘samnpay iy ~(08#1) s0uaixg-un Suypma 'Surue) pue wed Joumxg-{ogp1) JourKg-nun Sunpaser' Tyt
PUE SIINMS "SI2[IN0 ‘s1axe21q 11002 Jo Wwawase(dar ‘apesddn pued [eatyoops douapxg-{pgy [) ouaxg-jup) Fugjjam siooc] Jouaxg-(ggpl) Jouapg-nup] Juigpm'soneg pue
“Junured Joumut a1ajdwon apnjout 01 oM * (SYAN) PrEpUTIS AN[Iqissaooy 24220-(08y1) Jouanx3-uy) JuiffEm('sayoiog pue sunje{0gy ) Jounxg-ur) Fuypmg'28een
|21apa uuopIr), NUN HOS Em A[dmod |[1M UoNEAOUIL 'Wooa JuAL puR Wo0Ipaq 20upng- suodre)-(0gy ) Jouaxg-uur) Supema'qe|s Juip|mg-(0g# | ) JoLxg-un Surjamgare
00°000°0Z1% LLDAIKIEq *UIYIIR] 2PRJaUl O3 SN 12 SHUN p O HONEZILAPOUL 11N 2jo(duios) ZSTUIIN-542i04-531u00[eg~{ g 1) J0URING-1UN BuljlamE)ApIqIssaooy pOg 10) up) ajBAousy 951001
1500 pajeunsy Anuend) saLI033)u)) 10 A Jolepy Jo uonduasaq [r1auan awep/Haquiny juawdopaag Jaygnuapy
770T € ABIZ J10] JUIWDIEIS HIOAL

(s} syuawagelg HA0 A4 Spaay [easAyg - saBeg Sunsoddng iy reg

C20T/8T/T0
PLTO-LLST

Suisnoy ueipu] pue arjqnd Jo 30JO
wewdojaas(] weqan) pue Suisnoy jo juawnrede( S

UB[d UOIOY 183 §-9AL] - Wwreidold puny [ende)




(8002/Y)T'SLOOS-ANH Lo

‘BIMINAS TUIP|ING PUE SURAq PUR JOOI 18 $I812 ‘feqad pasodxa ‘jeds

iou0a Jo Jredar pue aprs Kuadosd U0 |eIR] J318M 18 JA|RA [JO-INUS M3l SPRjou!
01 AUIP[Ing Jo 0UIRYX3 I8 U] 1SLA JO FUIGSR]Y IO JUT] AISeA PUE JMes Jo Furdid
~21 'SAMUXY WF)) PUR ‘SIYIUMS 'SIZ[IN0 ‘5I2YEIIq 1NID JO JuIWIIRdar ‘apesidn
fpued [EaLaale ‘Funnred Jouann a53(dwos apn[aul 01 YoM, o0l FmAl pmu

L T ™ TS T TE = ST

235-(0811) YIoA ang-1un) Sujamq siomons pue sqrl~-{ogy1) Jouaiul-nun Suppad Suquing
0gp1) Jouaijn FaEma o~ 0gp1 ) Joumu-inn S eamreyaaN-{0gpl ) ouai-un
Juilpma's1pIn8 pue SIS USIX~(0gp1 ) Joualul-un FuPMI'SIGMGED) USGINY-(0grl ) Joua]
U 3uljam ' (aunnas uou) Fujuied souatul-{ogpT) JOLRIB-un Fujamg sioog Joul-(ngy1)
JoLaiu]-Ju) Bujamg'(sunnol uou) Suuooli-(og 1) Jouau[-nup BujEma [EawaalE- 08yl ) JoLmig
A Funm's3panio)-{ogy) Jouatup-iun Fupm ({4 tow) Suucoly woonpeg-(og()
JouRul-jupy SurPma ' sius put siauno ) woeonpeg-(0se|) Joumu-nun Suijjamg saauenddy
08 1) Jouaup-1un Smpjom smopuig-(0gy1) JOLRINT-1UN Su[PMG 'Sj00N-(08P1)

SOLRIX U Sullamer'sAupey pur sdutpue{ogp1) Jouaixg-iun Supmd’suonepunod-(ogy|)
10NN Ful{jmq'adeosy 211 - S|PAITEIS 10UAXT-(0g8 ) 0uaveg-im FmjEm Turymey) pue
e Jouaixg-(g8y1) o Sujjamg Sunysry souaxg-{ogp1) Jouag-un Jupmg'sicoq
Jouang-(08p1) JouAXz-ImN Fujam sanaiog pue sutwnion-{0gp 1) ORI UM qeS

00'000°FLIS pag }12q 'Uat211y ANIIUT 0] SHUN 9 JO WONEZNLIIPoW un apjdwe]) Aurpiing-(08p1) Jouaixg-amupy Fumpma)gzn) uesy 73 (0s7) WS “Tuop ‘v 1@ uonezIwapopy (| £90001
00'000°FLIS (10000010009) DSZ VANHD

00°000°05% sisop) suoneiadp {(90¥1) suonmadg)siso] suonesadg 551041
FADIAIGSE [ENIRUOD PUR UOTISMIISUCD “I0M Jopio asuyoind Joj maiaal se yans

00°000°1% ‘wiesiosd 447 au 01 Jupurenad sanss) U UOHEINSUCD PUR SA01AIS [Ea] APIADL] (51507 pue 5994 J2uIQ-(08F 1) UGNENSTITWPY enuo))50IARg [Ea] S11001
‘suoneayi[enb 1o} 15anbal puel piq J0j UOHENAUI SE UDNIS SIUDMIDSIHOAPE

00'9LLLS Suuinbas siafasd ‘siuawaxnbos 1watLwes 21gnd Pate(RI 47 JO] WIUSIIIAPY (51500 pue $33.1 1PO-(0R P [) UOHEISIIWIPY 19EHUDD) ADY 990041

1500 pajewsy Apuend sar103a1r) H1oAp J0lERA] J0 uondisasa( [riaudn aweNaquny judwdopadg Jaguuapy

0T €

ABI A JOJ JUIWAIRIS HIOA

(5) syuawagelg HI0 M4 SPasN [etshy g - saBeq Susoddng :Jf 14eg

TTOT/8TL/TO
PLTO-LLST

BuIsnoy uwIpu] pue o)jqnd 3O B0
Juauwidofasaq weqin) pue Suisnoy jo uawureda(] 'S

Ue[q UONDY 183 & -9Al] - urerford pun, [eude)




(2002/P)T'SLOOS-ANH wWiog

00°000°0628

"AIMINNS FUP|INg pue SWUag pue oo 18 sYou ‘Tega pasodya ‘leds

31212UD3 3o Jedal pue apis Auodord Uo [RI21R] JFEM 1 SAEA JJO-INGS MATT IpN[2UL
01 BUIP[INg JO JOUAIXA |8 AUT| 3)5EM JO Sunjsnyy 10 23] jsem pire 101em Jo Turdd
a1 ‘saangxy R pu ‘saymIms ‘SIP[N0 ‘SIaEIq MNana Jo Juawaanjdas ‘apeddn

|aued |eanaapa *Sunuied Jounu) ) 101 Y04y “woos Fuial pue

LLOQUPR] “WOOMIE] ‘U121 Ipn|oul ©f SIIun ()] JO uonEZILpow Jum MNaqdwo]

TSt T To=T T L T

1amag-{08p1) HOM AIS-uuN FungRmg samoys pue sqn -{ogk|) Jousiul-yun SumamaFuquingg
H08p1) JoUUL-u) Bu(Rmg ' PIO-08#1 ) oLEIu-in B [Eameyso (08 #]) ous-1up)
Fuljomg'sisaned pue syuig usyani-{o8p) JOUAUI-IUL SUNPMC 'SR WaYARY-(0gET) omanu|
“3ury Suypmg‘(aunnos uow) Funured Jouaf-{oge]) Joud-)ury Sutjfamgsioog Jouam-(ogy)
Jouzul-m) Bulfam (aunnos nou) Sunioo|d-(gg ) :oumul-ir SuipEm [EaLasgE-{0gy 1) Jouu]
-Hun Bufpid'sapotnio)~(ogpT ) Jouaw-iun Sugjem’(festka tou) Supool woorpeg-(0gk)
JouUT-I) Buljfem I sYUIS PUR SIAIUN0D) Wwoosyieg-{0gp [ ) Jouaiml-iupn Sulpmg ssauenddy
~{0g1) soumu-up Juifama’smopuIm-(0gp1 ) Joumxg-mun dutama sjoou-(0gr1)

Jopanxg-yun) Amppaa'siuriey pue siuipust-{ogp) Jouaixg-mn) Fuypmg‘suonepimog-(pgp1)
40UIXE WU BUNPMC'2dEST U1 - S||9AIRIS J0UAXT-(08 1| ) J0uarg-iup Funjamg Furgmey pme
VoIt J0LRIXE-(0gp1T) Joualkg-up) Bulfamg Jungd) T souaig-(0g1) Jouaxg-Hun SupEm's1000
JouANXI{0F# ) JOLAXT-Hu) FUNPMC'S3OI04 Pur suwIno)-(og 1) Jouaxg-1un Sunpmaqels
Buipiing-(og1) soupg-mn Fuiama)oszn) 0101 (Z8/gr0y/sE0) OPapaq 12 LoNEZILSPOI Nup) oLpoat

00°9¥Z'eESS

{r000DOL000D) 0SE VHNHD

00°000°192%

“amjons SUIpjing pue SWeaq pue Jood 18 S Mg pasodxa ‘juds

2113103 §o itedar pue apis Auadosd o [eI21e] J21EM I8 3A|EA JJO-INGS MU SPNJOUT
0} GuIpjmy JO IOLIAXI 18 2ul] 21sem Jo Funysng o auy| 2sea pue ajem jo Jurdid
=as 'samg WEI| pue 'soqms 'SIIPNO 'SI0YEalq IMANS jo uawaaedal ‘apeaddn
[oued [eanoo)a ‘Tunuied souayn 2121dwWod IPNJIUT O JOA, WL FutAl| pun

OB TT R SIS =TT FE e o T DEFTT R0 A SIS =TI SN A ST
pue sqnIA0gy 1) JoLjug-iun Suyamg umquonid-(ogp1) Jousiuf-un Funpag Rpo
(08¢ 1) Joui-jun Sulama[eaue - 0gy |) LoLRiu]=1up Fulpmg sIeane, pue symg
uaynry-{eg1) touajuaiun Suifemg sieuge) uatpir{ogr) Jouamug-1un Duapjame'(sunnos uow)
Sunuted Joumul-(0gp1) Jomawl-iun Suyomg'sicaq] Joua1u<0gpl ) oI SulPad{Bunno:
tiow) 3uLi00f 4= ggp [} Jouay-nun Fuea  EomsF-(0gE]) JoHaMun Fujamg sapowo)
~08# 1) 1oupup-nun Surgamcr([eoafs uou) Supooyf woospeg-{psk] ) oualuf-iup) FuijEmg'symg
pug SI2)UN07) wooneg-(0gy | ) Joumup-nur] uljjamy'saaurnddy-{ggy] } Joustug-iun
Juijpma'smopui {084 1) J0UAXT-IUN FulEm I Go0y-(0gy| ) 1ou21xg-wn Junpme sTurey
pus sTUpUR gy () Jouanc-yun Suipma'suonepunc 4-(08y] ) Jouaixg-mr] Sunjama'sdessy

AL - S|RMIrElS JOURIXG {081 ) JouiXg-iun) Sulfpag Suryned pue ureq Jouxd-(08 1)
Jouawg-jun JunjREmd Iunydi] souxg-(gsrl ) ouNxg-un Sunamg si0oq souexE-(osy )
LRI 32 'S0 PUE SUUM[O)-(08 () 108a1xg-1un Sunamc'qels Jupimg-(oge1)

8001p3q 'OOTRY ‘UaYINY IPR[IU] O) SITUN 6 JO UDHIZIKBPOW Wun Najdwo)

10LRI-Yun) Suiama){£80) ueleeu] ‘(230 ¥ §20) 0jojoju] ‘(p01D) BUCA 1 ONFETUSPOR I 890041

00°000°1928

(Z000001000D) 00T VEAHD

3500) pajewysy

Luuend

saL1033)e)) 40 Aq Jolepy Jo uonduasaq [BI2uUI5)

aweN/aquing Juawdofasagg faynuapy

fadiré € JEIA J0J JUILUNBIS HIOAL

(5) sauawde)g a0 A4 SpasN [easlyg - sadeg Junaoddng :p Jaeg

ZTOT/BT/TO
PLTO-LLST

SuIsnop uetpu] pue oi[qnd Jo 2O
wswdojaaaq ueqin) pue Suisnoy jo wawpedag ‘S

ue[d uonoy 1es A -9A1] - wieidoid puny [eude)



(800Z/¥)T°SLO0S-ANH Wiog

00 6L8'VOV'TS 150;) PEWNST JO [IOJNE
“(asodoid asurusiutem sof suoiwso| snouea 18 91e3) uoisiaaad yore] ypm
2128 [Euosiad apim Y - ¢ apnjau o) i sw| Apsdod yum paudie yssw
Auif-ureyo pue “edg alim LOISUD] (315 SSI|UTE]S WONOG pire (e doj Sajawep wig)| (sFeuiig
. -1 '1s0d sul sapwelp W ‘YS1Y Y9 9q [[PYS 20U ‘THD PUT §FD OPIPIT bANY H08¥1) 1o aus-1un SuglomgFunyBii-{ogr() pom mis-ir] Fuypm adeaspuet-{ogr] ) pom
009FZ'EVTS 18 Auadoud punode aul 20u3) srewiind Sunisixa sovjdal pi asodsip ‘anatusy 2u5-1un Julj g Tuuad-{ogp1) oM SUS-IT IUEMA)pdINY 18 Juroua. soeidey pue Aoy 451041
1500) parewiysy Lmueng) §31108ME)) 10 AN Jolely jo uondisasa(] [e1audn) aweN1aquin juawdojaagg Janpuapy
7707 € AB3X J10] JUDWIIIEIS HIOAL

(5) syuawamg a0 spaaN jeasdyy - saey Sunpsoddng 1y 31eg

ZToT/8UTO
PLTO-LLST

Sutsnop weipu] pue o1jqug JO PWO
juawdo[oaa(] uequp pue uisnoy jo wuawneds(] ‘SN

ue[d UOTIOY 183 & -3Al] - werdold puny [eude)



(800Z/¥)7'SL005-aNH wiog

‘suoneayljenl 107 1sanba pue piq 10§ ONEAL ST NS SIUSWISILIIAPE
009LL'LS Buunnbas 5193 (0.d *Siwawasmbar uamuos syqnd poieyas 40 10§ MAWASILIAPY (s1500) pue 5324 JAPO- 081 ) uo! PV 1IRLUCD) L3APY £210al
00°000°05 1 AIpUNS "§11J2Uaq pue saLejes gers ay (s1s0]) pue 5394 SIRQO~08F) LOHEASIUNUPY PEOUOD)SISOD) PUT 5937 zioal
00 000°18 Fieo) ipoy (npny-{ggp1) UonensNUPY 158110 upnY 1Z10d1
‘saIMALOR 251 JO

00'LBY'OFZS uoddns u saijddns apnjauy o1 sonianor Funioluow pus vopmuatadur ‘Funmueyg (Aapung-(g1 1) vonnsIWPY souvpes-{g1 41) ¢ PY)5150 dANROSIUIWpY ozlodi
00°000°0£% 5150 suonesadg {{gop1) suonerdg)siso) suonemdg £50001
00°000'0Z$ saueridwos vy (uonEaoRY-(0RK1 ) U] PY 1920U0DU0NEI0RY 850001

00°€9T'SLYS (aSYMVN) ZAIM-ALRHOHLOY
1500 pAEwssy Lnuend)y S3LI082IED) 10 A4 Jolepy o nondisasag [etouan awepnraquny Judwdopraag Jaynuapy

€707 b JEX 10] JUIWDIEIS HIO A

(8) symaurayeyg Hao Ay SpaaN [ensAy g - sa8eg Bunseddng 1y 1reg

ZT0U/8LI0
PLTO-LLST

Suisnof uerpuy pue siqu  Jo 3910
wawidojara(] ueqiq) pue Suisnop Jo yusunmdac ‘g

UB[J UOIOY 1Bd A -aAl] - Weldold puny [ende)




(8002/+)Z'SL00S-ANH Wiog

(A3 U0 30M 01 530j2]
sauofiaien) RIoA 30 210N s1un 1ured mou aotaaad pur stiol (e (s 'preoq
TUIWII NI UI Z/[ Qe[S Joos Fuustxo J0 Wonog 03 us)sty Supjorn [RIat apnjpm
01 3{10M UOLB|NSU| mapN “UOLRNSUL mau aposd pue sease ([B 1809 Joos ‘pasmedas
2q 01 S}IRD pui s[jeds 2190u07 ‘FuNEod MU 2412001 O} SEIIR IIIO PR SIVFINS

(a1Q-{(gg 1) Jouapuiiun Supame(unnos uou) Sunured ousiu[-{0gp] ) Joumur-uun
Tuigjomg poLn3|3-(0gp1) sousm-unp) Julpag soon-{0gp1 ) Joumxg-un Tuamey Sunyne pur

000007918 Jooi ysum samod AjySnoloy ‘qejs Jood 21209u0a FunsINg || JAV ¢ sIur} 8 Juted JOLE-(pgp|) J0UIIXT-1un Suljamg)uontaiasg amsiopy P [Euuay |, ‘teday Jooy 3721900 celoal
15T T Rl ! TR - 53

MAg-(08 Y1) YIOM 3NIS-IU) BuIfPMQ'sIamogs pus sqR-{ggp] ) Jousiuf-pun Buipm Surquing

(08¢1) JoUSW-11u1) BUIPAGISNO~(08p1 ) Jouan-iun Suifam eatueysaw-{ogy 1) Jouamul-inn

Sumamgrsiaoned pua sYug w08k [) Jouawj-inn Suama'sisugeD) vanr-{0gkl) Jouai)

=i Buypmg'(aunnas vou) Sunured souau[-{ogy () JOMAUI-IuN BupEmg'sioog ouan-{ggp1)

Jouanug-uun Suijpama (sunnos uou) 3unoo|4-(0gp1) Jouau-nun Supa g EoupRaE-(ogk) oL

-hun Fujpme'sap D-(08¥ () soumup-iuny Susjam'(eatja£s uou) Sirtool] wooneg-(08k 1)

1ouup-ury Juygpm'sulg pue siauncy weenjeg-(ogp[) oumul-un Sulpmgssousddy

UNIILIS BUIP[ING PUE SWEIQ PUE 001 |8 SYIWD ‘19021 pasodxa ‘[eds «08v1) Joumu-nur) Jutjpag smopul-{0gF1) Jouvnxg-iun Supaa'gcoy-(osrl)

<2109 Jo sedar pue spis Apadosd uo [eizie] I5TRM 18 SA|RA JJO-INUS MU 2PNjOUL Jouanxg-nup) 3w asg sTuey pue sSupue-{ggy] ) J0Uaxg-1un Fw| g suonepunog-(ogp1)

o FuIp[Ing Jo JoLapxa Je Ui 31sem Jo Tupysny Jo S| 15em pue a)em jo Fuidid 10UIIXG-Hu] SUlomeT'adeIsT 211 - S[PAUTELS JOLIRIXT-(0gy ) J0uaxg-nun) Furam'Sunyne,) pus

-2 'sarmxy | pue 'SayKIMs 'SIaPING ‘SIEAIq 1o jo uawaoedas ‘apesddn ured JouNxg~{(Rp]) Jounxg-uup) Buljpmg Junydi souaxg-(ggp1 ) Jouaxg-jun 3 ] [am]'s1000

: joued [eatnoage ‘Bunuied soua aagd Pnjoul 0} oM oot Suial) puz I0U21%340By] ) JoLRrxg-tu) SmpEm‘saydsod pue suwnjo)<ggp ) JouaXI-uA Tnjmaqes
00°000°pL1S WoQupaq ‘WoosjIeq "G2HI1 apNjaLL o] S|IN 9 JO UONPZIIIPOW Jfun a13(dwo)y Buipning-{ogp1) souag-nun JuipmgXozD) uesy P (osz) UIS '‘Fuoly 'Hy 1 vonEzruapop 1uf) sziodl

00°000°95¥% (1000001000D) 05T VINHD
00°000°528 S2lAlag IURIMEUOT) JY (51500 pur 5334 J2HIO-08F[ ) VONENSILILIPY 1DRNUOY}SI|AIIE WHNSUOD) Ty pgtodi

S20[A195 |RIIIRLUOCD PUR UDNINLSUOD “HI0M JIPIO a5EL2IN 10 MIIAL SE INS

00'000'18 ‘urerfoud 40 3 01 Sururenad sonsst ue UONENNSUCD PUE S2I1ALDS [RHa] ApIAOIg (51502 pue 5294 S O-(pgP1) VONROSIUNMUPY J9ENUOT) JsoiAtag [Eda rdlila
1500 paewnIsy Anuend sar1o8a)e)) a0\ Jolepy jo uondLidsa( [esauas) awepJagunp Judwdojaaaq 11 3uIp]

£20¢ P

IR 10] JUIWAJBIS HIOAL

(5) SpUIWANEIE HIO AN SPaaN [BANSAYJ - sa8eg Sunsoddng g jarg

CTOT/BUTO
PLTO-LLST

Suisnoy uipu pue 1jqng Jo 2O
juewdofeasq ueqdq) pue Suisnop] Jo Juawedac] 'S

UB[J U0V JBd X -9Al1 - weidoid puny [ende)




(8002/P)TSLO0S-ANH w0

000000023

SAEINSUL PIIIPISUDD 3q [[BYS UTiSa(] ‘UOREPUNO) PAIOJUIR

UD paaoyouR pue pajgainasse 5q o) Apeat aunpanas Aejd pamouqead mau IpLAGL[
‘suumiod Aq payoddns uonasuuos paroq Yy spus pied ‘spued 23315000
15e0aud |RIICZLIOY (1M ISISUGD 'SUIN[0D UG 1BIUDD U YT 18 (Yaea-g)
sunjoo Juipuels 32,9 JO 151SU00 [jEys aInjpALS APRYG PANIIIU0D) PAALOJUIIY MIN

~UON'FUnUIIT{08p1) oM 9§ Funjamg-uoN '2deaspurT-(giT) oA ans Fugjama-uon Gunus.g
~(08v1) 4104 9115 Futjpmg-von Fuprs-(pgy1 ) Jouarxg Tunjamg-uon's;ooy-(ogeT) JomaLNg
FunRMa-uONSuy|ne) pue uied-(pgr1) J00SIXT Buljpmg-on FunyS 10y 1) Joua1xg Fuifpmg
“UDN'UOMEPLNO-{gp1) JoLmig Tulljamg-uoN saIdouE-{0gp1 ) L0LIXT TUOMQ-UON)ZINY

18 2I21S bid PIRILGRIL] 9P JUMINLNG IPRYS S121007) PIVIOJUINY M3 1IRISUS]) 7§ USisaq]

00°000°19Z8

‘NS BUIP{ING pUE SWEdq PuE J001 18 SYORLD teqal pasodis ‘|(eds

1250009 Jo 1edas pue apis Ausdoid uo [BIRIE| I3Rm 8 JA[RA TJO-INGE MU apnjour
03 3uIp]Ing Jo 1oL2NXa 12 Ju| 215EM JO Fumysnyy 10 Ul Asem pue soiem jo Imdid
-4 'SUMIXY 1F1 pue “sayaiims 'SIIAND 'EIYEIq 1N0110 Jo Nwumoedar ‘aprsddn
laued (pawnoags ‘Funumed soumu aa)d PRjoul o1 o woos Tuim) pue
Wooipaq "Wo0sIEq ‘UHYa11y Apn[pu 01 SN G JO UONEZIRUpOW pun 32 dwoy)

DELOTI

pue sqnL-(08k1) J0uau[-iun Sulpmg Buiquinid-(ogy1 ) Jouam)-1jun Fuang amo
~(08¢1) Joumui-un Supama’|meyaa-(08k1) IR SURRMA SIONE] pUR SYUIG
U081 S0ty Bulfpmg 'slauige) uPIn-(0g 1) Jouai-in Fujpsc(aunnel o)
Aupuicg JOUANT-(0gp1 ) 0UNU[-11u() BunMA'SI00q JOUAIN-(0gpT) J0UAI-1Hur BUTE M (aunnos
uat) SUL00|{-{0gy1) soudIu[-1gup) Fnomq ELRIF-{08 Y1 ) JoUIY -1 BulEMG sapouos)
+(08¢1) Jouau-tun) Bunem (o124 vou) Fuuooly woongeg-(ogp () JouauL1u7 Suifamgsjuig
PUB 8131Un0% woauyieg-(ggy () ouaw-un Suijosg saouenddy-{ogy1) louapug-jun
Bulljpma'SMOpUIM-{08Y 1) J0UDINI-NUN BUIPMG'HO0Y-(08H1 ) Jouang-nun FunmasTuley
pue s3ulpur {0y 1) 1oudIXg-tun) SuriEmq'suonepuna{ggr1) 1OURIXI-un BunRMA qeLS
Buiping(08y 1) 1oua1xg-1un Furjjamadeosg s - S|[PAMIRIS JOUAIXT (021 1) toLalxy

“hun ugmg durgne)) pue weg jousxg{(0gy|) souang-un Sutesa Tunydi souxg-(gspT)
SOLRING-HUN Bull[amq's300(] J0U1XT-(0g ] ) J0URIXT-u7] Fuljama'saDI0d pup SULM(o-(0gT)
Jouang-iun Suripma ) gn) uefereur (730 % §70) ojojole), {001D) Buoj, 1 nonEZILIPOR Mupy

9zLoal

00°005'819%

{2000001000D) 001 VHAHD

00°000°0Z18

‘woneaynuapt Suryred dedpuey spnjou) asmianns Swmppng

PUE SWEaq pue Joo je $)ae1 's1eqal pasodxa ‘jleds aiouca jo nedas pue

3pis Auadoud uo JRI2jR] 11RM 18 FABA LJO-INYS Mau apnpout o} Sup|nq jo Jouajxd
18 aul[ 3)sewm JO FUIYSNY 10 uj| Misea pue 2jem Jo Suidid< ‘sanxy &y

PUB SAUDIIME *S2[IN0 ‘Simjeal] 1Mo jo uawadeidas *spriddn [aued |Eoumpajs
‘Funured souauy ajaidios apnfaur o) o *,(SYAM1) prEpUTIS Anpgissanay
[B32p2] ungpu, Hun pog Yiss Sdurod jjim uonesouas ‘woor Jua) pue woospaq
‘WOONIEq "UAYDIEY 3PN[IUL O) JINY 18 SIHUN b JO UONEZNLDPOW un ajdwe

T T T TS T T Iy
UG- FUMPM'SUTRR - SUIT JMAS-(08K 1) IO AS-iun) FUNPMQ'SIMOYS PUR S0 L-(0gpT)
JouRUNIN FugEm uqunid{ogp1 ) Jouol-up Rupm EAURIINH0gyT) SO amn
Suinmgsionu,f pu syg UayINY-(0gy () Jouaug FuNRACNIFMGED) UYNRY-(0gH] ) oy
- Funjjpsg’{aunnos o) Sunureg Jounuf-{pg 1) Joumup-n Sutjamg sioog Jouami{pge)
Jormi-iun Anjam'(2unnol uou) Funools-(0gy) JouuT-nn Bulfam ' [EaLAE-(pgy 1) Joua]
N UM 'SIPOUIAT g 1) JOLDIL-tiA) TM[[M (83124 u0w) F1100[4 WOONTEE-(0gHT)
Jopu-1un Suljj2sg syurg pri s1aunos wooseg-(ggp1) Joumug-iun Juipemgssaverddy
(08 1) sousIT U FUfj Mg smopuI M-{08 7 1) 1ouRIXg-un FUlRM sadeosg oty

- S{PMNEIS(08Y 1) JoUMXF-ITur) Furljamd sjooy (08| ) 10USINT-IN) FulfjoMT ‘suonepunog-{oghT)
JouaIxg-nun Fu2mq'odeosg aun - spamNeIg 10URXT(0gp1 ) JOUoIXE-Imy) Sulfamg Suryme) pue
Jued 10LXT-(08] ) Jouapg-nur Suypma FunydrT s0uxa{ogp1) Jouag-iun Sujjpag‘soog
10UAXT-{08p]) JoLING-HIu SuPMQ'sONR] PUE SaC-{ 08K ) JDLIIXT-NA SulPMg sIIag

pue suminjod-{0gp[) sounxg-1un) Sugomq'aTeren s9epng- suodres-(og1 ) Jousixg-nup
Bunpaa‘Bueped<0gy 1) o aug-itun Sunpma‘qels Tuip(ng-(ogp() Jouaixg-1mn Tuigang
STUPY-5342104-531u02 (008 | ) Jauarxg-aur] Fuftiomc ) qissaooy’ pc 10J 1) Sleaousy

651001

3500 PAJRLIST

Anuenp)

sauodaje)) yio Ay J0lep jo wonduasag [CEENERSY

aweN/Rquny Juawdopasag

Jayyuapy

£20T 4

18I A 10} JUIWIIE)G HI0p

(5) symowageyg yao M spaan [easfyy - sadeg Sunsoddng :qy J1Bg

20T/8¢/T0
PLTO-LLST

Swisnoy ueipu] pue aljqnd Jo 310
awdofaas ueqaq) pue Susnoy Jo wsunredacg -g

UB[d U0IDY Jea X -9Al] - wetdoid puny enden)




(800Z/t)2°SLO0S-A1H W0,

3pim Yo1-7 sa1ed ‘aumsopua jaued mew Funsixa apesd-dn ‘walsds (e33R Mau
‘aurey Fuipjing mau o1 pajunouw (ad4 JTT Janes ASsouz) sBunyd adk) wous)xe
P2ICAU0D 2PNILL O} Y104 MIN "S)LI] UONONISUOD UL[) A SWIAN HOM IO
pug ssamixy yim sod B 35U Sunsixa Jo uonIoWap apnjaul 0] 10 AL UOHPD
600T D81 tad-sa3i0) anwsiag 707 Aiodage) amsodxg pulsy ‘ydwgy | Aopy
PLIA, *U0IP2 600Z (DEI1) apoa Juipjing [eUDHRWAN] BuALD uHisaq “spued
[ (13 i pasojaua punose [fe 3jey Jaddn sfjeay auqey yumey qim
POSORUD (S T1)JIBY SOMO] S{TEA SPIS PUE §]{RMPUD ‘WINMWIUILL Y57 ST}
[BaoA FTEVO, 2043 3001 '(1Tua] YOZ1 X 2p1s YR 39 J[EYS MINDS MAL *HNos

(a3eurer vuolS{ngy | ) 2om 2ug Buyramg-uon adeaspue-{ogr)

HOM AU Fuifjama-uoN Tutoua 1{08p1) yop 311§ Sutjamg-uon Supis-{ogp) Joualxg Bujfjamg
UON'SIN 1S (08Y1) o S Fulfpmg-uon'aFeudis(0gs ) SHom ug Bufjpag-uon Fumir
<08%1) 10m 2us Futjpmg-uon'sjo0y-(ogp1 ) Joumxg Juipmg-uenFupyne] pue jued

{08y ) 10u=1xg Fmjpmg -vonN FunndrT-(ogr 1) Jouaxg Suamg-uop vonepuno-{ogp| ) Jouaig
mz____u;n._._oz._._c,a:o:._um UOLINRSUOD) MIN-{08 1|} UONINNSUO]) M3 N-UONINISU0 Bunamg

00'96Z°0SZ8 1[EqIY5Eq 3UMSIXD JIA0 NG PAIIACD SUIELY [2915 MIN 1INLASUC)) pur uTisagy “UON)pJINY 1¥ LN0D) [[BQYseE SUNSIXG J9A0 2IMONNS SWeL (BN MaN 1onusu07 7 udisaqg celpal
Tem T TSIy T TUN = ST
J2#35-(08¥1) 10\ ig-Hur) BunEma'sIImoyS pue sqn 1 -{pgp] ) Joumul-Nun SumEMg Suqun|g
~08p1) Jouaul-un) SuEMAPNO-(08rT) SO -ur) SuEmC Ry 0gE ) JoLA -1
Sunllomg'siane, pue syurg usyonry-(ogh1) Joumuf-iun FfEMg sIuIGED BRI-(0gr1) Jaua|
=) dulgjame(unnos nou) Funuprg souapul-(pgk1) 10uAul-nun Fuiama sicog 10ua-(ogpT)
AOURMIIUR BUTjjama'(unnos uou) SULOOLI~(0g 1) JO2I(-1r) Fulamc EaLIO|T (08T ) JOUIIU]
- Sujamg'sap 2-(08¢1) SN Supag'(jeatads uou) Suuoa)y Wwoongeg-{ogy )
SOHNU[-IN TM][aR'SYUIS pue 1N woospeg-{ogy) oUAUL-un Juijpm 'soaenddy
IINGS SUIP|ING PUE SUIEIq PUT J001 16 §39E10 '18gal posodxa ‘feds {081} U Fuama'ssmoputm <08y ) Jouag-1u Turjpma’soou-(0gpL)
21213U02 jo Jredas pue 2prs Ausdosd uo [riie] saiEM T8 3A[PA JJo-Inys mau apijou) Joumxg-jun Surfpm sduipey pue sfupue-{ogp1) Jouaxg-uf) FuiEmg suonepunog-(ogpT)
0} JuIppINg J0 10US1Xa 18 Al st Jo Fuiysny 1o sur s)seM pue 1iem jo Furdid douapeg-iun Jurpmg'adeosg aug - sjjamaeig 10UANT-{ O 1) Joumxg-nun Furpsg Junyme) pue
a1 'SmING JYBI| PUL ‘SoYDIIMS 'SIING SITRI 2D JO Wauiaaedas ‘apriin ied oL ggp]) Jouapg-iun SunpagBunydi] ouna(ogsl) Jouspxg-un 8ui|pag'sioog
[oued eatnaafs ‘Funured ouaiur s1eidwios apujaur o1 yiop, ‘w0s FurAt] pue JOLINE-{(08 1) JoLRIXT-I1U Sullfam 'saypiog pue suwmio {081 ) ouaixg-nup FuEag aeis
00000'06Z8 {H001paq "WOCAPE] "L DPOJIUL 0F SHUN ) J0 vonEZIWSpow Jum MR[dwo Auippng {08+ 1) Jouaixg-mun uc,___u.saxoﬂuolv o101, (Z80/8$D/SED) 0papaq 18 UONEZRUIPOR J1ip) Lzloal
00'96T'0LSS (r00D001000D) 05T VENHO
‘(pun{-ur paawjdas aq o) paSewrwp pumoj §1 quel Jo0p Jouaiul sunsia) safmiy
pue jasy20] Aouarsd mau IPNJILT O] SJOOP MaU 'SIDOP POOM 210D PI[OS MaTT s ({2unno: vou) Gunuieg U0y ) Jouup-i Furppam g soogg
00°00S'LSIS 208l pue ZJINV 18 SITUM (g 18 SI00P POOM 2100 MO[{oY aseqdar PUE JA0WYY Joumul-(08r ) tousul-mn Sujjemg)laeg prjog o) sicoq 107 MOJ[OH Jouu] aorjday pie ssoumy gsioal
(98eunn
UUOIS-(08p L) #OM 3§ Tugjama-uon'sannn S{0gy1) yop s Tuypmc-von'sSeudig
08v1) om ans Juypma-uoNuRdinb - seary punoxdAeid-(0gv1) iom ang Sunma
1507) pajewnsy Lnuend) SILIDEIR)) HA0 AL ._a_.az._o uonyduasag |eRUIN) LN ARTTH N EuEno_u;un— Jynuapy

£207 .

JEIA J0] JUIWNB)S HJO AN

(s) sjuswage;g ya0 40 spoay [eNsAyy - saBug Sunaoddng :py jreg

C0T/8T/T0
PLTO-LLST

FuIsnoH uBIpU] pUE S1[qu  JO 200
wiewdojaaa(] ueqay) pue Sutsnoy jo uswredsaq ‘g )

Ue[q UOTIOY 122 X -aA1] - weidoig puny renden




(800T/F)T'SLOOS-ANH w0y

00'6L8'¥OV'TS 1500 paipwmsg 30 oINS
+ i Rl I T T SR LY TR =5amT |
1am35-(08 Y1) YoM S-NUM BuljjamQ sIemoNS PuE SQuL-{08k1) touaiui-iun) Buiffamg Suqumg
=08y 1) Jouaw-iun 3ulamg PNO-(081) JouRul-mn Bmas RRYN-(0g 1) Joua-mn
SutjamQ'siwaney pue sy UDYYY-(08] ) JOURUI-UA FulPMg sIMGED WYNY-(0gr]) Joum]
=iy JunEm g (aunnat vou) Sunured Joustug-{ggp| )} Jousiuf-irup) Sutjaam'siooq Jounuj-(ogk])
JouRIu[-1up) Furl P (3unnos uou) Sutoald~(ogp]) soumug-iur] FuljjEm oLna[E-(08y] ) touate]
-itun FupaMg’sapounLod~{ogp1 ) soumur-ur] Juifama'([eoljoks uou) Fuucory woonteg {0y )
Jouanu[-yup) Jul|pag uig pur simuno) wooseg-{ogr1) Jounup-iun Juiema ssauenddy
‘amjonas Juipjing pue sureaq pue joo1 1e 52813 “18qa1 pasodxa '[eds H08p 1) souau]-1tun) Suyme’smopuiy<{ogr1 ) Jouang-imun Juypamg'gooy{oeri)
21310003 jo Atedat pure 9pis Au3doid U0 [RI3L] 1218M 18 IA[RA JJO-INYS MU IPNJOUL souixg-amun Junpasuriey pue sSurpue-(0gp]) Joualxg-yiup Suyamg'suonepunog-{ogri)
01 uIp|mq JO JOUDIXS 1¥ JUT[ 2158 J0 Funysnys 10 auy] aisem pue somm jo Sudid Jouayxg-jun) Sunps adedsg 2an - sppauRlg J0unXg-(p8p1) Jouaixg-jun Fupmag Turynes
=01 "SUMINY JYT1] PUR "SALIUMS "SI[IN ‘SR 10112 Jo Jususaoridal ‘speiddn PuR yureg JouAN-{0g# | ) Jouexg-un) Swijemc Sunyii souixg-(ogE] ) ousixg
peued (e ‘Fuuured soumu 23a(dwioa apnjsut o oM woos Suta pue U BUlPA sI00Q Jouaixg-{pgh1) Joua1xg-1tun FuEmM'SYII0 PUR sTM| ) 0gF1 )} Jouang
00 0Z8'VBTS WOOIpaq "WODIIEq ‘US3)Y SPA[SUI 01 SIIUM (] JO WONEZHLIPOW Jjun Aa(dwo) -uun SunEad)Egn) oelewn % ‘(€80 B 780) 07U (78D % 660) 1eFy 18 UONEZIUAPO NU[) sziodr
00028°v8Z3 (£000001000D) 66 VENHD
(Pfzumic] wwoIS-{0gy1) YoM MG
Aunamr-uon sdeudig-(ogp1) Jom 1S Fuamd-uoN NnD pre gmD-{0grl) o ag Fuama
00°000'0£8 PNV 12 2115 SUISnOH 311qNd YVUNHD 24 Y sdumgq poads jjeisu) -Uop ‘Jutaed - orsuo) - :n,,_nmﬁ.alah: Hom 1S Fuljjamg-uon)sdamg peadg s Jo uone[jesuf 191041
‘siuppew |[eqioyseg
#au aptacad puk ‘Lnod |jeqieyseq Sunsixs Jo aoeunsal ‘spumis adid jjequasseq
Funsra jyonas ‘orsiaasd 3201 it 0183 [ruosad opia Yg-| pure ajed Suipis
1507) paBWSH LAnuend $211089)87) HI0A JolefA Jo uondiadsaq [eaouan) awgpaquny] juswdopaaacg Jaynuapy

£20T v

JBa ) J0J JUIWAIEIS HIOAN

(5) spuawale;g HI0 AL SpaaN [easdy g - saBug Bunsoddng :qf 1ug

<e0e/8T/e0
PLTO-LLST

Suisnoy werpu| pue stjqng o 210
uswdojana( ueqar) pue Suisnoy jo juaunteda 'S

ue[q UONOY Iea & -aAl] - werdold puny [ende)




(800T/)T'SLOOS-ANH w0

00°£9Z°0r9% (aS¥MVN) 2a1mM-A LINOHLOY
g =TT

19m3s-(08p1) oM is-1ur] Funam'sanogs pue sqn1{ggp] ) rouaup-iun SupamaSuquingg
H03¥1) Jouaw - 3ul(RMA FYIQ-(08 T} Joua-r FurEA EANBOW-(0g k1) Jous-my)
Funoay'siaoned pue sywIg usyaiy~-{0gpL) Jowmul-iun Juama'siouiqes UsyA<ogp! ) souawj
-nury Juysma’(zunnos uou) Sunurey souaju)-(pgy]) Jounul-lun Fuyjramgsiooq souau-{pgrl)
tou@iur-u Suijjamg'(@unnos uou) F00L-(08p () JOMAAIUN FUNPMTEIERI-0R L ) JoUAI]
-Hu) Bulfamq'sapowo)-{ogp ) 20uuf-1un) Suem'([eataks uou) Suuioo)s woomeg-(0gy1)
Jouslul-yufy FutfM SUIS pue siuio) woonpeg-{0gyl ) Jonmur-un Sufom ssouerddy

RIS SUIP[ING PuE SUIBAQ PUR J0OI 18 $YIBIS "1eqas pasodxo ‘[luds {08y1) Jouu[-yupy Funfpmq'smoputm-(ogp1 ) JouoIxg-lun Sugema'sgoou-(ogyl)
1019003 3o siedar pue ap1s Auadord uo [E1917] 11EM 18 JA[RA JJO-I0YS Mau oPRjIUL AoLopxg-un) Sufmg sTuniey pue sTupre gyl ) JOUAXI A Fuyjomg suonepuno{0g1)
01 Sutp(mnq §o Joua)xa je a1y AAses Jo Fupysny 10 uy 21sem pue jem jo Turdid Japaixg-un Suljem] ‘adeasg 114 - SELAIITS JoLDINT-(0gy1) J0uIXG-UT Furfmg Funyme) pue
~91 "RUNXY Y1 PUE ‘SIYIIIMS 'SI2[INO *SIAEIIG INAMD JO ¥ 1da1 ‘apesdd 1ufeq JOLAIXG-(0BYT) Souaixg-aun Buljpmg Bunydi| souaxg-(pgp1) Jousieg-nun SugpmsI00q
1oued eatn29(> ‘Supmud souaiur ajapdwes spnput o) Y10y WOOT Buian pue 1oua1xg08¥ 1) Jounxg-un) 8u)jjamg 'saypiog pue suwnon-(ogyT) RGN Sunjemg’qes
00°000'251% 1We0Ipaq "IWeaIEq Uy aPH[ouL 0] SHUN § JO UOREZILBPOW Jjun 21a]duo duipiing-(0gy 1) JousINg-yun BuiPmX9zD) uesy F (057) LIS “SUOW 'HY 18 tonEZRLAPOIA UM 691041
‘{asodosd soueuajurews 10y suoyea] snouRA Je 9jed)
uostaasd ya1e| yim $218F [euossad apim “Yp - g 3pnjau o) oy, auy Auadord {oFeufig-{ogp1)
TRIM POUTIE YSIW yul|-ureyp pue ‘el alim UGISU} 335 SSAUIEIS WOLOY o ans-iun dunjpamg Sungdi1-ogp ) o ang-nun Junam'adespue-(ogpT) $10A JS-Iu)
00 96T EEIS pue [1e1 do) sj3urelp uiz/i-1 ‘isod aun sguep uie ‘gl Yo 3q [eys sauag map duiiam‘Burouag-{ogp1) om us-1un Juijpme )] ARdosd 113WLg | Y 1e Hurouag [msu] £r10dl
(Adpuney) eame uowiuos je jaund

[221099)3 Runsixa 1931002 pus pasimal aq o1 1yJr 1waxs Junsixe ‘saxoeiq [elaw
[2918 S59[UIEIS (i do) JOOI STIOUBA [NIA PAUNOW JOOI ‘g T 1WA Ataua

00000°0Z8 2 [Ia Saanaxi Sumal] mel ‘Suone3o] snouea 1e Sunydi g mau apracig (Funydr-{oge () yiom 2us-un FuRMa) I 18 Sunydi aus maN jo uone|feisa] gc10al

00'96ZSEES (10000010000) 05T VINHOD
IS0 pyRnsy Auuengd) sazodaye)) yroAp Jofep] Jo uondiiasaq [r1auan aweNBRquny] juamdoaa Jyuuapy
0T §  JB3X J0J JUIWEIS HLO AL

(s) syuowanesg 10 A4 SpIIN |BIISKY - saleq Bunsoddng i1y 1aeg

Ce0U8T/o

PLTO-LLST ue[J UONOY Tea & -9A1] - wesdoi] puny [enden
SuIsnop] veIpu] pue 211qn ] JO 201110 .

wawdofeaa( ueqin pue Suisnoy jo uswedsq ‘g



(8002/#)T° SLOOS-INH wiog

1upny Alliaug pus manaey sauendwe])

(s1507) pur saa4 120+ 0BY ) VONRNSIILIPY

00'000°061% YOS UONDIS JUIWISSISSY SPRIN |E1SAY4 UDRID B JONIPUOD O] SAIAIAS [RUOISSAjOI4 WENUOD NPy Adlaug pur mataay 20ueiduio]) g HONIIS JUSINSSSSY SPIIN] [BISAL Uaain 291001
SAIALIS [EIILNUOI PUR UONINUSUCD ‘HIOM JOPI0 Iseyaind JOj MRIASI 5B 1jans :

00'000°1% ‘wesSoud g4 ay o) Fuiurenad sanssi uo Il pue sea1a9s (58] apiaoig (51500 pue $394 J2YI0-(0F 1) UONBASIUILUPY WENUO))SIIAIRG [eBa7] £910d1
‘SuTEIRT|ENb 10} 153nbas PURI PIq JOJ UDNEIIAUL 5B YANS taspe

00°9LLLS Zuunnbas $120/01d *spuawarinbai uawos signd paiejas 44D 0] WAUISIIIAPY (51500 pue $324 2MO-{HFH ) LONENSIIWPY PENUD)) uaApy 991011

00°000°05 1 AJpuns ‘sJyausq pue SIUB[US s Ay (51500 pu 5294 HUIQ-{PgP|) UOLEOSIUIUPY J9EAUO)SISO]) PUE 5324 s9lodt

o

00°000°13 1500 Ipny ! (pny-(08p1 ) UONENSIUIWPY PRIUOPIPRY ¥a10a1
“SAMNALID 253Y) JO

00 L8F0FTS voddns ur sapddns apnjout o1 saniAnze Bunotow pue uoyemwRdun ‘Funuelg (s3ure[es-{0[¢1) UonERsIMPY AIpung-(g ] ) UDNENSUIIPY J51507) SATIENSIUIPY £910a1

00000058 suonesadg {{90r1) suouendQsuonEISd0 zo10dl

1500 parewISH Luueng) s91103938)) Y104 Jolefy Jo uonydiiosa( [edouan aweNAaquiny Juamdopasagg Jannuapy

yzoz <

JB2 4 J0] JUIUIEIS HIOAL

(5) syU2WANBIG HI0 4 Spasy [easAy - saBed Bunaoddng :qf Jaeg

TToe/8ueo
PLTO-LLST

Juisnoy weipuj pue d1qnd jo 2130
juswdo[aaa(] ueqd() pue Suisnoy jo yusunteds] ‘g n

Ue[J U0V 1ed X ~2Al - wesdoid puny [ende)



(800Z/)T°SLO0S-ANH W0,

BIMPINLE

Smpymg pue upier vojeq ‘swieq pus Jooiie syoria 'reqas pasodxs ‘eds
91210103 0 tredar pur opis Auadoid o [EIDNR] INEM 1B SA[RA 1Jo-Inys mau 2pnjaun
01 FuIpjmq Jo JOUNX 2 SUI| DisEM JO Sumysnyy 10 2uf Misem puw Jatem jo Fudid
=31 'Sy W pun ‘SaYpUMS 'SISPN0 ‘SISESIQ N2 JO wRwaorydar ‘apesddn
[putd [eooop ‘Funuied souan sisjdwos apnjaun o) oy, woos Suta) poe

uol) 3uLioo]4-(gp 1) JoLRI|-11ur) Suljom ' [EatoRE-(0gy 1 ) JOLIuL-1r) TusPm sapouioy)
{08v 1) ouawp-nun Sunpma(ean24> uou) Fupoo)4 woonpeg-(0geT) OBAUNUM TuiEm SIS
bl s1UN0Y) woonneg-(ogy 1) J0usjuf-jupy Sutfamsaauenddy-(gg 1) Jousup-jun
ulj2MCr SHOPUI M08 1) SOUAIXF-ITN UM 'SJOoY~08pT) Jouarg-mir) Fufjomy sTun ey
pue s3uIpuaT-{gp() soumxg-nun) Sulfamg suoRepunC 4-{pgk 1} JOURING-iru SunpMaq'sduasg
AL - SipAUES JoLxg-{ogy1) Jousixg-imn Sufam Suryne) pur e JouaINg-(0gp]) 10U
MU0 Bl s Sunydi] souxI-(ggp] ) Jouaxg-iun Funpama’siooq souaxa-ogp!) ouang
“}un) oM 'saidsod pue suumio)-(ggp1) souaixa - Sujama qe(s Supmg-{ogy) louaixy

00°000'88Z3 15001paq "WOOIIEY ‘TY2)]Y IPN[2UL 01 SN 6 JO UONEZIWApat Jum AR{dwe) ) BuPMAXegD) e 7 (ESD P 28D) 0TI {(Z8D ¥ 669) 1A 18 UDNEZIIPOR NN 1L10al
00'POL'BLES (£00000100D9) 66 VINHD
"jalef aaejdas pue spued pajeiopiad [aas ssamess o)
JUqE} 100p UADI3S Hed21 .10 J00p USRS fiundes Aoefdal PUR JADWDE apnjoul s (s100q souopxg-{pgp 1} 10LRIXg-nun Furloma)(9z0) uesy (05z0)
00'000°SLI% 2do9g ‘ZdINY 18 quIBf pu 100p JOURIXD SJIUN G 33ejda1 PUE 2A0WA A1ajdwoy vuefeurs “Suowdiuojy ‘siydiay euedy 1v 100q U9aI0g AUnsag pun IoLNG so8[day pur 2A0NUDY pLIOAL
! ¥ R ! L Rl |
123maS08F 1) oM s-Nur] Suypmq'spmoys pue sqnL-{0gy1) souam-iun SupmgSuqungg
<08p1) Jounupamn Swpsg BNO-0sr]) Jousiuf-nun) SujmQ eIy -(08 1) ORI
Suigamg'siaone pue SYUIS USYIY-(08Y [ ) souarujiup) Turjamg sisuiqe) wanai-{0gy () Jouajuy
-hun) Juigama‘(aunnol ou) Funureg souaiul-(pgp1) Jouanu-1rup) Fugjpmq'si00q sousiul-(ogp1)
Jousjui-iun) Juljmq'(augnes vow) Fuoold-(agp| ) ouaUG-ur Sugjomc'EaLnasia-(ggp1 ) Jo0usI]
-huq) Suljom ssp J-{08¥1) 20ua181-11un Funem'([eanjoAd uou) Suucoy wooneg-(0gp()
A0ENU-IUN RIS PUE S19)Un0D) woenpeg-(ggy ) ousul-n Snpam‘ssoueyddy
amans H08¥1) soua1u-1uny Fujffmg ' smoputm {081 ) J0LIxg-un UM 'Joou-08p1)
Auipping pue Suijres Auodjeq 'sweaq pue joar 1w sy ‘rmqor pasodis (feds Jouaxg-iun Jm[pmq sTuny pre sSupie-(ogp1) Jouag-uun Furdmg suonepunod-(ogyT)
ajaued Jo sedal pue apis Auadoid uo [e1ie] 197eM B FA[RA JO-INYS MIU SpnjaL J0LIXT-1) Ul 'adeosg ang - S[RAIIRIS JouAXI-(pg Y1) Jouapna-yun) Fuljjpmg ' Sumyme
01 FuIp|Ing 0 JoLAX7 18 Im] Jisea Jo Tumsny 1o AUl ASEM Pire e jo Fndid PUB W1kq JOUIXT-(0g b1 ) J0LIXT-a1up) Furjpmg Tunydr] ouxa-(0gs|) JorRixa
=21 "SIy 1yTI| PUB ‘SNIMS ‘SN0 ‘SI3L2IQ ANALD Jo wawadeydal ‘speddn - Ul sI00g JOUdNE-(0gp [} JOUNNET-1un) Funpag'sayasogd pue suumio)-{ggs1) Jouang
1pund [Eatnoaja ‘Funed Jouatul 5191dwos apnjour o1 Yaop "woos Suial pue -0 Funpad qeis Supimg-(0gp1 ) Jotng-nur) Aujama ap-sTunTy-soyRI0g-satoajeg gy 1)
00'000'9523 W00Ipaq ‘IWoAN[Eq UIYIL IpnjIU| 01 SIIUN § JO uonEzIwapow m M3[dwos) Japaixg-nun) JumEaa)ego) ulon] (z30 P 8Z0) 0j0J0EL (001D) BUOA 18 UONEZIWIPOR NUN 0L1001
00°000°1EvS (Z00000100DD) 001 VENHD
3500) pajpmInsy Lyuend $aL1082)8) HI0 A4 JOfRA] Jo uondiIasa( [B1auIn) weN/Rquny juswdopaag nRynuapy

A s

B3 A 10J JUIUAEIS HIOAL

(5) syuauraje)g a0 Ay spaap [BASAYJ - safug Sunuroddng 7 jaeg

CTOT/BL/R0
PLCO-LLST

Juisnoy ueipu] pue HMqnd Jo 20450
uswido]aA(] weqIp) pue Suisnofy jo juowuedacy TN

uB[q UONOY Jes L -2A1] - weidor] pung [eynde))




(BO0Z/P)T'SLOOS-ANH wiog

“(punj-ut paoeqdai aq o) paJewep punoj ji quiel 1oop Jouam Funsiva) saduy
pue psyo0] Asealid mauapnjoul 0] $I00P MIU 'SI00P POOM 2403 PIIOS M3 fItm ((sunnox vou) Jupwe Jounu-{ogy[) Jounul-iun Fulpmg sioog
00'052'96% a0e[dal puR Y 18 SIUN §§ IE SI00p POOM 2109 moj[ot soejdal pue aroumy Jouau {08y 1) sousiul-nun uijPa 110D PIOS Gl 5100 2407 MAfIOH .6...35 aoe]day pue D_EEB__ £L10a1

T

I2mag-(0811) Y10 2ug-1p m__._.__u.sn E&o:m pue sqni-(pgr1) ..a.b:: _ED w.::»;ﬁ.m:_nﬁn.i
<(08#1)Jousurmg Sunpsa PnO-ogri) Jouai-yun Jujpad Eaneyan-(0sp 1)

JoUAIUN Buljom'sIane, pue syuIS waEIY-(0Rp [) Joustuf-aur SuEm nawqes) uaYsYYy
<08p1) Joumu-iun) Juiipa (aunnos vou) Funure ] JouAuogET ) JOBAUL-HU Surjem sicoq
Joumul-{0gy ) JoLapul-jun) Bnpmc (sunnos vou) Suueeld-(ggp]) Jousiul-nur] Suljamg [EoLalg

<{08F1) Iouau=un) Sufeasag 12-(08p1 ) Toumm -y duifame(eonpp s uou)
flunoory Ecohg-m.smva Jouauf-uin Suifamc'suls pue spjuno)) woonpeg-{ogp 1) Joumup-nun
“ampns ujpmq'ssauugddy-{gp1} J0UT-nun SUPMA'SMOPUIAL-(08F T ) JOUAIXT-TIUR BUIliPMA'IO0Y
Suipping pue sweaq pue Jujres fuooeq ol 1k BRI “reqal pasadxa *[juds ~(08p1) Jouapg-nun Buiame‘sduipey pue sSupue-[-(ogt| ) Jouxg-iup Suljfpamg SUDIRRUND.§
Aanuo3 Jo nedar pue opis Auadoad Uo [RI2)E] J2EM 17 JAJRA [JO-INYS MAN apRjOUL <0fr1) Jouag-amn Buljjam aduasy ony - s|panng 009Ng-{0RE] ) JDUSEG
01 Burpyme Jo Jouana 1e am| a1sem Jo Tun|sn] 1o U1} ajses pue samem jo Sudid N uppamg Fupme) pue wied Jouaxg-0gy1) loumxg-nun dugemadunydi soumxa-(ogel)
=1 'SaImixif 1@ pue ‘sayajms ‘sjapine “Siayealg mans jo mamaseidal ‘apesidn JouRpg-Iun Suipm‘siooq Jouxg-{0g ) Jouspg-iun AuEnisayaiog pue stumod-(ggk L)
jpund [eatnoe)s ‘Suyured souajur 2japduiod apnU Ol YI0K, W00 Fulal] pue Jouanxg-iupy Jurjamciqes Supping-{pgp1) Jonaxg-1un) Sumjja Mg Ne-sur|ey-s3yaIog-somaaeg
00'000°0ZES luoo1p3q "WooIIeq ‘WAL IPN|aUI 01 SIuN ¢ JO uoLEZILIPOUI Jjun Na(duio) 08y 1) sousixg-yun Juni2m@)(osTo) 0101 (280/8¥D/SED) OPaPAC Ik LOLEZILIPOA HU(] zLioal
009196195 (r000001000D) 05T VANHO

T3] dui[amg
-uop Aiunses-{ggy () oumu] Sujjamg- ch.mEnE:_on:v: Jouuyp Juramg-uon ' el
<08¥1) J0u1u] Guljpmg-uoN'sieog-(pgr1) Jouaju] Jujjam-uon Junuied eany uowwod-(ogp1)
J0uTu] Fug|jam(-uo N 'Suoo] wary uowwol~{pgf | ) loua) Fu|jam-uop sags ] Baly UOWIWOD)
<081} J0umu] Junj[2m(-uoy'swoonpeg eany vowwoD-(pgy 1) Jouaiu] ujemg-toN Jupping
JAUBNSINUPY-(gp[ )} J0ua7u] TU[[PMT-UONSMOPULM-(08 ) J0ua1xg Bul||amg-toN'sjo0y

-(08y1) Jouapg Fuljjemg-uoN Supfne] pue Jured-(pgy1 ) Jouaixg Suamg-uon Junydi

«0811) Joua1xT Fulj[Pm-uoN uoNEpUNO;(0g P ) Joualxg Fulm-uoN's100q-(08r1)
00'70L'068 2O 5% IS EJNY purdxg Jouixg Suljpmg-uoN ‘satdous)-(pg 1) Jouaixg TurjamgI-UON IO 258 UG EJNV JO Eﬁ_anm_ 9L10d1

(o-Eaurjey [ T T Y

(08P 1} H0A 2NS-HUN FUYPMSUTTI - SAUIT JDmMIS-(081) HI0A ISy um_=__Eé SIMOYS
pue sqn {08y [) Jouaiu[-nun Suiama uquinid-(0gy [) sousiu[-1up) Funpag =0

-(08p1) souamup-nun Sunpmg'ieaegoa-{oge | ) Jouawj-lun Suipm sisone,] pue syulg

U {-{08 k1) Jouansp-un Jujjasr'siauige)) wayNi-(08p ) Jouaiup-iun Supemg (unnos uot)
Sunuied souap|-{ggp1 ) Joumup-un Fuipsgisioog Jou-(ogy| ) Jouau-iun Jurgamg(eunnos

1500 pajewnsy LHuuend) sart0da)e)y a0y Jofepy jo uondinsagg [piausn awepraquny Juawdopaag 1aynuapy

Y0 ¢ JAEdA J0J JUIUIEIS HI0A

(5) syuawaeyg a0 40 SPaay [BASAY - sa8eg Sunuoddng [ 1aeg

T0T/8T/20

PLEO-LLST ug[J UOIOY JB3 & -9A1 - weioid pun, rende)
SuIsnop] uwpu] pue o1jqid J0 2O

jusurdoeaay weqan) pue Juisnop] jo juswiedac] 'S




(800Z/)T'SLOOS-ANH W0y

00°'6L8'FOF TS 150 PAIEWNST JO [TI0IqNS
‘SB[ 1D]EM ULI0YS
10 sTunRIS [RjALL )iM PRISISUOD PUR qejs papuadsns pue s3unooj ‘sjjem MaIducs
Pasjojua) 1M 1005u0d ‘Fua] +133) 0$-0p £q + doap 123) § dprId mojaq 3q [|eys (aTpurniqy uuo.c{08p1) oM S Sujjema-ton'adeaspueT{ogrl) Hom S
Jaquieys uoneoaad mapy saradoad seaud jusselpe pue Juawdopasp Buisnoy du|pam-uon Burauag-(0gp1 ) 3o 1S Sullfama-uon'1anng pue nD-(0gk 1) oM J0S Fujamg
00'99€'€07S dnqnd uyim FuIpoo] ajeIAa)(e 0} Jaguueyo afeuielp uonejoasad mau IpIADL] uop Furard - 25029000 - eqdsy-{08 1) oM 2115 SupEM-UON)PdINY 18 tonaauo]) sdeutesg cL1001
1500 pajRwI)ST Lnuend) saL1053)€) M40 A4 Jolel] Jo uonduasa( [E1auan) awepaquny juawdopasqg Jaynuapy
yZoz [ A3 X 0] JUIWNBIG HIOAL
(5) syudwajelg HI0 A4 Spasp [ea1sAYJ - sa8eg Bunaoddng iy Jaeyg
TTOT/BTTO
bLTO-LLST ue]d U0V Tea § -aAl] - weiSorq puny [enden

Juisnoy wetpu] pue a1gnd Jo 3310
juswdoraaa(] ueqan pue Suisnoy jo uaunredsq 'g'n




(800Z/¥)T SLO0S-ANH W0

00°000'1$ (s1507 pue 5354 J9UIQ-(08¥ ) UONENSIUIWPY 10RHU0]))§201AIS [2Ta]
00°9LLLS (51500 pur 5294 0IQ-(0FF1) UONEBLSIUIWPY JIRNUC) NUIWISIUIAPY
00'000°0S 1§ + (81500 pue 5334 DYO-(08Y 1) UOHENSIIWPY DENLOD)SISO]) PUE S99
00'000°1$ (upny-(08#1) uonENSIUIWDY JaEIUOD IPNY
00°L8Y'0VTS (Aspung-(01#1) uonENSIUNUPYSALRIES-(01]) UOHEASILILIPY )SIS00) BANRASIUIWPY
00°'0000€S ((50¥1) suonwadg)suoneadgy
apim Aoy Suisnop]

1507 pajEwIS $3L103937) 310 A\ JoleA] Jo uondiiasa( [e1dusn

awep/Haqunp jusmdojaaag

0z0z 1 ARIX 10J JUIWIIJEIG HI0 AN

(5) sjuRLIAE)S IO AN SPIIN Juawadeury - sadeJ Sunsoddng iy 11vg

Ce0T/8T/T0

PLTO-LLST ue[q UOTOY Iea & -9Al - weifoig puny [ende)
dujsnoy ueipuj pue d1qnd jo 230

wwdofaaa( weqin pue Suisnop jo juawpeda( ')




(8002/¥)T SLOOS-AINTH W0y

00'E9Z°5818 1500 PAIBWNST JO [EICIGNS

00700007 (51500 pue 533 JPO-(0RF]) UCNENSIUILPY JIBNUO)SIINAIAG JURINSUOD) Ty

00°000°sE$ (Suiwes ] ge1s-(g0¢1) wawaosdwy juawadeueiy)sjuswasoiduw juswadeus)y

1507 pajewnsy sa11082)8)) 04y Jofely jo uondudsaq [esauan
aweN/qunp Judwdojasag
0zoz i [ JE3X 0] JUIWINEIG HIOAL
(s) sjuawiae)g a0 AN spaaN Juawadeueyy - sadeg Sundoddng 1] ed
ZT0T/8T/To

bLTOLLST ue|d UDNOY JBS A -9Al] - weidoid pun, [eide)

Buisnoy ueipu] pue tgng Jo 91O
Juawdojasaq treqin) pue Suisnoy jo jusuwredo(] ‘S )



ExNibits



t\OUSMfQ

A Exhibit A
N
s, GHURA

t —
% Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
2 Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
& 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
% <§; Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671) 472-3701 EQUAL HOUSING
?9,1962:" OPFORTUNITY—

DEFINITION OF SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT AND
SIGNIFICANT AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION
2020 PHA PLAN

GHURA considers a Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/Modification to the Planas a
discretionary change in the plan or policy of the Authority that fundamentally alters the mission, goals,
objectives or plans of the Authority. Any significant amendment or substantial deviation/modification will
require the Authority to submit a revised PHA 5-year plan that has met full hearing process requiements
and the formal approval of the GHURA Board of Commissioners. The Authority defines significant
amendment and substantial deviation/modification as:

« Any change in the planned or actual use of federal funds for activities that would prohibit or
redirect the Authority's mission, goals, and objectives

» A need to respond immediately to Acts of God beyond the control of the Authority, such as
earthquakes, civil unrest, or other unforeseen significant events

+ A mandate from Guam government officials, specifically the governing Board of Commissioners
of the Authority, to modify, revise, or delete the long-range goals and objectives in the program

e A substantial deviation does not include any changes in HUD rules and regulations, which require
or prohibit changes to activities listed in the PHA

« A Significant Amendment or Substantial Deviation/Modification to the PHA Five-Year and Annual
Plan is defined as: Changes of a significant nature to the rent or admissions policies, or the
organization of the waiting list not required by federal regulatory requirements as to effecta
change in the Public Housing Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) and the
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan

Significant Amendment/Modification to Capital Fund Program

GHURA considers a "significant amendment/modification” to the Capital Fund Program (CFP) 5-Year
and Annual Plan as a discretionary change in the plan or policy of the Authority that fundamentally alters
the mission, goals, objectives or plans of the Authority. Any significant amendment/madification will
require the Authority to submit a revised CFP 5-Year Plan that has met full hearing process requirements
and the formal approval of the Board of Commissioners. Specifically the following will be considered to
constitute a significant amendment/madification:

* Any addition or change in the planned or actual use of federal funds for non-emergency work
items exceeding 25% of the total grant (items not included in the current CFP Five-Year Action
Plan); and

« Any change with regard to demolition or disposition, designation, homeownership programs,
Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) conversion, Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP),
development or mixed fiancé proposal or conversion activities.

An exception to this definition will be made for any of the above that are adopted to reflect changes in
HUD regulatory requirements. HUD will not consider such changes as significant amendment.

Version 2 /2020

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.



Exhibit B

Deconcentration of Poverty and Income-Mixing [24 CFR 903.1 and 903.2]

The PHA’s admission policy must be designed to provide for deconcentration of poverty and
income-mixing by bringing higher income tenants into lower income projects and lower income
tenants into higher income projects. A statement of the PHA’s deconcentration policies must be
in included in its annual PHA plan [24 CFR 903.7(b)].

The PHA's deconcentration policy must comply with its obligation to meet the income targeting
requirement [24 CFR 903.2(c)(5)].

Developments subject to the deconcentration requirement are referred to as ‘covered
developments’ and include general occupancy (family) public housing developments. The
following developments are not subject to deconcentration and income mixing requirements:
developments operated by a PHA with fewer than 100 public housing units; mixed population or
developments designated specifically for elderly or disabled families; developments operated by
a PHA with only one general occupancy development; developments approved for demolition or
for conversion to tenant-based public housing; and developments approved for a mixed-finance
plan using HOPE VI or public housing funds [24 CFR 903.2(b)].

Steps for Implementation {24 CFR 903.2(c)(1)]

To implement the statutory requirement to deconcentrate poverty and provide for income mixing
in covered developments, the PHA must comply with the following steps:

Step 1. The PHA must determine the average income of all families residing in all the PHA’s
covered developments. The PHA may use the median income, instead of average income,
provided that the PHA includes a written explanation in its annual plan justifying the use of
median income.

GHURA Polic

GHURA will determine the average income of all families in all covered developments
on an annual basis.

Step 2. The PHA must determine the average income (or median income, if median income was
used in Step 1) of all families residing in each covered development. In determining average
income for each development, the PHA has the option of adjusting its income analysis for unit
size in accordance with procedures prescribed by HUD. # oy

GHURA Policy

GHURA will determine the average income of all families residing in each covered
development (not adjusting for unit size) on an annual basis.

Step 3. The PHA must then determine whether each of its covered developments falls above,
within, or below the established income range (EIR), which is from 85% to 115% of the average
family income determined in Step 1. However, the upper limit must never be less than the
income at which a family would be defined as an extremely low-income family (federal poverty
level or 30 percent of median income, whichever number is higher).

@© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Assaciates, Inc. Page 4-16 ACOP3/1/17
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use.



Step 4. The PHA with covered developments having average incomes outside the EIR must then
determine whether or not these developments are consistent with its local goals and annual plan.

Step 5. Where the income profile for a covered development is not explained or justified in the
annual plan submission, the PHA must include in its admission policy its specific policy to
provide for deconcentration of poverty and income mixing.

Depending on local circumstances the PHA’s deconcentration policy may include, but is not
limited to the following:

* Providing incentives to encourage families to accept units in developments where their
income level is needed, including rent incentives, affirmative marketing plans, or added
amenities

* Targeting investment and capital improvements toward developments with an average
income below the EIR to encourage families with incomes above the EIR to accept units
in those developments

* Establishing a preference for admission of working families in developments below the
EIR

e Skipping a family on the waiting list to reach another family in an effort to further the
goals of deconcentration

e Providing other strategies permitted by statute and determined by GHURA in
consultation with the residents and the community through the annual plan process to be
responsive to local needs and PHA strategic objectives

A family has the sole discretion whether to accept an offer of a unit made under the PHA's
deconcentration policy. The PHA must not take any adverse action toward any eligible family
for choosing not to accept an offer of a unit under the PHA’s deconcentration policy [24 CFR
903.2(c)(4)].

If, at annual review, the average incomes at all general occupancy developments are within the
EIR, the PHA will be considered to be in compliance with the deconcentration requirement and
no further action is required.

GHURA Policy

For developments outside the EIR GHURA will take the following actions to provide for
deconcentration of poverty and income mixing:

At the beginning of each housing authority fiscal year, the housing authority will
establish a goal for housing 40% of its new admissions with families whose
incomes are at or below the area median income. The annual goal will be
calculated by taking 40% of the total number of move-ins from the housing
authority fiscal year.

© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Page 4-17 ACOP 3/1/17
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use.



Order of Selection [24 CFR 960.206(e)]

The PHA system of preferences may select families either according to the date and time of
application or by a random selection process.

GHURA Policy

Families will be selected from the waiting list based on preference. Among applicants
with the same preference, families will be selected on a first-come, first-served basis
according to the date and time their complete application is received by GHURA.

When selecting applicants from the waiting list, GHURA will match the characteristics of
the available unit (unit size, accessibility features, unit type) to the applicants on the
waiting lists. GHURA will offer the unit to the highest ranking applicant who qualifies
for that unit size or type, or that requires the accessibility features.

By matching unit and family characteristics, it is possible that families who are lower on
the waiting list may receive an offer of housing ahead of families with an earlier date and
time of application or higher preference status.

Factors such as deconcentration or income mixing and income targeting will also be
considered in accordance with HUD requirements and GHURA Policy.

© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Page 4-18 ACQP3/117
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use.



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima' Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone; (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701

Exhibit C
<5 GHURA
2
§
°¢’

PESATURIT —

Challenged Elements

There have not been any Challenged Elements of the Annual PHA Plan brought to the
Authority’s attention. The Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2020 PHA Annual Plan for the
Public Housing and Section 8 Programs and the Capital Fund Program Five Year Action
Plan 2020-2024 was advertised for public comment for the period from June 9, 2020
through July 28, 2020. Due to COVID-19 a public meeting was not held, however, the

public was notified through advertisement of the availability of the Plan for review and
comment.

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be conlacted at the above address and telephone numbers.



Exhibit D
MINUTES

RESIDENT ADVISORY BOARD (RAB) MEETING
March 27, 2019 5:30 p.m.

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) held a meeting with the members of the
Resident Advisory Board (RAB) on March 4, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. at the GHURA Board of
Commissioners Conference Room in Sinajana. The meeting was to discuss the Annual PHA Plan
(FY2021) and Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five Year Action Plan (2020-2024).

RAB members in attendance:

Karl Corpos Tammy Iglesias
Liwina Moses Elvina Solden
Katrina Ueno Shauntay Aflleje
James Ueno Viola Tainatongo
Robin Harry Michelle Binuya
Keithleen Harry Asiko Achew

General Discussion/Announcements
The RAB members were provided with a copy of the draft Annual PHA Plan and the CFP Five Year
Action Plan. Role of the RAB was outlined, as there are new members. The discussion was open to all
portions of the Plans. The following topics were discussed:

= Revision of PHA Plan Elements.

= New Activities.

= Most Recent Fiscal Year Audit.

= Progress Report

= CFP Five Year Action Plan Projects.

The following were the questions posed and the responses:

Q: I wanted to apply for the first time homeownership program, but I'm told I make too much.
My rent with GHURA is high, but we can’t find a rental property similar to the unit we are in for
the amount e are paying. And to be told my husband and I make too much to participate in a
program that’s supposed to help us graduate from public housing is discouraging. We have three
kids, there’s no way we, a family of 5, can fit into a 1 bedroom which is what we are able to
afford out in the private market. Can you request HUD to increase the income eligibility since
prices are going up?

R: Under the Homeownership program we are looking into the income eligibility for Guam. We also
had a housing study conducted, we are looking into the housing market and how we can further help the
low-mod income families.

Q: I am interested in the Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) Program. I informed the FSS Coordinator
of my interest since last year, but was told it’s limited to so many people per year and it is
currently full, they do not have any available slots. We need some kind of graduate program to
assist those who are ready to get out of public housing. I have finished school and have a good job
now, but still don’t make enough to move out to a private unit and make too much to qualify
under the homeownership program. It would be a shame for me to have received all this
assistance and the work I've done, only to end up back at square one, quitting my job in order to
qualify for housing.



R: AMP4 PSM - The FSS program would have helped in this situation, the monies from the increase in
income could have gone into an escrow account to assist her for that down payment needed. Another
issue for this tenant is that HUD has now come out with over income limit revision that we are working
on. Families that are over the income limit will be informed that possibly within a year they will have
to relocate out of public housing.

R: We will check again with FSS if there is a spot open.

Q: Maybe with the census it’ll adjust the income limit?
R: The census will help but, unfortunately, the first data won’t be available for maybe three years. We
are working on it.

Q: I am single and only making minimum wage. I am willing to move out but it’s costly. It's hard
when the rent under GHURA is based on income (if our income increases our rent increases), how
can we attain a moderate life? Are we going to stay at a low-income in order to receive the
assistance? Do we have to keep relying on federal assistance?

R: Maybe the community side outside of Federal Assistance needs to be sought out.

Q: What is LIHTC?

R: LIHTC stands for Low Income Housing Tax Credit. An IRS tax program, Guam awards tax credit
to a developer who wants to build affordable housing. LIHTC homes are available for 60% area
medium income. Public housing is at 85% area medium income.

Q: Can the income limits be posted on the website so they can see the income bracket?
R: Yes.

Q: Are the LIHTC homes for purchase?
R: No, they are long term rentals,

Q: Can you clarify, the LIHTC units is it like GHURA, every year we re-certify? Does the rent
amount change like GHURA, depending on what I make?

R: The rent stays at the published rent unless they are authorized for change by HUD. Everyone pays
the same rent for the same unit size.

Q: Dededo (G35) does not have a neighborhood watch program.
R: PSM AMP4 - I am working with the Mayor on that.

Q: Can we have speed bumps installed at the G35 Dededo areas?
R: We will bring that up with the PSM for AMP4 and the A/E Division.

Q: Can GHURA request for double pane windows to be installed (the site was not indicated)?
R: This project has already been addressed by Guam Airport Authority within the area they were
required to address due to airport noise.

Q: Merizo elderly site needs safety addressed. They need lighting at the back of the units, it is
secluded. There is a spot light that was never repaired or replaced; it is very dark.
R: We will bring that up, we will check with our A/E Division.

Q: The crisis with the Corona Virus, how do we go about that with our rent if my income
reduces?
R: You would inform your case worker of the change.



The attendees were informed that the public is being notified of the availability of the Plans for review,
advertisement dates are from March 20 to May 11, 2020. It was explained that if they had questions
regarding the Plans, or wanted to suggest changes or additions, that they needed to do it within the
timeline indicated. They were also informed that there would be a Public Meeting held on May 12,
2020, at 10:00 in the BOC Conference Room, and that we would appreciate if they attended.

No further questions or comments were posed. The meeting was concluded.



PHA Plan
Certifications



Certification by State or Local U. S Department of Housing and Urban Development

Official of PHA Plans Consistency Office of Public and Indian Housing
with the Consolidated Plan or OMB No. 2570226
State Consolidated Plan Expires 2/292016
(All PHAS)

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans
Consistency with the Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan

1. Ray 8. Topasna the Executive Director
Official's Name Official s Title

certify that the S5-Year PHA Plan and/or Annual PHA Plan of the

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
PHA Name

is consistent with the Consolidated Plan or State Consolidated Plan and the Analysis of

Impediments (Al) to Fair Housing Choice of the

Government of Guam

Local Jurisdiction Name
pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91,

Provide a description of how the PHA Plan is consistent with the Consolidated Plan or State
Consolidated Plan and the Al. Guam continues to have persons/households that are in need of housing assistance,

the elderly, disabled, veteran families, families at risk of becoming homeless, low and moderate income families. The
goals and objectives outlined in the PHA Plan to address affordable, decent, safe & sanitary homes are consistent with

those in the Guam's Consolidated Plan housing needs. GHURA currently manages 750 public housing units, 49 clderly

housing units and 2,585 Housing Choice Vouchers to assist in addressing the needs.

I hereby cenify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is rue and accurate. Warning: HUD will
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Title

Ray S. Topasna Executive Director

= 2@7// S "G 2 8 20
4

Page1of1 form HUD-50077-5L (12/2014)



Certifications of Compliance with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

PHA Plans and Related Regulations OMB No. 2577-0226
(Standard, Troubled, HCV-Only, and Expires 02/29/2016
High Performer PHAs)

PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plan and Related Regulations including
Required Civil Rights Certifications

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, [ approve the submission of the  5-Year and/or_X_Annual PHA
Plan for the PHA fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020, hereinafler referred to as” the Plan”, of which this document is a part and
make the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with
the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

1.

2

The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such

strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located.

The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable

Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing

Choice, for the PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable

Consolidated Plan.

The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents assisted by

the PHA, consulted with this Resident Advisory Board or Boards in developing the Plan, including any changes or revisions

to the policies and programs identified in the Plan before they were implemented, and considered the recommendations of the

RAB (24 CFR 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a copy of the recommendations made by the Resident

Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in which the Plan addresses these recommendations.

The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least 45

days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the Plan and

invited public comment.

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing

Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,

The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by examining their programs or proposed programs, identifying any

impediments to fair housing choice within those programs, addressing those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of

the resources available and work with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively
further fair housing that require the PHA's involvement and by maintaining records reflecting these analyses and actions.

For PHA Plans that includes a policy for site based waiting lists:

o  The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and timely manner
(as specified in PIH Notice 2010-25);

o The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in
which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the period of time the applicant
would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at each site;

e  Adoption of a site-based waiting list would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be inconsistent with a
pending complaint brought by HUD;

»  The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such a waiting list is consistent with affirmatively furthering fair
housing;

¢ The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil rights laws and
certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7(c)(1).

The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act

of 1975,

The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the

Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

. The PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment

Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135,

. The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.

Page | of 2 form HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP (12/2014)



12. The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24
CFR 5.105(a).

13. The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs to carry
out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58
or Part 50, respectively.

14. With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate requirements under
Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

15. The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with
program requirements,

16. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.

17. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular No, A-87 (Cost Principles for State,
Local and Indian Tribal Governments), 2 CFR Part 225, and 24 CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments).

18. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Planand will utilize
covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its Plan.

19. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA. Plan is
available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with
the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified
by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the PHA.

22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements, including the
Declaration of Trust(s).

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority GQ-001
PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

X Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Year 20 21

5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 -20

Lhereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate, Warning: HUD will
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penzlties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012, 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802).

Name of Autharized Official Title

Sabino P. Flores Chairman, Board of Commissioners

z%m By T 2

Page 2 of 2 form HUD-50077-8T-HCV-HP (12/2014)




CFP Plan
Certifications



OMB Approval No. 2577-0167 (Exp. 03/31/2020)

= & U.S. Department of Housing
Certification of Payments and Urban Dovilopmgnt

to Influence Federal Transactions Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding
Capital Fund Program (CFP)

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, lo any person for certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec- sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
(2) 1f any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure,
allempling to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the

undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,

Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its

instructions,

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010,
1012; 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Cfficial Title
Ray S. Topasna Executive Director
“Signature F’/ [ Daie (mmvddlyyyy)
R T W a1
Previous edition is obsolete ’ form HUD 50071 (01/14)

ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 747513, 7485.1, & 7485.3



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352
(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

Approved by OMB
0348-0046

1. Type of Federal Action:
El a. contract
b. grant

c. cooperative agreement

2. Status of Federal Action:

Ea. bid/offer/application
b. initial award
c. post-award

3. Report Type:

E a. initial filing

b. material change
For Material Change Only:

d. loan
e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

year quarter
date of last report

4, Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
E Prime D Subawardee
Tier if known:
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
117 Bien Venida Avenue
Sinajana, Guam 96910

Congressional District, if known: 4c

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

7. Federal Program Name/Description:
Capital Fund Program

CFDA Number, if applicable: 14.872

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

9. Award Amount, if known:
$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
(ffindividual, last name, first name, MI):

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(last name, first name, MI);

.11 Information requastad through this form is authorized by lle 31 U.S.C. seclion
* 1352, This disclosure of lobbying activities is a malerial represenlation of fact
upon which reliance was placed by the lier above when Lhis ransaction was made
or enlered inlc. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 This
information  will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file (he
required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and

not mere than $100,000 for each such failure,

=3 F sl
Signature: / (/a"/j/ (/ “‘—’

ﬁay S. Topasna

Print Name:
Title: Executive Director

Telephone No.: (671) 475-1378

Federal Use Only:

Date: A“ﬁ =2 g 9{

Authorized for Local Reproduction

Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-87)

20



Public Notice



GUAM DAILY POST « MONDAY, JULY 27, 2020

SUPPORT: President Donald Trump speaks
during a coronavirus disease (COVID-19) task
force news briefing at the White House in
Washington, July 22. Leah Millis/Reuters

US charges 18 Portland
protesters; tactical
team sent to area

(Reuters) - U.S. prosecutors on
Friday unveiled charges against 18 Port-
land, Oregon protesters ranging from
assaulting police to arson and tres-
passing, a day after the Trump admin-
istration expanded the deployment of
tactical police to Seattle,

The arrests came this waek during
clashes with specially equipped federal

WASHINGTON (Reuters) - U.S,

Treasury Secretary Steven Mnuchin
on Saturday said that the Trump
administration supports extending
enhanced unemployment benefits
until the end of the year in the next
round of coronavirus aid, albeit at a

reduced level.

The administration and the U.S.
Congress have been trying to strike
a deal on the next aid package as
bene-
fits of $600 a week that Congress
approved earlier in the pandemic

enhanced unemployment

expire on July 31.

Mnuchin said he had spoken on

policeagentssenttoPortland, where 56
straight days of antiracism demonstra-
tions have captured national attention.

The federal forces have drawn criti-
cism from Democrats and civil liberties
groups who allege excessive force and
federal overreach by President Donald
Trump.

The deployment of federal officers
has also drawn the scruting of the
Justice Department inspector general,
whe announced an investigation of
their use of force, and prompted a
federaljudgetoissueatemporaryorder

Trump administration backs
partial extension of jobless benefits

FridaywithtopDemocratinCongress,
House Speaker Nancy Pelosi, who
has said she does not want a short-
term extension of unemployment
insurance.

"We don't want a short-term
extension either, we want something
tillthe end of the year,” said Mnuchin,
who was in the Capitol on Saturday
with White House Chief of Staff Mark
Meadows to meet withstaff of Senate
Majority Leader Mitch McConnell on
finishing up details of the package.

Mnuchin said last week Republi-
cans were looking at an extension of
unemployment benefits that replace

limiting their use of farce and blocking
them from arresting journalists and
legal observers of street protests.

The Trump administration sent a
tactical team to Seattle on Thursday in
anticipation of protests this weekend
despite the objections of the Seattle
mayor and Washington state governor,

-who warned of a Portland-like escala-

tion of tensions.

U.S. Attorneyforthe Western District
of Washington Brian Moran said in
a statement that federal agents are

“Page 1«

70% of wages, an idea he repeated
- on Saturday. "We want to make sure
that there’s a technical correction,
so that people don't get paid more
money tostay home than to work,”
he said.

Mnuchin said he expected initial
language of the legislation to emerge
on Monday.

Meadowssuggested that a deal on
a standalone bill on unemployment
benefits could be reached before

- the July 31deadline, leaving time on
other issues to help Americans deal
with the economic slowdown from
the pandemic.

properties andthe work done in those
buildings.

“Let's not let the violence that has
marred the Portland protests damage
peaceful movements here for a more
just society," Moran said. "My hope
is our community will speak with one
voice to discourage those who seek to
hijack peaceful protests with damage
and destruction.”

The Trump administration has also
sent federal police to Chicago, Kansas
City and Albuguerque over the objec-

stationed in Seattle to protect federal tions of thosemayors.

APPLY TODAYul

< ng :cm: to quahf‘ ied nppllcanu

Vo WAP reciplent receved frec energy -
i saring servites 1o inchude refrigentar .
:ndvmdwa-r:oad.r..mul % i

LED LIGHT
BULBS

IHANDHELD SHOWERHEADS

.5 ) .
IS: ffedltlon pagesuite- pmfessmnal co. uk/htmlS!readerfpmducuonfprmt _pages.aspx?edid=c3ac4b9d-52a4-4425-...

GUAM WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM -

| EREE Energy Saving' ervices -

.I'Re:ewe FREE efiergy s:nrrng sew[ces. :hnl: ‘may’ Indud’a the.installatlon&f; Energy
Efficient Apphan:ns and other energr savlng rneas _ us These 3 )

FAUCET ABRATOR ©

To qualify,
.| tetal hose
o[ Aeldincome e
it ) e | sennet eveeed
T
2| 43100 ; ioéo.ih
- O JaTiE23
: _3 . _55_.4a’ﬂ° me e people, Bl
& 965,500 | cepmaonfiracch i
5| IR0 | cttopern
D
7 [ %9500
8 [ $110300

. DOORSWEEPS "

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urbdn Rencwnl Autherity
Atnridor Gindina* Yan Rinuehun Siudar Geshor

™
v

117 Bivn Venida Avenve = Sirajana Guam 960
ﬁa, it Phune: (67 1) 4775851 = Fax: (671) 300-7565 « TTY: (814123701
— LI
Lourey & Leon Casgsrery
Comemer ol Gusm

LTy
Jextea . Tenor
Uezenant Governad of G

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
PUBLIG HOUSING AUTHORITY (PHA) ANNUAL PLAN {"":‘2:.1]
and

GAPITAL FUND PROGRAM FIVE-YEAR ACTION PLAN (2020-2024)
(This ad Is paid for by the Public Housing, Section 8 Housing Choice Voxcher and Capital Fund Programs)

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authorily s seeking public comment(s) on the
Authority’s Annual PHA Plan (FY2021) and Capltal Fund Program (CFP) Five-Year Action Plan
(2020-2024) for the Public Housing Section 8 Housing Cholee Voucher and Capital Fund
Programs. The Plans detail GHURA's proposed goals, objectives, accomplishments and use
of funds.

Due to COVID-19 pandemic and the Government of Guam's social distancing requirements
the Plans will be made available elecironically an GHURA's website at www.ghura.org. If you
would like to obtain a copy or require additional information please contact Kathering E.
Taitano, Chief Planner, al 475-1322 or emall at katherine@ghura.org or Alvina C. Castro,
Program Coordinator, at 475-1401 or emall alvina@ghura.or).

Any person(s), agencies, or organizations wishing to comment on any of the Plans are
encouraged to do so by submitting a writlen statement to GHURA's Main Office through Lhe
U.8. Fostal Service at the address staled abave. Written comments(s) may also be submitted
via facsimile at 300-7565 or by submitting via emall fo katherine@ahura.org or
alvina@ghura,org. Comments will be accepted beginning June 9, 2020 through July 28,
2020.

Il you require special accommodalions, please conlact the Section 504 Coordinator,
Katherine E. Taitano, al 475-1322 or 472-3701 (TTY/TDD).

Is/ RAY 5. TOPASNA

Executive Director

8/5/2




GUAM DAILY POST = WEDNESDAY, JULY 1, 2020

By lain Marlow
Bloomberg

China's top legislative body
approved a landmark national secu-
rity law for Hong Kong on Tuesday,
a sweeping attempt to quell dissent
that risks U.S. retaliation and the
city's appeal as a financial hub.

The National People's Congress
Standing Committee voted unan-
imously to approve the law on
the former British colony when it
wrapped up a three-day meeting in

Beijing, Hong Kong media organiza-

tions reported, citing unidentified

people. The official Xinhua Mews

Agency will publish details of the law
this afternoan, marking the first time

the law will be fully disclosed to the
public, the South China Morning Post
reported, citing a source familiar with
the situation.

Gunmen storm
Pakistan's commercial
capital; attack foiled

KARACHI, Pakistan (The Wash-
ington Post) - Four gunmen armed
with assault rifles and grenades
stormed the stock exchange in
Pakistan's commercial capital,
Karachi, on Monday, but security
officials said the attack was foiled

PROTEST: Flags wave outside a Chinese
Foreign Ministry office in Hong Kong on
Manday, June 25,

Paul Yeung/Bloomberg

Speaking shortly after the reports,
HongKong Chief Executive CarrieLam
said she couldn't confirm whether the
law had been approved. She acknowl-
edged that residents in the city had

within minutes.

Police said one police officer and
two private security guards who
stopped the gunmen died. All four
attackers were killed before they
could enter the country's oldest and
largest stock exchange.

A separatist militant group called
the Baluchistan Liberation Army
claimed responsibility for the attack
in a tweet from an account that was
later suspended by Twitter. The

s GHURA
f %"; Guain Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
] Ateridat Giwima® Yan Rinseban Studat Groohan
iﬂ'_ (..-F 117 Wicn Vemica Avemac » Sinajans Guam 96910
tagl Plaause: (6711 471851« Fax: (6711 I00-T565 « TTY: (6711 4723901 R .
Lourries A, Leon Gueners oahisF, Teveria
Governer ol Giom Unvtpnze | Goeprme of Gcam

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
PUBLIC HOUSING AUTHORITY (PHA) ANNUAL PLAN (FY2021)
and

CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM FIVE-YEAR ACTION PLAN (2020-2024)
(This ad Is paid for by the Public Housing, Section B Housing Cheice Youcher and Capital Fund Programs)

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Is seeking public comment(s) on the
Autherity's Annual PHA Plan (FY2021) and Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five-Year Action Plan
(2020-2024) far the Public Housing Section 8 Housing Choice Youcher and Capital Fund
Programs. The Plans detail GHURA's proposed goals, objectives, accomplishments and use
of funds.

Due to COVID-19 pandemic and the Government of Guam's social distancing requirements
the Plans will be made available electronically on GHURA's website at www.qhura org. If you
would like to obtain @ copy or require additional information please contact Katherine E.
Taitano, Chief Planner, at 475-1322 ar email al katherine@ghura.org or Alvina C. Castro,
Program Coordinator, at 475-1401 or email alvina@qhura.org).

Any person(s), agencies, or organizations wishing o comment on any of the Plans are
encouraged to do so by submitting a written statement to GHURA's Main Office through the
U.S. Postal Service at the address stated above. Written comments(s) may also be submitted
via facsimile at 300-75685 or by submitting via email to Katherine@qhura.org or
alving@ghura.org. Comments will be accepled beginning June 9, 2020 through July 28,
2020.

If you require special accommodations, please contact the Section 504 Coordinator,
Katherine E. Ta'tlanl_:. at 475-1322 or 472-3701 (TTY/TDD).

{3/ RAY S. TOPASNA

Executive Direclor

China approves Hong Kong security law

many concerns about the measure
before pivoting to discuss job-sup-
port subsidies.

“The National People's Congress is
still in a meeting, and an the agenda
today there's the relevant national
security law for Hong Kong," Lam
said, "At this moment it is inappro-
priate for me to respond to any ques-
tions or give any explanations."

The measure to punish acts of
secession, subversion, terrorism
and collusion with foreign forces
comes on the eve of the July 1anni-
versary of Hong Kong's return to
Chinese rule in 1997. The organizer
of the march is making a last-min-
ute appeal to hold the event, after
being denied permission by police,
who cited coronavirus risk and the
potential for violence,

Increasingly tenuous freedoms

The new law will shape the future

claim of responsibility could not be
confirmed, but the group has carried
out a number of similar attacks in
recent years aimed at destabilizing
Pakistan's economy and undermin-
ing Chinese influence.

Pakistani officials blamed India
for the attack, claiming ties between
New Delhi and the militant group.

"Make no mistake, today's attack
in Karachi is state-sponsored terror-
ism against Pakistan," said Pakistani

Page 1 ¢

of Hong Kong, whose civil liberties,
free markets and independent judi-
cial systemhave attracted hundreds
of international companies, Pres-
ident Donald Trump warned last
month that the U.S. would start
rolling back Hong Kong's preferen-
tial trade status, while the UK. and
Taiwan have offered new paths to
residency for the city's 7.5 million
inhabitants.

Hong Kong's freedoms have
become increasingly tenuous as Pres-
ident Xi Jinping grows more confident
in China's ability to withstand foreign
pressure and Hong Kong protesters
embrace morz radical positions such
as independence. Beijing's steady
moves to futher integrate the city
boiled over into histeric and some-
times violenl protests last year, after
Lam attempted to pass a bill allowing
extraditions o the mainland.

national security adviser Moeed
Yusuf.

The local commander of the Paki-
stan Rangers, 2 federal paramili-
tary group, said the attackers were
killed in eight minutes. Gen. Omer
Ahmed Bukhari told reporters at
a news confrence such attacks
cannot take place without the aid
of "outside intelligence agencies,"
according tothe Pakistani newspa-
per Dawn.

United Nationsto call
for more aid to Syria

BRUSSELS (Reuters) - Govern-

- meat< are set ta pledge billions of .
Jaiiais in aid for Syrians at a virtuai-

conference on Tuesday to help refu-
gees enduring Syria’s ninth year of
armed conflict, as COVID-19 and
high food prices worsen the plight of
millions.

This year, the United Nations is
looking for almost $10 billion for
people in Syria and surrounding
countries. It hopes much of that will
come from the 60 governments and
nongovernmental agencies gathering
by video link on Tuesday. The Euro-
pean Union is hosting the event.

Thepledging, nowanannualevent,
breaks down into a U.N, appeal of
$3.8 billion for aid inside Syria and
$6.04 billion for countries hosting
refugees. Only a fraction has been
raised so far,

"The needs have never been
greater," said Corinne Fleischer at
the Waorld Food Programme, a U.N.
agency.

In Syria, more than 11 million people
nasd aid and nratertinn tha |IN

largest refugee crisis.

Many Syrians face an_unprece-
dented hunger crisis, with over 9.3
million people lacking adequate
food, while the country's coronavirus
outbreak could accelerate, the U.N.
has said.

A combination of an economic
slump and COVID-19 lockdown
measures have pushed food prices
more than 200% higher in less than
a year, according to the World Food
Programme.

"The COVID-19 crisis has had an
immediateand devastating impact on
livelihoods of millions of Syrian refu-
gees and their hosts in the region,”
U.N. High Commissioner for Refugees
Filippo Grandi said in a statement.

However, money pledged Is only
what European officials call a stick-
ing plaster to meet Syrians' immedi-
ate needs, :

Rebuilding destroyed cities is likely
to take billons more dollars and
cannot start until powers invelved

in the war back a peaceful transition
awaw fram tha rila nf Surian Pracident

is//edition.pagesuite-professional.co.uk/html5/reader/production/print_pages.aspx?edid=c956f66b-c4a7-4c9a-... 7/14/



GUAM DAILY POST = TUESDAY, JUNE 9, 2020

Archbishop on medical

leave for "at least 3 months'

By Haidee Eugenio Gilbert
haidee@postguam.com

Archbishop Michael Jude Byrnes
will be on medical leave for "at least
three months,” to undergo a hip
surgery in Florida followed by recu-
peration and physical rehabilitation.

The archbishop has been using a
cane the pastfew weeks, and left Guam
on Monday for the surgery.

"He's been in pain and he's been
putting off the surgery for quite some-
time. But he's in good spirits. He told
us he'll be back and we look forward
to having him back after he's recu-
perated from the much needed hip
surgery,” Father Mike Crisostomo,
the Archdiocese of Agana's vicar for

clergy, said on Monday.

Crisostomo said the surgery will be
done in Florida, but the archbishop will
also be spending time with his family in
Michigan while recuperating.

The COVID-19 pandemic, he said,
also delayed the surgery.

Tony Diaz, the archdiocese's direc-
tor of communications, said the arch-
bishop will be on medical leave “for at
least three months."

This is Byrnes' first extended leave
for medical reason, since first stepping
foot on Guam on Nov. 28, 2016.

Byrnes appointed Father Ron Rich-
ards to temporarily serve as Episco-
pal Vicar of the Archdiocese of Agaiia
during his absence, Richards is the
chancellor and special assistant to the

3 o TR

BYRNES: Archbishop Michael Byrnes gives

the homlly during Mass on Jon. 19 at the *

Dulee Nombre de Maria Cathedral-Basilica
in Hagdtfa. Post file photo

archbishop. Crisostomo, along with
priests and members of the Curia, will
be assisting him, the archdiocese said.
Father Jeff San Nicolas, vicar general,
also remains on leave at this time.,

Suspect sought in robbery at Yona Mobil

Police need the public's help for
information on the suspect of arobbery
at the Yona Mobil around 7 p.m. on
Saturday.

Officers assigned to the Central
Precinct Command responded to
the Yona Mobil Gas Station, where
an unidentified man entered the
establishment and demanded money
while brandishing a knife, according

man Sgt. Paul Tapao.

Fearful for her safety, the store
employee immediately complied and
handed an unknown amount of cash
from the store's register, GPD stated in
a press release.

The male suspect was seen running
on Artemic A. Cruz Street toward
the GHURA housing area. The store
employee was unharmed.

heavyset man standing 5'5" and was
last seen wearing a black backpack,
a gray hooded jacket and blue pants,
with a black mask covering his face.
The Guam Police Department is
asking for assistance from the commu-
nity, Call GPD dispatchers at 472-8911
or share information anonymously
through the Guam Crime Stoppers at
guam.crimestoppersweb.com.

(Daily Post Staff)

Page 1 ¢
Food distribution

today in Dededo,
forAgat-Umatac

Distribution for the Emer-
gency Food  Assistance
Program Disaster Household
Distribution continues today
and Thursday.

Theemergency food supplies
are intended for households
impacted by COVID-19,

Recipients will receive ane
bag of non-perishable food
and one box of fresh fruits or
vegetables. Food commodities
include items such as fresh
apples and oranges, beans,
rice, canned fruits, sauces,
tuna, salmon, pork, beef, and
chicken. Distribution will take
place on the following dates
and locations:

Today:

» Mount Lam Lam in
Agat-Umatac from 6 a.m. to
10 a.m.

+ Dededo Farmers' Market
from 6a.m. to 10 a.m.

Thursday, June 11:

= Tiyan Upper Baseball Field
from 6a.m. to 10 a.m.

* Yona St. Francis Church
from6a.m. to 10 a.m.

Commodities will be distrib-
uted for the week on a first-
come, first-served basis, while

to Guam Police Department spokes- ~ The suspect was described as a supplies last. (Daily Post Staff)

e GHURA UNIVERSITY OF

g % Gunm Housing and Urban Renewal Authorily GUAM

5 Areidnt Gluima* Yan Rinucton Sivdot Goalan UITBETSEDAT GUAHAM

% &"} 117 Nlien Vet Averiee » Sinnjaia Guam 96710
a, Phianc: (B0} ATTIESE » Fax: (6711 3007565 « TTV: (R78) 4723701

T LR — First Notice
Lowsdes & Lton Cuctrog Jochua B, Terodo

Gowrsrer of Guam Ueidenaal Governar el Guam

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
PUBL:G HE]U;_,IE-&,G.AUTHOHIT‘:‘. (PHA) ANNUAL PLAN (FY2021)
and

CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM FIVE-YEAR ACTION PLAN (2020-2024)
(This ad is paid for by the Public Housing, Section B Housing Choice Youcher and Capilal Fund Programs)

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority is seeking public comment(s) on the
Authority's Annual PHA Plan (FY2021) and Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five-Year Actian Plan
(2020-2024) for the Public Housing Section 8 Houslng Choice Voucher and Capital Fund
Programs. The Plans detail GHURA's proposed goals, objectives, accomplishments and use
of funds.

Due to COVID-19 pandemic and the Government of Guam's social distancing requiremenls
the Plans will be made available electronically on GHURA's websile al www.ghura.org. If you
would like to obtain a copy or require additional information please cantact Katherine E.
Taitano, Chief Pianner, at 475-1322 or emall al kalherine@ghura.org or Alvina C. Castro,
Program Coordinator, at 475-1401 or email alvina@ahura.org).

Any person(s), agencies, or organizations wishing to comment on any of the Plans are
encouraged to do so by submitting a written statement to GHURA's Main Office through the
U.S. Postal Service at the address stated above. Written comments(s) may also be submitted
via facsimile at 300-7565 or by submitting via emall to katherine@ghura.org or
alvina@ghura.arg. Comments will be accepled beginning June 9, 2020 through July 28,
2020,

If you require special accommodations, please contact the Section 504 Coordinator,
Kathering E. Taitano, al 475-1322 or 472-3701 (TTY/TDD).

/sf RAY 8. TOPASNA

Executive Director

The special meeting of the University of Guam Board of Regenls (U0G BOK] will be held via registered zoom on
Tuesday, June 16, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. A Joint Facilities and Budget, Finance,and Audil (BFA) Committes meeling
will be held via registered zaom prior to the special BOR meeting at Sp.m. Themaeling will be publicly accessible by
ragis:ering for zoom access at hutpg://zoom.us/meeting/replter/ulVerdrTdiEiflgiWD Dl kOpEEV90em.

For security putposes, registration for the publicis required for attenoance.

This complies with the Governar's Executive Order No. 2020-07, dated March 33, 2020, paragraph 4 related to Open
Government and Participation in Meelings via Teleconferencing during the emagency declaralion period.

UG complizs with Guam Public Law 24-109 with reference to the provisions and requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act. For special accommodations, please contact the ADA Coordinater at 735-2244 or [TTY) 735-2243,

This ad was paid for with UDG funds.

VIETNAM VETERANS OF AMERICA CHAPTER 668
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR 2019
MEDICAL/BEREAVEMENT: $757.00
REIMBURSEMENT: $3,084.85
UTILITIES: $1,480.04
DONATIONS: $17,257.00
FUND-RAISER: $8,072.00
LIABILITIES: $17,097.82

s://edition. pagesuite-professional.co.uk/htmlS/reader/production/print_pages.aspx?edid=6c1de364-9710-4fb1... 7/14/



Lourdes A, Leon Guerrero
Govemner of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Govemnor of Guam

Sabino P. Flores
Chairman

Monica O. Guzman
Vice Chairwoman

Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner

Frank T. Ishizaki

Commissioner

George F. Pereda
Commissioner

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero
Resident Commussioner

Ray S. Topasna
Executive Director

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Deputy Director

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910

Phone: (671) 4779851 - Fax: (671) 300-7563 - TTY: (671) 472-3701 CaUA. 11OUSIFIC
Website: wwiw.ghura.org OFFORTUHITY

At the Regular Board Meeting of August 28, 2020, 2 motion
was made by Chairman Flores and seconded by
Commissioner Ishizaki to approve the Request for Tenant
Dsites: August 20, 2020 Account Receivables erte-qﬁs through June 39, 2020 for
AMPS 1, 2, 3, and 4 totaling $19,037.69. Without any

To: Bosard 6 Consias r}‘grrsther discus{.%imnﬁgbjection, the motion was approved.
Via: Mr. Ray S. Topasn Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Director Deputy Director @
From: Lucele D. Leon Guerrero
Controller _
Subject: Request for Write-Off of Tenant Accounts Receivables

The Property Site Managers provided us with a memorandum recommending to
write-off the attached list of tenant accounts receivables totaling $19,037.69.

AMP Write-Off Amount
1 $ 4,014.86
2 9.279.58
3 1,449.45
4 4.293.80
Total $19,037.69

The listing has been verified and the amounts represent outstanding receivable
balances of former tenants as of June 30, 2020.

Since these outstanding balances are affecting the Authority’s financial performance,
we concur with the Property Site Managers to write-off these delinquent accounts.
Based on the recommendations and our concurrence, we are requesting your
approval to write-off these account balances.

Your favorable response to this request is greatly appreciated. Please let me know if
you have any questions.

Attachments

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.



g Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
% Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
1.“ 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671)477-9851 - Fax: (671) 3007565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EQUAL HOUSING
Website: www.ghura.ora OFFOETUNITY

P GHURA
%..,,,.p*"j

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero

Govemor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio August 4, 2020
Lt. Govemor of Guam

Sabino P. F!ores
Cheiunan 106 Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller

Monica O. Guzman
Vice Chairwoman

FROM: Property Site Manager, AMP 1
Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner
Frank T. Ishizaki SUBJECT: Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables
Commissioner As of June 30, 2020
George F. Pereda
Commissioncr I have reviewed AMP1’s Tenant Account Receivables and attached the listing of accounts

recommended for write-off due to no response from former residents. These accounts have

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero | o) close through June 30, 2020 totaling $4,014.86.

Resident Commissioner

Ray S. Topasna These inactive account balances are affecting the Authority's financial performance
Executive Director therefore; | recommend that these balances be written off and forwarded to the Department

Elizabeth F. Napoli of Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Deputy Director

Thank you,

-LL\‘ AL n/\l\_‘-d}?u Q }l/f}-? T

Narcissa P. Ada
Property Site Manager, AMP 1

Attachments % ED?D

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers,



YaV 'd VSSIDYWN Ag pasedald

98'¥10'y $100050T $[98'v86'E $ | 00°080°T $ IVLOL
« SMOT104 ONIHLON.
a1ep o) asuodsas aanedan| zo vy S| 00'0ST S| 29968 s |(o02) S| 610Z/08/6 610Z/L/8 :M_w_“_.w% W_”uwwo 610Z/1/6 | Lvan3Lav
)ep 0} asuodsal annesan| zo'29¢ $ | 000ST $|zozzs ¢ |loos) $| 0zoz/6T/9 910Z/0g/CT :M_H_H__._ H“Ma 0Z/10/90 | OHOD 8T
3)ep 0} Bsuodsal 3A1E8aN| 00'TSY'T $ | 000ST S | 00085 $|00TIOT S| ozoz/it/fe 6T0Z/LZ/TT WawAed [ejusy-uoN | 0z/€0/z0 dan gz
31ep 0} asuodsas saneSan| 00'96 $ | 00°0ST S | 00552 5 |(00'6) s | 610Z/08/6 9107/9/6 :M_“%“_ ”_“Me 61/20/60 | SYIVS VYIZ
ajep o3 asuodsas annedan| 68'TZS S| 00°0ST S | 68'909 S| 0059 s | et0z/te/ot L10Z/S2/6 CM_.H_%_.” ”_“Mn_ 6T/LT/0T | SYIVS ¥ZI
a1ep 03 asuodsal aanesSan| 00°00% $ [ ooost $]00'5Zs 5| 00°SZ s | ocoe/er/e 6r0Z/Z2/S CMW_H” ”.“uwwo 02/90/20 HIW 9
s)ep 0} asuodsal aanedapn| €€/ $| 00°0ST $ | Ec'688 S |(00°s) S| 6T0¢/91/8 810¢/ve/6 :MHHM_ ﬁuh_mn 61/10/80 9N 8
| oy | Qe | Qo || (onormy || 0 sy | 2|

0zZoz "0 3unf  1no @asomn

T dINY HO4 SIONVIVE 440-31 1M
ALIHOHLNY T¥M3NIY NYSHN ONY ONISNOH WYND




5, GHURA

'.: E Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
2 Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
% 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana. GU 96910
23, poens Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 3007565 - TTY: (671) 472-3701 EQUAL HOUSIHG
Website: www.ghura.arg OFFORTUMITY
August 6, 2020
Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govemor of Guam
S Toanrks | TO Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller a/{f%
Lt. Governor of Guam
i B s FROM: Gina M. Cura, Property Site Manager (AMP 2)
Chairman
— SUBJECT:  Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables
RN et Total: $ 9,279.58

A“&‘;Sﬁ?;ﬁ I have reviewed AMP 2’°s Tenant Accounts Receivables for the period through June

30, 2020. Attached is a list of accounts to be written off due to non-activity from

FrankT.Ishizaki | former residents. The accounts were closed through June 30, 2020 totaling
Commissioner 59’279. 58

George F. Pereda

Commissioner | These inactive accounts are affecting the Authority’s financial performance and I am

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero recommending that these accounts be written off and forwarded to the Department of
Resident Commissioner Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Ray S. Topasna
Executive Director

Elizabeth F. Napoli | Respectfully,
Deputy Director

S, A
/ Gina M. Cura

Property Site Manager

Attachment

8,

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator,
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.



Leyey ‘N eljap Ag pesedaly

1401

8562’6 S 0Z/0E/9 4o se a3ue(eg Jo ajum
(oozsy'T) ¢ 55320.4d U1 IN0850|D dVIS 559)
(szeiz) § uonINpap |j0JAed AJf SZ 5597
EBOTOTT § 0T0Z/0€/90 jo se Lodas Suidy
85'6Lz'6 $ |loo'os9't) ¢ | ss'toOZ S | 00'8ZL'0T s TVL0L
21ep : LN3Y 40 LNIWAYd wnor [T
0} asuodsas aaesay | 90 68L S |(ooosT)  § - $ | 00'6E6 S| oeoz/ie/t 610¢/9/6 |, on -39NvRdwoa-non| 020E/ST/T SR
alep 1N3¥ 40 LNIWAVd wnoa |0
o3 asuodsa aapesay | 00066 § |(000ST)  § - $ [ooovT'T $| 610Z/1/8 6TOZ/E/S | 0N :39nvidwoo- Non|  BFOZ/0T/L ionyp 1Y
o ﬁcnn_wﬂﬂz.mmuz ozez s |looosT) |- $ [oozee §| oeoeferss | stoz/e/er | NOSUNERSININT | ozoz/er/e thw m
sjep LN3Y 4O LNIWAYC i
03 asuodsas angeday (00029 [(000ST)  § |- $ [o00sL $| er0Z/T/8 6T02/L/T | \on zonviamon- Nox| TOZ/6/L | YNOAWdr £
o3 ssuodens onnegay | 85907 § (000ST)  § |8sTrt $ |oo'ste $| etoz/ez/e | etozjossy | SO MOINVEY | groz/er/e ol ;
» wmcch%amzzuwz ooes ¢ [(ooosT)  $|- $ 00602 §| ozoz/erss | sroesefe | MOSSMISSAMINN | ozaz/en/e .H%ﬂ ’
= mm;nuwmumzsmmz 009z ¢ |(ooost) s |- $ |0o9zy §| etoz/r/e | erog/rfy | NOSUNOISOMIMA | 6rozse/. e :
Jiep NOLLI3NNOJSIQ ALNILA gL (¥
01 asuodsas anpesay | 00002 §|(000ST)  § | - $ |00'0S€E $ | ozoe/er/s 6102¢/6/8 RTINS NOk 0z0z/91/¢ ﬁhﬂw_wn
21ep LN3Y 40 LNIWAYd CHHOWML |'e
03 asuodsai anqeday 00LE . $ |(o00sT) S |0009 S |o0LeT S 610Z/1/8 8T0Z/S1/8 LNON. tIaNVIdoo-NaN| SRR L .M..w_,_”_n_mmm
aep ; LN3Y 40 LNIWAVd o\.,_c“_oe& g
0} 3suodsas sanesaN 00'TPe $ [looosT) 5| - S |00°T6E S| 610Z/11/9 6T0Z/vT/Y NN TINTIINGS- NG 6T0Z/vT/S w,,”ﬁ_mmm
H1ep . A LN3Y 4O LNIWAYd z\qjﬁ_qz_ ¥
03 asuodsas annesay |006€9'S  $ |(oo0sT)  § |- $ (00°68LS $| 0coz/9ft 6T0Z/E/T | yon :3oNvndos-non| OTOL/TES wﬂmﬁq
i () (q)sasae A0 :H“ e uy |NE 553004 nea ugnBUIULIY ne
RO ._aemuﬂﬁnm\.”_wu wAsd/s0daq ws_..:_u_u._u hunw.“__:ua.u_u_..fn_un:uﬂ _“ch”.-u.mc_nu._ Juswing ._.u".“ Emmwuurr mo u.muz #un
soueiey H/V AR Anpn) i

0202 ‘0 INNF 40 SV LNO aIso1d
Z dINIV 404 SFONYIVE 440-ILIHM
ALIMOHLNY T¥YMINTH Nvadn dNY ONISNOH WYND



ﬂm!\r*

A

HOUSTN
> Yy,
[+}

*""!nv Ly

2
Q. ‘»‘ .*

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
L.t Governor of Guam

Sabino P. Flores
Chairman

Monica O. Guzman
Vice Chainvoman

Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner

Frank T. Ishizaki
Commissioner

George F. Pereda

Commissioner

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero

Resident Commissioner

Ray S. Topasna
Executive Director

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Deputy Director

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima' Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue. Sinajana. GLI 96911)

Phone: (671) 4779831 + Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 COUAL 10USIHG
Websitc: wiw ghura ore OFFOFTUNITY
August 11, 2020
TO: Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller
FROM: Property Site Manager
SUBJECT: Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables

Total: $1,449.45

| have reviewed AMP 3’s Tenant Accounts Receivables for the period through June
30, 2020. Attached is a list of accounts to be written off due to non-activity from
former residents. '

The accounts were closed through June 30, 2020.
These inactive accounts are affecting the Authority’s financial performance and |
am recommending that these accounts be written off and forwarded to the

Department of Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Please feel free to contact me for any questions or concerns.

APatrick R. Bamba

Attachment

Recouvedl
MG 14 2020

SN

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities
The Chief Planner has been designated as Seetion 504 Coordinator
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone nunibers



SY'E9Z'T S Y101
s s ok ok bk ok ok kaok ko SO T104 ONIHLON *k

ASNOdS3Y ON| sv°Zh6 5 |loo0sT)  $ | svovz S | 00°2s8 S| o0zoz/oz/so 0z0Z/90/10 N3AID 3DILON AVA OE AYVLNMIOA| 0Z0Z/12/20 VP9 €
ISNOdS3H ON| 00°09T s |loo'osT) ¢ | oo'seT S | 00°'STT S| 0zZoz/81/S0 020¢/10/20 N3IAID 3DILON AVQ 0t -IONVITdINOD-NON| 0Z0Z/0T/20 OviNg z
ISNOdS3IH ON| 00°T9T s |(ooost) ¢ # S | 00TIE s | o0zoz/so/zo 6T0Z/St/1T N3AID AV 0€ ON *3INVITdWOI-NON| 0Z0Z/90/10 OVINSE T
SINININDD (6T0z/91/L0) 40 %) L1s0d3a 53DUYH) 1N0-3A0W Q35532044 INIWAY NOILYN:WY3L MO NOSY3IY 31va ON LINN | ON

INNOJIY NO 198 ¥/v ALIMND3S DNINVITD Y3V IINYIVE | LNO 3SOTD 3Lva 15v1 40 3Lva 1N0 INOWN

1N3IY HO {4n)
1YoV T-££0

0Z0Z ‘0€ INNT 40 SY € dINY HOd SIONYIYE 440-3L1HM
ALMOHLNY TVMINIY¥ NYEHN ANV SNISNOH INYND




= ) V101
£ (Lo gk [oF Jo1 1] SR e ||| PN AEEEn——
SLNIWINOD (6102/9T/£0)405v) | LI50430ALINNZAS | SIDUVHIONINYIY |  LNO-IAOW ¥ILdv 03553)08d AN3WAYd NOLLYNIWNIL 404 NOSYIYN ilva ON LINN | ON
INNOIIY NO WE BV IONVIVE LN3H ¥0 (8n)| 1035013 3uva 15¥140 31va 1N0 3AOIN
OZI43W Z-gL0

0Z0Z '0E ANNT 40 SY £ dIY HO4 STONVIVE 440-3LI4M
ALIHOHLNY TYM3NIY NYEHN ANY DNISNOH WYND




00°981 S hLATeN
Sk okdok KA SMOT10d DNIHLON ok
ISNOdS3Y ON| 00°98T $ |(o0"0sT) S | 00°0ST S | 00'98T 5 | ozoz/8e/t0 | 610Z/10/60 (NOILDINNODSIA| 6T0Z/0€/80 | DOIGLT |t
ALIILN) SYNOH-¥Z 3ONVITdINOD-NON
SLNININGD (6x0Z/51/L0) 1150430 ALIMND3S | SIDUYHI ONINVITD ino 035530084 ANINAYd NOILYNINHEIL Y04 NOSYIY ilva ON LINN |ON
40 SY) LNNDIDV AW HALIY IDNVIVE| LNO 3S0TI ILva 1s¥140 31va 1NO IAOW
NO VB ¥/v LN3Y HO {4n)

JVLIVIAIN E-ELD
0Z0Z ‘0€ INNT 40 SV € dIAY Y04 SIINVIVE 440-3L1HM
ALIHOHLNY TYMANIH NvgHn ANY DNISNOH INYND




Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govemor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt, Governor of Guam

Sabino P. Flores
Chairman

Moniea O, Guzman
Vice Chairwoman

Anisia S. Delia
Comnussioner

Frank T. Ishizaki

Comnuissioner

George F. Pereda

Commussianer

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero
Resident Commissioner

Ray 8. Topasna
Executive Director

Elizabeth F. Napoli

Deputy Dircctor

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910

Fhone: (671)4779851 - Fax; (071) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EGUAL HOUSIMNG
Website: www.ghurwog OQFFORTUHNITY

August 11, 2020

TO: Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller

VIA: Elizabeth F. Napoli, Deputy Director

FROM: Property Site Manager, AMP4

SUBJECT: Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables

Total: $4,293.80

| have reviewed AMP4’s Tenant Accounts Receivables for the period through June
30, 2020. A total of $4,293.80 is being requested to be written off from the GL
books.

Attached is a list of accounts to be written off due to non-activity from former
residents. Please note that these former tenants have not remit any payments due
within the time periods stated in their collection letters.

These inactive accounts are affecting the Authority’s financial performance and | am
recommending that these accounts be written off and forwarded to the Department

of Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Please feel free to contact me at 475-1394 for any questions or concerns,

Plilkormers Sam Nicolas

Philomena San Nicolas

Attachment

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.



0R'E6BZ'Y S V1oL
TIVIN d3141143D INOY4 ISNOJS3Y ON| 90'S9 & [00°0STS-  |90°E8T1S 00'ZES 0z0Z/81/S |0ZOZ/T/T NOILDINNODSIA ALIILN| 0202/¥Z/10| Dvdare -
VI Q31411430 INOY4 3SNOJS3Y ON| v8'S6  § [00°0STS-  |[bB'ShES 0008 0zoZ/v/e  |0z0T/E/1 ADN3DI144NS-413S LNYNIL| 0202/20/T0| WYQSTH -
TN Q31410830 IOYH ISNOJdSIY ON| PE'9ZP  § [00°0STS- |PE'€9SS 00°ETS 0z0Z/9/e  |6T0Z/9/CT ONI¥YIH| 070Z/Z0/T0| WYAYTY ot
IDNVAIIED - NOILYNIWYIL
TN Q31411430 WOYS 3SNOJSIY ON| SL°'T92 & [000STS- |£5°/92% TTErTS 020Z/81/s |020Z/T/T N3IAID IDILON AVA-0E ‘AYYLNNIOA| 0Z0Z/20/10| 29QH8LT g
1IN 311LYID WOYHS ISNOJSIH ON| 00°88S & [000STS-  [00'00bS 00'8€ES 020z/81/S |610Z/S/11 NOILIINNODISIO ALNILN| 6T0Z/0T/2T Wdrez 5
1UVIN Q31411430 IWOY4 3SNOJS3H ON| 26°££9  § [0D'0STS-  |26'LE8S 00015~ 0zoZ/v/c  |6TOZ/T/TT ONIYVIH| 6102/20/2T| INVAVE 2
JONVAIIYD - NOILYNIWYIL
TV G3141183D INOYS 3SNO4SIY ON| LZ'658 & |00°0STS-  |00°09%S LT6YSS 0z0zZ/61/S |6T0Z/E2/L NOILIINNODSIO ALINILN| 6T0Z/2T/60| WYAYST .
TVIN 3111830 INOYS ISNOJS3Y ON| 00°T95 & |00°0STS- |00'Shps 00'997% 0z0Z/61/S |610Z/61/L ANVISI-440 ONILYI013Y | 6T0Z/L0/60| WYAVZE &
YN Q31411430 INOYd ISNOJSIY ON| 00°'T0Z  § |00°0STS-  |00°0S 00'TSES 0z0z/62/1 |6102/8/L ANYISI-440| 6102Z/10/60| DVdYe "
ON|LYIO013Y IVIAIN-AINIODYINI
YN 311183 NOYS ISNOJSIH ON| 00°SSE & |00°0STS-  |00'S03S 00'0% 0zoz/st/T1 |610Z/1/6 {ALIAILOY| 6T0Z/E0/60 VSSY6 e
TYNINIYD) NOILYNIWYIL OL 193ddY ON
VN Q311183 NOYHS ISNOJS3Y ON| ET°8L  § |00°0STS- E1'8CCS 0008 0z0z/sT/T |610TZ/1/€ (ALIALLDY| 6T0Z/1T/50 VauE 7
TUNIWIND) NOILYNIWYIL OL TW3ddY ON
VN QI11LY3D INOYS ISNOSIY ON| 6Y'#2 & |000STS- |6E'HLTS 0005 6T0Z/61/1T [610Z/1/01 Q3INIA ¥IALYT SYM LNE| 6T0Z/T0/0T| 88QYYHT .
"NVYHSDYd HIHLONY AR 0314300V SYM
nh.n\.ﬁm\h d g INO-IACLL
40 5v) ysodag sasieyd Q350U LNIWAYS . ;
SININWNOD iNRoN | i M HHH.““”H_ ihessanraivd| i sosive NOILYNIAYIL ¥04 NOSY3Y VA O-W | #LINN | "ON
NO Tva /v

0Z0¢ ‘Og aunf

440-3LIYM Y04 1S3N03Y
35vd 41IS ¥ dNY
ALIMOHLNY TVMINIY NVEHN 8 DNISNOH WYND




GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Aturidat Ginima Yan Rinueban Suidat Guahan
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Resolution No. FY2020-023

Moved by: SABINO P. FLORES Seconded by: GEORGE F. PEREDA

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 OPERATING BUDGETS FOR
PUBLIC HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT PROJECTS (AMP) GQ001000001,
GQ001000002, GQ001000003 AND GQ001000004.

WHEREAS, the Authority and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) entered into a Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract, ACC
Number SF-272 dated March 27, 1967; and

WHEREAS, the Authority administers HUD’s Low Rent Public Housing Program,
which is subsidized by HUD, through its Operating Fund; and

WHEREAS, HUD, with the implementation of 990.255 of the Operating Fund final rule,
requires public housing authorities to implement project-based
management, project-based budgeting and project-based accounting, and

WHEREAS, the Authority, in anticipation of the aforementioned requirement, has
grouped its housing developments into Asset Management Programs
(AMPs),

WHEREAS, the proposed Fiscal Year 2021 AMP budgeted expenditures are necessary

in the efficient and economical operations of the AMPs for the purpose of
serving low-income residents; therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the FY 2021 AMP operating budgets for the Authority’s Asset
Management Projects GQ001000001, GQ001000002, GQ001000003 and
GQO001000004 are hereby approved.

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT SINAJANA, GUAM - AUGUST 28, 2020
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES: Sabino Flores, Monica Guzman, George Pereda, Frank Ishizaki,
Anisia Delia

NAYES: NONE

ABSENT: Joseph Leon Guerrero

ABSTAINED: NONE

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board
of Commissioners on August 28, 2020.

(SEAL) / _ 4_\

RAY S. TOPASNA
Secretary/Executive Director




PHA Board Resolution U.S. Department of Housing OMB No. 2577-0026

Appraving Operating Budget and Urban Development {exp. 06/30/2022)
Office of Public and Indlan Housing -
Real Estate Assessment Center (PIH-REAC)

Public reporting burden for this coliection of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instruckions, searching exisling data
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and compleling and reviswing the coliection of information. This agenicy may not collect this infarmation, and you are ot required to
complete this form. unless it displays a currantly valid OMB control number.

This information is required by Section 6{c){4} of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, The information is the operating budget for the low-income public housing program and provides a
summary of the proposedibudgeted receipts and expendidures, approval of budgeted receipts and expendilures, and justificaion of certain specified amounts. HUD reviews the
information lo determing if the operating plan adopted by the public housing agency (PHA} and the amounts are reasonable. and that the PHA is in compliance wilh procedures
prescribed by HUD. Responses are required to obtain benefits. This infarmation does not lend itself 1o confidentiality,

PHA Name: Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority PHA Code: GQO001

PHA Fiscal Year Beginning: QOctober 1 , 2020 Board Resolution Number: FY 2020-023
Acting on behalf of the Beard of Commissioners of the above-named PHA as its Chairperson, I make the following
certifications and agreement to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the Board’s
approval of {check one or more as applicable):
DATE
Operating Budget approved by Board resolution on: 08/28/2020
D Operating Budget submitted to HUD, if applicable, on:
D Operating Budget revision approved by Board resolution on:
D Operating Budget revision submitted to HUD, if applicable, on:
I certify on behalf of the above-named PHA that:
1. All statutory and regulatory requirements have been met;

2. The PHA has sufficient operating reserves to meet the working capital needs of its developments;

3. Proposed budget expenditure are necessary in the efficient and economical operation of the housing for the purpose of
serving low-income residents;

4. The budget indicates a source of funds adequate 1o cover all proposed expenditures:
5. The PHA will comply with the wage rate requirement under 24 CFR 968.110(c) and (f); and
6. The PHA will comply with the requirements for access to records and audits under 24 CFR 968.1 10¢i).

I hereby certify that all the information stated within, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith
if applicable, is true and accurate.

el

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18
U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012.31, U.S.C. 3729 and 3802)

Print Board Chairperson’s Name: Signatyre: Date:
Sabino P. Flores &Q’m 'P, gemu ?|3,)2@

Previous editions are obsolets form HUD-52574 (06/2019)




8/25/2020 2:56 PM

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Low Rent Housing Program - Project Summary

Budget
FY 2021
Pro(Low Rent Housing
FY2[(Multiple ltems)
FY21 Budget Fund Description
Bud|Budget Category Budget Line Item AMP -1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 | Grand Total
1| Revenue 100 Operating Receipts (15048) (66744) (50508) (294815) (427115)
102 Interest Income (2500) (2779) (4700) (3836) (13815)
103 Other Income (20157) (5372) (34459) (26737) (86725)
106 Subsidies - Federal (1067776)  (1157459) (1312553) (1446801)( (4984589)
109 Year-end Cash Balance 40076 82444 31112 (284129) (130497)
Revenue Total (1065405)  (1149910) (1371108) (2056318)[ (5642741)
2| Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 453235 407207 426153 603202 1889797
802 Overtime 18000 15000 15000 23200 71200
803 Employee Benefits 175442 165088 184169 226107 750806
Personnel Total 646677 587295 625322 852509 2711803
3| Utilities 804 Electricity 25000 23000 27000 41000 116000
805 Water/Sewage 3000 14249 45000 130000 192249
Utilities Total 28000 37249 72000 171000 308249
5[ Contractual 812 Auto Maintenance 12000 9000 8500 11000 40500
813 Auto - Gas 10000 7000 13100 9500 39600
814 Communication 7500 8843 12100 10000 38443
815 Copy Machine 4000 3691 2651 3000 13342
816 Custodial Services 5000 6720 17280 11000 40000
817 Insurance Services 13550 22785 29216 35250 100801
820 Property Management Fee 146460 149256 174034 215550 685300
821 Bookkeeping Fee 15915 16219 18911 23423 74468
822 Asset Management Fee 21330 22005 26325 31590 101250
825 Legal 2000 2500 500 1500 6500
826 Office Equipment Maintenance 3500 3500
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services 9000 7000 10000 20000 46000
828 Professional Services 10000 15000 25000 20000 70000
829 Protective Services 1200 2000 1000 35000 39200
830 Software Maintenance 6000 7000 6500 10000 29500
832 Audit 1200 1300 1500 2000 6000
833 Advertising 1000 1000 4000 2000 8000
850 Maintenance Contratcs 30000 16500 100000 285865 432365
851 Staff Training 12000 10000 7000 20000 49000
Contractual Total 308155 311319 457617 746678 1823769
6| Equipment [831 Equipment 27473 125335 104919 102000 359727
Equipment Total 27473 125335 104919 102000 359727
7| Other 835 Collection Loss 6000 10000 15000 20000 51000
836 Computer Services 2000 2000
839 Custodial Supplies 600 500 500 750 2350
842 Membership Dues 1500 1500 1750 3000 7750
843 Miscellaneous 1500 7050 4150 9000 21700
844 Office Supplies 3500 4000 5000 3000 15500
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials 35000 50000 65000 85000 235000
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance 2000 3500 15000 35000 55500
847 Postage/Courier 500 1000 1700 2500 5700
848 Printing 2000 1000 2000 3000 8000
852 Subscriptions 500 50 150 500 1200
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 5150 12381 17531
862 PH FSS Expense 2000 2962 1000 10000 15962
Other Total 55100 88712 111250 184131 439193
Grand Total 0 0 0 0 0
FY21 BUDGET - WORK FILE AUG 2020.xIsx Low Rent Housing lofl

Board Meetina of Auaust 28. 2020

PAGE 49 of 52



€ J0 T abed

G62Z/G  880S9T 9082 GO09E 0L8T  G9¥E  GOBS LEOSTT L02.0v TT8ZT  96EV6E T 6
9069  L.VST vv€  9TTS /8T G617 96 6,88 6evre - 6evre - 020Z/0T/z  62vTE  TTST  (V)T-2WH Kresodwa (uonBy "4°y4°@ :@3IA) Z/0€/60 dx3-dwal) O |9.YIIN ‘Ofenby  JusuewWISd 190 BouRUBIIEI  TTOZT T 0002TT 2ZdWV-Hd
€9082  GT€6 8yc /182 /8T G6v [7X7 9625 8y/8T - 8y/8T - 6T02/92/8 87.8T 10'6 (W)T-€90 Aresodway (6T0-6T0ZA4 (02/0€/60 dx3-dwa ) 'r UMY “Jalpeles juaueuwad [EEC R 1 0002TT 2diV-Hd
"ON S84 DOg-M8N :82IA)
€E9/F  G96PT 182 6627 /8T G6Y (252 6226  899Z€ €€/ GEBTE TZ0Z/ST/S 0202Z/ST/S GEBTE  GE'ST (v)e-eor  weuewsdd-170  (BopapaN "0 1M :82IA) ‘W eluiblIA ‘salio]  Jusuewsd JUeISISSY SARBASIIIWPY  6TOTT T 0002TT ZdWV-Hd
ZETEY  €0LTT 8yc  8e¥T /8T G6Y 9sy 6,88 6er1e 6evte 6102/52/TT 62v1€  TT'ST  (V)T-2WH Aresodway 8oueUBUIRI\ 01 JalodeT )Z/0€/60 dx3-dwaL) "y Hegqoy Jauny  Aresodwa 19310\ BOUBUBIURI 000ZTT ZdV-Hd
woyy pawwelboidal YT0TT T
uoysod - ZniQ "9'd :89IA)
8TEVOT  2E0VT 0 0 18T 0 v9TT T892C 98208  CLLE ¥159. 0202/S/2T  6T02/S/2T  ¥IS9L  6L'9€ (3)s-HO  wsuewWISd-LTD (onsed 's™ :@2IA) ‘N BUID BIND  JusuBWISd «xx JODRURI 8)S Auadold  L00TT T 000ZTT ZdWV-Hd
69205  €S6vT 89y  YIEE /8T S6v [A5] 1/66  9T€S€  TO0Z STEEE 0202/T/0T  6TOZ/T/OT  STEEE  20'9T  (V)Z-TWH  udueuwsdd-110 (eydljeg 'g'9 :99IA) ‘W 19BUDIN 1010 JUsUBWISd 1410/ 8oUBUSIUBIN 82060 T 000ZTT ZdWV-Hd
8886L  SS9VC 89y  TOTL /8T S6v 108 €09ST  €€2G5  LS0€ 9/12S 020Z/ET/OT 6TOZ/ET/OT 9LT2S  80'Gc  (D)9-TAC  uduewsdd-110 (09sppuelq 'O’ :80IA) ‘WL Uel] UBWZND jusuewlsd 1apeaT soueuslUreN Bulpiing  9T060 T 0002TT ZdWV-Hd
G980S  6008T 89y  TOTL /8T S6v 9Ly 2826 9ggze - 9ggeze - 958z¢  08'ST  (W)T-€91 JuedeA (ouesoy |2@ "N’ :9IIN) juedeA jusueulad isiferoads BuisnoH 62080 T 0002TT ZdV-Hd
0€629  GTEIT T8¢ 200 /8T 0 9/9 69TET  GT99Y  €0.LT 2161y TZ0Z/VT/Z  0202/vTiZ  2I6vy 65Tz (D)ZT-€99  lusuewlad ouesy ylagezi|3 ‘ebusnd jusuewsdd 8|0 JamalnIBIu|  TZ080 T 0002TT 2ZdWV-Hd
....................................................... (9T0ZA4 Ut Buipuny oN) - (sal0l4 L'V :99IA) Jusuewlad Il uedIuyo3 ] Bununodody 800S0 000ZTT ZdWV-Hd
16285  ¥99ST 0 .18 /8T 0 819 Zv0eT  L29Zv  SYST 2801 T202Z/9T/Z  0202/9T/c  280T¥  GL'6T  (H)TT-€94 JusUeWIdd (uesslod "1 :39IA) ‘N UIpjueIS equieg  JusuewId e 11310 J00UCD BIRA  £00E0 T 0002TT ZdWV-Hd
(000ZTT) HUN SsduIsNg BWOH
ZdINV-9NISNOH d17and
119829 CYvSLT  89€Z  LZTEE  0L8T  SO¥E  2LS9 0v082T GEZESY PSI6T  TBOVEV T 6
TIGVY Z80€T svz LT8¢ 18T S61 9SGt 6.88 6cvte - 6cyie - 0202/8/9  62VIE TTST (V)T-2NH Arelodwa (060 “IN'S :99IA) 02/0€/60 dX3-dwal) ‘N WellliM Hasly  jusuelwad JoyIoM SdoueUSIUlEN  TOTTT T 000TTT TdWV-Hd
¥129Z 8259 0 0 18T 56 582 19SS 9896T - 9896T - 6T0C/0E/6 9896T 91’6 (A1-€90 Aresodwa ) (6T0-6T0ZA4 02/0€/60 dx3-dwal) "D Uy ‘uobeyes jusueuwlsd DU oot 1 000TTT TdAV-Hd
"ON ‘S84 DOgG-MBN_:82IA)
06¥9.  €2002 8vz /18 /8T 0 618 2S6ST  L9¥9G  02Sv 1V61S 1202/€/T  020Z/€/T  L¥6TS 1672 (QYT-€99  usuewldd (uedorereg "0y :89IA) 'O B[epae ‘ZNID Jusuewiad 1910 JamaIAIl  GTOTT T 000TTT TdWV-Hd
886TTT /6892 0 8EVT /8T 0 ¥€2T 8€0vZ 16058  18LY 0T€08 0202/9/0T 6T0Z/9/0T 0TE08 19'8€ (@¥-HO  duewIdd-110 (eseN 'S'L :89IA) "d eSSIDIEN ‘epy  JuduewIdd «x 10BRUBI 8IS Auadoid  900TT T 000TTT TdWV-Hd
¥996€ 6096 0 0 18T G6Y 9ey T6¥8  GS00€ 99T 60782 020Z/ST/0T 6T02/ST/0T 60v8Z 99'eT  (Q)S€D4  WsueWIAG-LTD (uesslfed "1 1IN :@9IA) 'V BUNSLIYD-BLEIN ‘BIUJRIN  JuBUBWISd xxx |119]D [04UOD BTRA  9E060 T 000TTT TdWV-Hd
2LTSS  89ZvT 0 8EVT /8T G6Y €65 GGSTT 70607  ¥.6T 0€68€ 1202/L2/v  0202/L2% 0E68E 28T (y2ANH  wsuewsdd-110 (uosiapuy "W'T :@3IA) SNiNC ‘yeqeuely  Jusuewiad 1210\ BOUBUBIUBN  TE060 T 000TTT TdWV-Hd
6v79€  80LPT 89y  TOTL /8T G6Y GTE [2a%) iz e - .12 s7oT  (V)T-2na juedeA (esIvV "IN'M :2IA) JuedRA JuBUBWIRG Jaloge] 2z060 T 000TTT TdWV-Hd
68598  692€T 89y  vIEE /8T G6Y 876 188LT 9T€E9 19§ 25129 1202/€/6  0202/€/6 25129 LT0e  (Q)62AC suewIdd-1TD (zayoues 'O’ :92IA) 'g Jewan ‘eyoleg jusuewsd 1apeaT aoueuaUeN Bulpiing  ZT060 T 000TTT TdAV-Hd
....................................................... (9T0ZA4 Ul Buipuny oN) - (enbeyy "g'v :82IA) Jusuewad JEISISSY ARASIUIWLPY 02080 000TTT TdV-Hd
0259.  v88€T 89%y  TOTL /8T G6Y €9/ 0/8YT 98925  669€ 1€68Y7 1202/8/2  0202/8/2  LE68Y €5'€Z A)2-€91 [NENETUER] (ezowpse 0"y :89IA) "0 ezl 'z Jusuewlsd Isiferoads BuisnoH 81080 T 000TTT TdAV-Hd
¥80GL  v.1€T 89%  TOTL /8T 0 €5/ G99¥T  OT6TS  0L6T 0v661 T20Z/TE/E  02OZ/TE/E OV66Y 1072  (3)0T-€9C JuauewIad (pawweiboidal nndeN ewiaA ‘uele jusuewlad JUEISISSY SARBASIUIWPY 20050 T 000TTT TdAV-Hd

-S810|4 L'V :93IA)

(000TTT) HUN SsduISNg BWOH
LdINV-ONISNOH 217and

1 S w 1 Lr2$) (1061$) 34 AIN3IN Teoe (1s3)  0202/0€/60  HONI HONI LSV 1 A d3l1s ‘1ddv 30IA AAVN 33A0TdNT  NOILISOd A1LILNOILISOd #SOd O d NgH NOISIAIA
J0YAVd 1I43N39 IN3IA VOIdaan 3411 1ada  VOIdaN 3di13d AdVIvS  1IN3IN v 1X3aN31d VANNY TdNOH  -3avydo VA 37
vliol  vliolL IV1OL 3JHONI  AdVIVS 4

/04134 a3
T¢Ooc 103rodd

186png 1202 Ad
ulaned buyers
welboid BuisnoH Jusay mo
Alioyiny [emauay ueqin pue BuisnoH weno 0202/s¢/8

PAGE 50 of 52

Board Meetina of Auqust 28. 2020



€ Jo Z obed

v06/T8 20622 1/9C T1€69€ 8T9Z 096€ 9298  06089T <200S6G 90STC  96VELS z €1
....................................................... (TZ0zAd Ul BulpunjoN) 9982¢  08'ST  (V)T-€91 (Ir_A0IS "Y'V :30IA) Areiodws | Isiferoads BuisnoH  TEOTT 000¥TT vdWV-Hd
€908  GT€6 8yz L1827 /8T S6v 2.Z 9625  8v.8T - 8v/8T - 6T02/9T/6 8v.8T 106 (V)1-€90 Kreiodwa] (olqed 'S'r :89IA) 1€/60 dx3-dwa]) abior sejoydIN ezeg Areiodwa L 14810 920TT T 000vTT vdWV-Hd
62,67  00€ZT 182 200 /8T G6Y 95Y 6,88 6zyTe - 6zvte - 6102/0€/8 62¥T€  TT'ST  (VT-ZAH Arelodway (repIA 0" :89IA) 2/0€/60 dx3-dwa L) 'V Auuaq ‘euyebap  Aresodwal 1910 BoUBUBIURI  GZOTT T 000vTT PdINV-Hd
61§ 9E6TT 0 0 18T 0 ¥.S G/TTT  8S56€  Tv9Z  LT69E 1202/0Z/¢ 0202/0Z/ L169€  SL.T  (V)€-€D7 uduewsdad-110 (zatad "L°C :89IA) "4 @NaueN ‘senoL-eureles jusuewsad 1sife1oads BuisnoH  €£20TT T 000vTT vdAV-Hd
....................................................... (8T0zA4 Ul Buipuny oN) - (za19d "W'Z :99IA) Jusuewad UID JamalniRlul ZZ0TT 000¥TT ¥dWV-Hd
TOTL Ggege - Ggege - - (V)T-2AC uedeA (oyooyoind 'N'd :83IA) JuedRA JudUBWIRd Japea aoueuawre Buiping 020TT T 000VTIT VvdNV-Hd
e ---e- (8T0ZA4 Ul Buipuny oN) e E (zarenly 's :93IA) Arelodwa laioge 8TOTT 000¥TT ¥dV-Hd
1v6S.  TlE€C 89y  TOTL /8T 0 29L €58FT  9.G2S 9962  0296% 0202/9/0T  6T0Z/9/0T 02967  98€Z  (d)8-2ANH Iusuewsdad-110 (sai1014 "AY :80IA) °C SHYD ‘zanbupoy  jusuewsdd J19)I0/W 8oueUBIURN LTOTT T 000VTT ¥dWV-Hd
6G8EYT  98EVE 8yz  8evT /8T 0 /8GT  9260€ €.V60T 9.09  LBEEOT T202/T/y  0202/T/y  L6EE0T  TL'6Y (9)8-HO  duBWIAG-LT1D (o0n0d Q'L :3AA) "D BUBWIO|IYJ ‘SBIODIN UBS  jusuewlsad « 180RUR BYS Auadoid  600TT T 000VTT ¥dWV-Hd
shee  LS26 8yc  8EYT /8T G6Y 9ee €559 G6TEC - seT€C 0 610z/¢z/. G6T€Z  STTT  (V)T-€99 Arelodway (YO "M :89IA) IZ/0€/60 dX3-dwa]) S SlneUS( ‘Ojged JusuBWISd 19D JamaIAIBI  GO0TT T 000vTT PdNV-Hd
....................................................... (LTOZA4 Ul Buipuny oN) ----- (foonoy "a’L :92IN) Arelodwa ] xxx JODRUBI 8BNS Aladold  TOOTT 000¥TT ¥dNV-Hd
L65v€  6210T 8yc  L18C /8T 0 0s€ 1289  89T¥Z  822T  0¥6CC 0202/TT/TT 6T0Z/TT/TT 0v62Z  €0TT  (A)T-€9d4  duBUWISG-LTD woJy pawwelboidsl Rer ydesor 'zniy  usuewIad 111910 [oAu0D Bred  £7060 T 000vTT vdWV-Hd
uonisod 0Z0ZA<
-Sojues ‘J'S :99IA)
19229  €OWYT 0 0 18T 0 769 22S€T  ¥98LF 909 8G2Ly 1202/22/8 020z/€e/8  8Sely 2Lz (V)8-ZWH JuauewIad (0 Zn1D 'S'9 182IA) 'V puowAey ‘sepep  JusuewIad 1910\ @dUBUBIIRIN  T#060 T 000¥TT ¥dWV-Hd
86182  LS¥9 GTE v19 TvLIC .12 - /T2 G701 (V)T-2nad ueoRA (1asoge] uedRA JUBURWISd Jaloge] GE060 T 000VTT ¥dINV-Hd
01 1192@ wouy ‘Boudas
020ZAd - ZMID "C°C :B3IA)
€66vS  GG68T 89y  TOTL /8T S6v €25 T8TOT 8€09€  8S0T  086YE T202/T/y  0202/T/y  086¥E  ¢89T  (d)Z-ZWH Iuduewsdd-110 (0dsioueld "9'L :99IA) a1 Aoy ‘[epIA  Jusuewdd 13310\ S0UBUSIUBN 62060 T 000¥TT vdWV-Hd
9vyTy  LTOOT 0 0 18T S61 96 6.88  62ZVTE 62VTE 6T0Z/S2/TT 62vT€  TT'ST  (V)T-ZWH Aresodway (zn1 "0Y :@0IA) €/60 dx3-dwal) 097 IydI0AY "ebeuem| jusuewsdd 1930\ @oUBUBUIBA 92060 T 000¥TT vdAV-Hd
85025  T6EIT 0 911G /8T G6Y LTS 9/00T /99S€ 610  8Y9EE T202/2/0T  0202/2/0T 8v9€E€  8T'9T  (d)E-TWH Iuduewidd-L70  (0yoewed "'O'V'IN :39IA) 'd J310d ‘Bl[epY  JusuewIRd 12310\ S0UBUSIUBIA 52060 T 000¥TT vdAV-Hd
€Ly 69L0T 0 0 18T S6Y 26v G656 ~ €96€€  LOTT  9G8Z€ TZOZ/TT/E 0ZOZ/TT/E 9G82€  08'ST  (WT-€971  Ateuoneqoid (oosipueld ‘9 7v'H :80IA) "V 1aquiy [eA0)S  jusuewiad Isife10ads BuisnoH 21080 T 000¥TT vdAV-Hd
0v299  ZTEST 0 0 18T 0 8€EL /8EYT 82605  GT8E  E€TTLY T202/22/T  0202/2e/t  €TTLy S92z (2)6-€9C JusuewIad (owagoy 's'y'd :89IA) ‘A BUIL ‘UOS]SN  JuduBwIdd JUBISISSY SAIRASIUIWPY  900TO0 T 000¥TT vdAV-Hd
....................................................... (8T0ZA4 Ul Buipuny oN) - (Se|02IN UeS "1 :89IA) JusuewIad 1310087 S00T0 000VTT ¥dNV-Hd
(000¥TT) HUN SsBUISNg BWOH
YdINV-ONISNOH J17and
22€0T9  69T¥8T  8FOF 6S€9Y vh2e 0S6¥  6.T9  68€0CT €S192y /806T 9900V z o1
08/82  2€00T 89y  vIeE /8T S6v (72 9625  8v.8T = - 8y/8T 020z/€lc 8v/8T 106 (W)1-€90 Arelodway (6T0-6T0ZA )2/0€/60 dx3-dwa 1) 'O dudpeq ‘ojged Juduewlad DHRID jenrt 1 OO0ETT €diNV-Hd
"ON S84 DOgG-MBN :82IA)
9G//S  18S6T 89y  TOTL /8T G6Y €55 €8/0T 69T8€  GG8E YIEVE 020Z/9T/0T 6T02/9T/0T vIeve  0§9T  (Q)Z-ZNH usuewsdd-110 (ezeuad "O'W :2IN) 'S |anuey ‘dobuluinby  Juauewlad 19)I0/\\ oURUBURN  /Z0TT T 000ETT EdWV-Hd
8€/GS  2S9ST 8yc /182 /8T G6Y 185 7ZETT 98007 €691 €6£8€ T20Z/L/T  0202/L/T  €6€8€  9¥'8T  (J)E-€DT IduewIdd-110  -9TOZAd ON 'S8y 009 "A Snapeuag ‘0dbuaINbAL  jusuewsdd 1sifeads BUISNOH  +Z0TT 7 O00ETT E€dAV-Hd
- AoUBORA MON :32IA) o ’
....................................................... (LT02ZA4 Ul Bulpuny oN) - (znup "1'g 19017 Jusuewad 1si[eroads BuisnoH  TZ0TT 000£TT E£dWV-Hd
€687  ¥6OVT 8yc /182 /8T S6Y 505 v86  8€8¥E  S29T €Tzee T202Z/T/S  0202/T/S €T2ee 16T  (I)E-€DC Iauewidd-110 (319quL ‘T :39IA) 'V 9leWas0Y euUeS( ‘Selg  jusuewldd JeJSISSY ARASIUIWPY  ETOTT T O000ETT E€dWV-Hd
66,62 L1969 0 0 18T 0 T€E 679 gzgee - gzgee 00 - €T02/9T/CT 8282  86'0T  (A)T-2NQ Aresodway (I1zn1o 'r°4 :991A) (02/0€/60 dx3-dwal) sewoyl ‘Ayosy Aresodwal xxx J2IOQET ZTOTT T 000ETT E€dINV-Hd
SZEPOT  TS2OE 89y  TOT. /8T 4 ¥.0T 92602 V.0V  T¥9v €EV69 T202/9/€  020Z/9/€  €ev69  8E'EE (V)z-HO  suewIdd-L10 (B|OIPUSIN '["d :9DIA) " oured ‘equieg  jusuewldd xxx JODRURI 81S Auadoid  800TT T O000€TT €dWV-Hd
2569€  96T0T 8yz  8evT /8T 4 28¢€ oy,  99€9¢  69.T 185¥C T202/92/8 0202/92/8 18Sve  28TT  (V)2-€99  Ateuoneqoid (a1yoeN V'O’ :B2IN) Auoyuy ydasor ‘sojues  Juaueulad 190 JamaIAIBN|  Z00TT T 000€TT €dNV-Hd
....................................................... Ad Ul Buipuny 1eak jjeH) ----- (se|g 'v'd'r :99IN) jusuewad JUEISISSY SABASIUIWLPY 87060 000ETT EdNV-Hd
900€€  9900T 8yc /182 /8T 0 €ee 89  Ov6ez ovéze GT02/62/9 Oveze €0'TT  (4)1-€9d Arejodwa] (se|g 'v'u'r @0IA) (02/0€/60 dX3-AWaL) 'd UUROL “JSUIN  JudURULdd e [113]D J00UCD BIRA 62060 T 000ETT E€dWV-Hd
SGT067  98GLT 89y  TOTL /8T G6v 9sY 6/88  6Zvie 6zyte - - 6evie  TT'ST  (W)T-ZAH JuedeA (soyues ‘0’3 :B2IA) JUBOBA JUSLRWISY 13410\ SoUBUSIUEBIN  TZ060 T 000ETT EdNV-Hd
2€22S  20vST 89y  vIeE /8T a6 vES ¥OYOT ~ 0€89€ LGV €L€9€ T20Z/v2/8 0202/ve/8  €.€9€ 6V LT  (Q)E-TWH  jusuewsdd-110 (eseN Q@ 'd'3 :9IIA) ‘C pieq ‘opeub| Jusuewlad 19)10\\ 2dUBUSURIN 02060 T 000STT EdAV-Hd
STO67  98G/T 89y  TOT. /8T g6 95 6,88  e62rIe 6cvte - 62vT€  ITST  (V)T-2ZWH uedeA (uonBy "4°4'Q :82IA) juedep  Arelodwal J19}I0/W 8ouBUBIURIN 6T060 T 000€TT E€dNV-Hd
9/TS9  0S/9T 8yz  8evT /8T G6v 20L 089€T  92¥8F  L¥0S 6LEEY TZ0Z/8/0T 0202/8/0T 6L€€F 9802  (G)E-ZTANC Iusuewsdad-110 (INBINBY "N'SC :93IA) "D 8jueq ‘Aeabun Jusuewidd 1apeaT eoueuslUelN Buping  8T060 T 000STT EdWV-Hd
(0OOETT) NUN SSauIsng aWoH
€dINV-ONISNOH d17and
1 S wv 1 (T$) (T06T$) 3 INIWN  T2oz  (1s3) 0202/0£/60 HONI  HONI LSV ! A d3alLs “Lddv ERIN INVYN IFA0TdNT  NOILISOd IILLNOILISOd #SOd O d NgH  NOISIAId
JOYAVd 1I43aN3g 1IN3A VOIdaW 3411 1aa  VOIQ3aW 3dIL3Y AYVIVS  LINIW v 1X3aN 3La VANNY TdNOH  -3avdo VA 37
V10l V1oL IVIOL JUONI  AMVIVS R ]

/04134 a3
T¢Ooc 103rodd

186png 1202 Ad
ulaned buyers
welboid BuisnoH Jusay mo
Alioyiny [emauay ueqin pue BuisnoH weno 0202/s¢/8

PAGE 51 of 52

Board Meetina of Auqust 28. 2020



€ Jo ¢ abed

B86T6c9¢ TO9ZVZ  B68TT Ccvest <098 OVBST  ¢8¢Z¢  9SGTEG 6GT88T 8GG¢.  6E0608T (wea] 150D [enuad-BuisnoH algnd Apawio) - d3SN LON - 000STT NGH)
1 S v 1 T2$) (10'6T$) 3 INET 1202 (1s3) 020z/0£/60 HONI  HONI LSV 1 A d3ls "1ddV JOIA JANVYN 3FA0TdNT  NOILISOd JILLNOILISOd #SOd O d NGH NOISIAIQ
J1OYAVd L1I43IN3Ig LN3A VOIQaw 3411 1ad  VOIQ3aW JHIL3Y AYVIVS  ININ 1v 1X3N 31a VANNY T8NOH  -3Aavyo VA 31
IvioL  vlolL IVLOL 3JHONI  AYVIVS hEl
/0413y a3
T20Z 103rodd
186pNng 1202 Ad
ulaned buyers
welboid BuisnoH Jusay mo
Alioyiny [emauay ueqin pue BuisnoH weno 0202/s¢/8

PAGE 52 of 52

Board Meetina of Auqust 28. 2020



